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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)
%} ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period From to
Commission File Number 001-13357
Royal Gold, Inc.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaer)
Delaware 84-0835164
(State or Other Jurisdiction (.LR.S. Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 100
Denver, Colorado 80202
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area cod€03) 573-1660

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value
(title of class)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e06dturities Act. YeEl No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Exchange Act.
YesO NoM™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefildsuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayss®¥M No M

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquigletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10EK.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRinle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

(Check one): Large accelerated filér Accelerated fileEl Non-accelerated fildd
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgfe Act). Yedd No ™

Aggregate market value of the voting stock heldhbg-affiliates of the registrant, based upon tlusiclg sale price of Royal Gold on
December 31, 2005, as reported on the Nasdag Gidbatt Market was $814.5 million. As of August 2806, there were 23,587,416 shares
of the registrant’'s common stock, $0.01 par vak®jed and outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2006 AnMieéting of Stockholders scheduled to be held oweltber 8, 2006, and to be filed within
120 days after June 30, 2006, are incorporate@feyence into Part Ill, ltems 10, 11, 12, 13 anafithis Annual Report o
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This document (including information incorporategtéin by reference) contains “forward-looking staents” within the meaning of

Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and @@L E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, winicolve a degree of risk and uncertai
due to various factors affecting Royal Gold, Inedats subsidiaries. For a discussion of some e§éfactors, see the discussion in Item 1A,
Risk Factors and Item 7, Managen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdaResults of Operations, of this report.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiaries, is engaged in th&ress of acquiring a
managing precious metals royalties. Royalties assige (non-operating) interests in mining projéictd provide the right to revenue from the
project after deducting specified costs, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapagects that are in production or near productivexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsaliptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wedt conduct mining operations at this time.

As discussed in further detail below, some of aginificant developments during fiscal year 2006 evas follows:
(1) Our royalty revenues increased to $28.4 milliormpared with $25.3 million during fiscal year 20l

(2) We completed the purchase of four royalty interes the Taparko-Bouroum Project (“Taparko Prd)eticated in Burkina Faso, West
Africa, and operated by High River Gold Mines L“High River");

(3) We completed the purchase of two existing royahielsl by Kennecott MineralKennecoft’), which included a 3% net smelter reti
(“NSR") royalty on the Robinson mine and a slic-scale NSR royalty on the Mulatos mit

(4) We entered into two Exploration and Earn-In Agneets with Taranis Resources Inc. (“Taranisith respect to its exploration progr:
in Finland,;

(5) We sold 2,227,912 shares of our common stock innakerwritten public offering, at a price of $2686r share, resulting in n
proceeds to us of approximately $54.7 million; .

(6) We declared an increase in our annual divider&Dt@2 per basic share, which is paid in quartesyallments throughout calendar
2006. This represents a 10% increase comparedivéttiividend paid during calendar year 2C

We were incorporated under the laws of the Sta@edhware on January 5, 1981. Our executive offasedocated at 1660 Wynkoop Street,
Suite 1000, Denver, Colorado 80202, (303) 573-1660.
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Royalty Interests and Acquisitions

Royalty Interests

During the 2006 fiscal year, we focused on the rgangent of our existing royalty interests, the asiion of royalty interests, and the creation
of royalty interests through financing and strategploration alliances.

Our principal mineral property interests are sethfdelow:

= Pipeline: Four royalty interests at the PipelinenMg Complex, which includes the Pipeline, Soutbefihe, GAP and Crossroads gt
deposits. The Pipeline Mining Complex is operatedhe Cortez Joint Venture, which is a joint vestbetween Barrick Gold
Corporation (“Barrick”) (60%), and Kennecott Expdtions (Australia) Ltd. (40%), a subsidiary of Rimto plc. Our four royalty
interests at the Pipeline Mining Complex ¢

0 GSR1- A sliding-scale gross smelter retui* GSF") royalty that covers the current mine footprint whincludes the Pipeline ai
South Pipeline deposits and ranges from 0.4%galdprice below $210 per ounce, to 5.0% at a gaice of $470 per ounce or
above;

0 GSR2- A sliding-scale GSR royalty that covers areas outside theliRgpdeposit and ranges from 0.72%, at a golcedoedow
$210 per ounce, to 9.0% at a gold price of $470opece or above

0 GSR3-A 0.71% fixed rate GSR royalty on the productione®@d by GSR1 and GSR2; a

0 NVR1- A fixed rate 0.39% net value royalty on all protion on the South Pipeline, Crossroads, and sdritedGAP deposit, but
not covering the Pipeline depos

= Leeville: A 1.8% carried working interest, eqt@i 1.8% NSR royalty, on the majority of the LéleviProject, which includes Leeville
South and Leeville North underground mines, locatedevada and operated by Newmont Mining Corpora(‘ Newmon”).

= SJ Claims: A 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims,clvtdovers a portion of the Be-Post open pit mine, at the Goldstrike operat
located in Nevada and operated by Barr

= Troy: Two royalty interests in the Troy undergndwsilver and copper mine, which is operated bydResilver Company (“Revett”),
located in northwestern Montar

o0 A production payment equivalent to a 7.0% GSR ryyahtil either cumulative production of approxirat9.9 million ounces c
silver and 84.6 million pounds of copper, or weeige $10.5 million in cumulative payments, whichewecurs first; an

0 A GSR royalty which begins at 6.1% on any produttioexcess of 11.0 million ounces of silver andl94illion pounds of coppe
and steps down to a 2% GSR royalty after cumulaireeluction has exceeded 12.7 million ounces gésiind 108.2 million
pounds of coppel
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= Martha: A 2% NSR royalty on a number of properiie Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, includingMeatha silver mine, which is
operated by Coeur Alene Mines Corporatior*Coeur ¢ Alene”); and

= Bald Mountain: A 1.75% NSR slidi-scale royalty interest on the Bald Mountain miret fihcreases or decreases with the price of |
adjusted by the 1986 Producer Price Index. Cuireatlr royalty rate would increase to 2% at a goide of approximately $811 per
ounce in today'’s dollars. Our royalty covers a jporbf the Bald Mountain mine, which is locatedithite Pine County, Nevada, and is

operated by Barrick
During our 2006 fiscal year, we acquired the follegvroyalty interests (see “Royalty Acquisitiortsslow for further discussion of these roy:
acquisitions):
= Taparko: Four royalty interests on the Taparkajd®t, located in Burkina Faso and operated by Higter. Our four royalty interests at
the Taparko Project ar
0 TB-GSR1 — A production payment equivalena tth% GSR royalty on all gold produced from thedr&p Project until either
cumulative production of 804,420 ounces of golddkieved or until we receive $35 million in cumidatpayments

o0 TB-GSR2- A production payment equivalent to a GSR sli-scale royalty on all gold produced from the TapaPkoject. TE-
GSR2 remains in force until the termination of-GSR1,;

0 TB-GSR3 - A perpetual 2% GSR royalty on aldgcontained in and produced from the Taparkodetairea. TB-GSR3 will
commence upon the termination of the-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties; an

o0 TB-MR1-A 0.75% milling fee royalty on all gold, subjectdaanual caps, processed through the Taparko Pojeceéssing
facilities that is mined from any area outside Tlagparko Project are.

= Robinson: A 3% NSR royalty on the Robinson mineated in eastern Nevada and operated by Quadra/ind. (*Quadr"); and

= Mulatos: A sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Maistmine, located in Sonora, Mexico, and operatedlagnos Gold, Inc. (“Alamos”).
The sliding-scale NSR royalty, capped at two millamunces of gold production, ranges from 0.30% pafar gold prices below $300
per ounce up to a maximum rate of 1.50% for goidgsrabove $400 per ount

3
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Estimates received from the mine operators dutieditst quarter of calendar year 2006 indicated gnoduction, attributable to our royalty
interests, for calendar year 2006 is expected tastfellows:

Operators’ Production Estimate by Royalty for Cden2006

Royalty Operatol Metal Productiot
Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 385,00( oz.
Pipeline GSR! Barrick Gold 385,00( oz.
Pipeline NVR1 Barrick Gold 213,00( oz.
Leeville North Newmont Gold 196,00( oz.
Leeville Soutr Newmont Gold 29,00( oz.
SJ Claims Barrick Gold 903,00( oz.
Bald Mountain Barrick Gold 248,00( oz.
Robinsor(®) Quadrs Gold 53,50( oz.
Mulatos® Alamos Gold 110,000 to 120,0( oz.
Troy Revett Silver 1.8 million oz.
Martha Coeur [' Alene Silver 2.5 million oz.
Troy Revett Coppet 15.6 millior Ibs.
Robinsor® Quadrs Copper 125 to 130 milliol Ibs.
Robinsor® Quadrz Molybdenum 0.5 to 1.0 millior lbs.®

(M Production estimates are for the full calendar yRaceipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourth quarter of fiscal year 20C
(@ Production estimates are for the full calendar yRawalty revenue began accruing to us on Aprddné.

®  In August 2006, Quadra reported that their origmmalybdenum production estimates will not be mata@a was not able to provi
updated molybdenum production estimates at this.!
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During the first six months of calendar 2006, thieeroperators have reported production attributedteur royalty interests as follows:

Operators’ Production Subject to Our Royalty Ins¢se

Six Months Ended June 30, 2006

Royalty Operatot Metal Production

Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 174,37¢ oz.
Pipeline GSR! Barrick Gold 174,37¢ oz.
Pipeline NVR1 Barrick Gold 57,66: oz.
Leeville North Newmont Gold 19,87¢ oz.
Leeville Soutr Newmont Gold 18,827 oz.
SJ Claims Barrick Gold 503,95:. oz.
Bald Mountain Barrick Gold 100,59¢ oz.
Robinsor® Quadrz Gold 13,08: oz
Mulatos® Alamos Gold 23,91: oz.
Troy Revett Silver 449,07" oz.
Martha Coeur [' Alene Silver 1,176,501 oz.
Troy Revett Copper 3,580,45. Ibs.
Robinsor® Quadrs Copper 27,214,57 Ibs,
Robinsor® Quadrs Molybdenum 60,74: Ibs.

(1) Royalty revenue commenced during the second quafrtealendar 200¢

(@  Royalty revenue commenced effective April 1, 2C

In addition, as of June 30, 2006, we own royaltgriests in the following exploration stage projebisne of these exploration stage projects

contain proven and probable reserves as of Jun20B®,

— A 5% NSR royalty interest on a portion of the M@anyon project, located in Lander County, Nev:

— A 16.5% net profits interes“NPI”) royalty on the Buckhorn South project, located urdka County, Nevad.

— A 1% NSR royalty interest on the Long Valley golject, located in eastern Californ

— A 1% NSR royalty, on possible production of precionetals on the Svetloye project in Rus

— A 2% NSR royalty on a number of exploration projgsrin Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, currenthned by Hidefield Gold PL(
(“Hidefield");

— A 1% NSR royalty interest on the Simon Creek prpjexated in Eureka County, Nevat

— A 0.25% net value royalty interest on the Horse Wain project, located in Lander County, Neve

— A 1.5% net value royalty interest on the Ferris/k®Greek project, located in Lander County, Nevi
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— A 0.5% NSR royalty interest on the Rye projectated in Pershing County, Nevau

— A 2.5% NSR royalty interest on the BSC projectakec in Elko County, Nevad

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on a 60% interest in the Copasin project, located in Lander County, Neve

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on a 67% interest (approximate}he ICBM project, located in Lander County &humboldt County, Nevad:

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on the Long Peak project, ledah Lander County, Nevad

— A 0.75% NSR royalty on the Dixie Flats project,dted in Elko County, Nevada; a

— A 2% NSR royalty on the Kettukuusikko property ltahin Lapland, Finland, which was acquired in Nober 2005 (se”Royalty
Acquisitions” below for further detail) and is being exploredTaranis.

Royalty Acquisitions

High River Gold— Tarparko Project Financing

On March 1, 2006, we entered into an Amended arstia®eal Funding Agreement (“Funding Agreement”) vdtitiete des Mines de Taparko,
also known as Somita SA (“Somita”), a 90% ownedsidibry of High River, to acquire two initial prodiion payments equivalent to GSR
royalties and two subsequent GSR royalty inter@stthe Taparko Project in Burkina Faso, West Afrilae Funding Agreement amended and
restated the initial Funding Agreement dated Dee@amib2005, among Royal Gold, High River and Somiitee Taparko Project is operated by
Somita. Our funding of the project will total $35llion over approximately a one-year period, whieiti be used for the development and
construction of the Taparko Project. Constructibthe Taparko Project has been initiated by Somniid is expected to be near completion
during the fourth quarter of calendar 2006, withdarction expected to commence during the firstignaf calendar 2007.

As of June 30, 2006, we have funded approximat&8;/®million of the $35 million total funding comtmient. As a result of our funding to
date, we have obtained the following mineral indéesgall related to the Taparko Project:

1. TB-GSR1 - A production payment equivalerd fifteen percent (15%) GSR royalty on all goldguiced from the Taparko Project. TB-
GSR1 remains in force until cumulative productidé804,420 ounces of gold is achieved or until cuatiuve payments of $35 million
have been made to us, whichever is eal

2. TB-GSR2 — A production payment equivalerd ©8SR sliding-scale royalty on all gold producexhf the Taparko Project. TB-GSR2
will be paid concurrently with TB-GSR1, and remaimgorce until the termination of TB-GSR1. Thed#fig-scale royalty rate will be

determined as follows

a. When the average price of gold is $430 per ounceare, the rate will be equal to the average ptieled by 100 e.g., a $44C
gold price divided by 100 = 4.4%
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b. When the average gold price is $385 per ouncesst the rate will be equal to the average priceldi/by 90 (e.g., a $350 golt
price divided by 90 = 3.88%

c. When the average price is between $385 and $436uver, the rate is 4.3¢

3. TB-GSR3 - A perpetual 2% GSR royalty orgald produced from the Taparko Project area. Paygnarder TB-GSR3 will commence
upon termination of the T-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties

4. TB-MR1-A 0.75% milling fee royalty, calculated in the samanner as the T-GSR1 royalty, on all gold processed through
Taparko Project processing facilities that is mifreth any area outside of the Taparko Project arBaMR1 royalty is subject to a cap
of 1.1 million tons per year_(_e.gif in a given year, the Taparko Project proaegdacility processes 800,000 tons of ore from the
Taparko Project area and 500,000 tons of ore fr@masaoutside the Taparko Project area, the 80@¢@®0from the Taparko Project a
would be subject to T-GSR1, TE-GSR2, or TEGSR3 and the T-MRI would only apply to 300,000 tons of or

During July and August of 2006, we funded an adddi $10.8 to the Taparko Project, resulting imltfiinding by us of $29.5 as of August 15,
2006. Subsequent funding of the Taparko Projedtogiimade in installments over the remaining caresion period. The Funding Agreement
outlines the construction milestones that must beprior to each specific funding installment. Tgreject is expected to meet all construction
requirements (as defined in the Funding Agreememiater than second quarter of calendar 2007. $timate the $35 million will be fully
funded by the second quarter of calendar 2007estiliy construction milestones.

Under a separate Contribution Agreement, High Riweesponsible for contributing additional equityntributions for any cost overruns
incurred during the construction and constructi@mranty periods. If High River is unable to make thquired equity contributions, we have
the right to either (a) provide funding that Higiv& failed to fund, or (b) declare a default untte¥ Funding Agreement. In the event that we
elect to provide funding in the amount that HiglvéRifails to fund, we may elect to acquire eithereguity interest in High River, consisting of
units of common shares and warrants of High Riveo @btain additional royalty interests in the &g Project in an amount that is
proportional to the amount of the additional furgddompared with our original $35 million fundingmmitment. As of August 25, 2006, High
River has made all required equity commitmentscagduled under its Contribution Agreement.

In order to secure our investment during the pebiedveen funding by us and project completion gfsdd in the Funding Agreement), High
River has pledged its 90% interest in the equit$afita. We will maintain our security interesttlie form of the Somita shares, through the
construction period. The security interest willleéeased upon the project meeting project compldas defined in the Funding Agreement).

In addition to the 90% interest in Somita, we halg® obtained as collateral a pledge of shares@Eqguity investments held by High River.
The equity value underlying the pledge of theseeshis valued at approximately $14.9 million agwafie 30, 2006, and includes 12,015,000
common shares in the capital stock of Pelangio Bifrec. (traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange ahded at approximately $13.3 million

of June 30, 2006) and 1,790,941 common share®inapital stock of Intrepid Minerals Corporatiora(ted on the Toronto Stock exchange
valued at approximately $1.6 million as of JuneBW6). The purpose of this collateral is to mamtaconstruction reserve that can be used to

7
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remedy any construction defects noted during tmsizoction contract warranty period. These shaaesonly be used to remedy identified
construction defects and cannot be used to repapfaour investment. This security interest will fldeased by the Company at the end of the
construction contract warranty period.

Robinson and Mulatos Royalti

On December 28, 2005, we paid $25 million to Ketieio exchange for two existing royalty interelsedd by Kennecott, including a 3% NSR
royalty on the Robinson mine, located in eastermada, and a sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Mdahine, located in Sonora, Mexico.

The Robinson mine is an open pit copper mine wghi§cant gold and molybdenum credits. The mine haen owned and operated by Qu
since 2004. Quadra estimates that calendar yed& @@@uction will be approximately 53,500 ouncegold and 125 to 130 million pounds of
copper. Quadra completed construction of a molybdeaircuit during the first quarter of 2006. DuriAggust 2006, Quadra reported that t|
original molybdenum production estimates (0.5 @rhillion pounds) will not be met. Quadra was noleao provide updated molybdenum
estimates at this time. We began receiving royadtyments from the Robinson royalty during the fowptiarter of fiscal 2006 after a

$20.0 million reclamation trust account was fulynéled by Quadra.

The Mulatos project, owned and operated by Alarisoan open pit, heap leach gold mine. Commerciadipetion was achieved at the Mulatos
mine effective April 1, 2006, at which time royaftgyments began to accrue to Royal Gold. Alamasipates that once full production is
reached, yearly production is expected to aver&@e0D0 ounces of gold. The Mulatos mine slidingiescayalty, capped at two million ounces
of gold production, ranges from 0.30% for gold psadelow $300 up to 1.50% for gold prices aboved$40

Taranis Exploration Alliance

On November 4, 2005, we entered into two Exploraind Earn-In Agreements (the “Agreements”) withahds with respect to its exploration
program in Finland. As part of the first Agreememé will obtain a 2% NSR royalty and future earrrigihts on any new property acquired by
Taranis in Finland as a result of its regional exation program, in exchange for a $321,638 investrin 937,500 shares of Taranis’ common
stock and 468,750 warrants. On August 21, 2006aageired, under a private placement, an additibf@@|000 shares of Taranis’ common
stock and warrants exercisable to purchase up,@®B0raranis common shares at $0.49.

As part of the Agreements, we agreed to providdifumtotaling $500,000 to Taranis for exploratioariwon the Kettukuusikko property in
Lapland, Finland, in exchange for a 2% NSR royaltythe property. As of June 30, 2006, we have fdritde entire $500,000 commitment. '
also have an option to fund up to an additionald$800 for exploration at the Kettukuusikko propetfywe fund the entire additional amount,
we will earn a 51% joint venture interest in thettkikuusikko project, and we will release our 2% NSRalty. We have elected to exercise this
option. In the event that we do not fully fund $&00,000 to earn the joint venture interest, weld/oetain our 2% NSR royalty.

8
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Our Operational Information
Financial Results

Our financial results are closely tied to the pégold and production from our royalty propertiBairing the 2006 fiscal year, the price of
gold averaged $527 per ounce compared with an gegrace of $422 per ounce for the 2005 fiscal yAara result of the increased gold pri
our GSR1 sliding-scale royalty rate at the PipeNiring Complex paid out at rates ranging from 4.&%6.0% compared rates ranging from
4.0% to 4.5% during the prior period. Lower prodawctat the Pipeline Mining Complex (which was ldygeffset by rising metal prices and an
increase in our GSR1 sliding-scale royalty), améase in revenues from SJ Claims and Bald Mountaid payments from the recently
acquired Mulatos and Robinson royalties resulte@vwenues of $28,380,143 during the 2006 fiscat,yamampared with total revenues of
$25,302,332 during the 2005 fiscal year.

During our fiscal 2006, we derived most of our mrawe from royalties from the Pipeline Mining Compléx fiscal 2006, we generated royalty
revenues of $16,813,059 from the Pipeline Miningnptex, representing 59% of our total revenuesdaiiteon, we generated royalty revenue
of $4,783,896 from the SJ Claims, $1,693,447 frbenTiroy mine, $767,744 from the Leeville mine, 824659 from Bald Mountain,
$2,202,749 from Robinson, $225,000 from Mulatos $401,589 from the Martha mine.

Sales Contracts

In fiscal 2006, we received our royalties in casbept for the NVRL1 royalty from the Pipeline Mini@pmplex, which we currently receive in
gold. We sold 1,733 ounces of gold bullion in fispaar 2006, utilizing one metal trading companyinig the period, at an average realized
price of $524 per ounce. We sold 2,905 ounces lof lgallion in fiscal year 2005, utilizing one metedding company during the period, at an
average realized price of $417 per ounce. We maittading relationships with a number of metatlirg companies. We held no gold in
inventory as of June 30, 2006.

Company Personnel

On August 25, 2006, we had 13 full-time employems @ne part-time employee located in Denver, Cdlor®ur employees are not subject to
a labor contract or collective bargaining agreeméfe consider our employee relations to be good.

Consulting services, relating primarily to geologitd geophysical interpretations and also relatrguch metallurgical, engineering, and other
technical matters as may be deemed useful in taeatipn of our business, are primarily providedrmependent contractors.

Regulation

Like all mining operations in the United States tiperators of the mines that are subject to oualties must comply with environmental laws
and regulations promulgated by federal, state aaal lgovernments including, but not limited to, M&tional Environmental Policy Act; the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidihiability Act; the Clean Air Act; the Clean VéatAct; the

9
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Hazardous Materials Transportation Act; and theid@ ®ubstances Control Act. Mines located on pulaiitls are subject to comprehensive
regulation by either the United States Bureau ofd_Elanagement (an agency of the United States Erapat of the Interior) or the United
States Forest Service (an agency of the Uniteg@Staepartment of Agriculture). The mines also algexct to regulations of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), the UnitBthtes Mine Safety and Health Administration andlar state and local agencies.
Operators of mines that are subject to our royaltieother countries are obligated to comply withikar laws and regulations in those
jurisdictions. Although we are not responsible asyalty owner for ensuring compliance with thesgulations, failure by the operators of
mines on which we have royalties to comply withlag@gble laws, regulations and permits can resuihjunctive action, damages and civil and
criminal penalties on the operators which coulduoedproduction from the mines and thereby redueedhalties we receive and negatively
affect our financial condition.

Proposed Legislation Affecting the Mining Industry

Over the last fifteen years, the United States Gesgyconsidered a number of proposed amendmethis €@eneral Mining Law of 1872, as
amended, (the “General Mining Law”), which govemisiing claims and related activities on federad&rin 1992, a holding fee of US$100
per claim was imposed upon unpatented mining cléceted on federal lands. Beginning in October4l@moratorium, on processing of r
patent applications was approved. In addition,réetsaof legislation has been proposed from timértee, which would, among other things,
change the current patenting procedures, limititites obtained in a patent, impose royalties gpatented claims, and enact new reclamation,
environmental controls and restoration requiremertte royalty proposal ranges from a two perceydlty on “net profits*from mining claim:
to an eight percent royalty on modified gross ine@mat smelter returns. The extent of any such akgtigat may be enacted is not presently
known, and the potential impact on us as a rediilitare congressional action is difficult to prediThe majority of our royalties are on public
lands. If enacted, the proposed legislation codiceesely affect the economics of development ofalieg mines on federal unpatented min
claims. The GSR1 and GSR2 royalties relating toRipeline Mining Complex, operated by the Corteint)denture, authorize the deductior
costs of mining law reform from the revenues tochtthose royalties apply. The “costs of mining l@fiorm” is defined as any royalty
assessment, production tax or other levy imposeahdnmeasured by production, to the extent thasaok charge is imposed in the future by
the United States in connection with the refornthef General Mining Law. The GSR3 royalty relatinghe Pipeline Mining Complex
authorizes the deduction of any royalty payablgh@future to the United States with respect to phaduction. Our financial performance
could therefore be materially and adversely aftétie passage of all or pertinent parts of the psepdeqgislation.

Available Information

Royal Gold maintains a web site at www.royalgoldic&koyal Gold makes available, free of charge,uptothe Investor Relations section of
the web site, its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @arar Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on F8+ky and all amendments to those
reports, as soon as reasonably practicable aftérmsaterial is electronically filed with the Secie$ and Exchange Commission. Royal Gold’s
charters of key committees of its Board of Direstand its Code of Business Conduct and Ethicslsoeagailable on the web site. Any of the
foregoing information is available in print to astpckholder who requests it by contacting RoyaldZolnvestor Relations Department.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Every investor or potential investor in Royal Gsltbuld carefully consider the following risks:

Risks Related to Our Business

Our revenues are largely dependent on a singlesprop

In fiscal year 2006, approximately 59% of our ravesiwere derived from royalties from the Pipelinailg Complex, compared to
approximately 85% being derived from the Pipelinmikly Complex in fiscal year 2005. We expect tleatenue from our royalties on the
Pipeline Mining Complex will continue to be a sificant, though less dominant, contributor to owerue in future periods. Our success has
been, and to a lesser degree will continue to &geddent on the extent to which the Pipeline Mirimgnplex continues to be a substantial
mining operation.

We own passive interests in mining properties, iirsddifficult or impossible for us to ensure pespies are operated in our best interest.

All of our current revenue is derived from royadtien properties operated by third parties. Thedradd a royalty interest typically has no
executive authority regarding development or openatf a mineral property. Therefore, we are natdantrol of basic decisions regarding
development or operation of any of the propertieslich we hold a royalty interest, and we havetéich or no legal rights to influence those
decisions.

Our strategy of having others operate propertieghiith we retain a royalty or other passive intepegs us generally at risk to the decisions of
others regarding all basic operating matters, olioly permitting, feasibility analysis, mine desigmd operation, processing, plant and
equipment matters, and temporary or permanent sggpeof operations, among others. These decisimysbe motivated by the best interests
of the operator rather than to maximize royaltidthough we attempt to secure contractual righ thill permit us to protect our interests,
there can be no assurance that such rights willydvibe available or sufficient, or that our effavii be successful in achieving timely or
favorable results or in affecting the operationshef properties in which we have royalty interéstaays that would be beneficial to our
stockholders.

Decreases in prices of gold, silver and copper doedluce our royalty revenues.

The profitability of our royalty interests and eagtion properties is directly related to the magkéce of gold and, to a lesser degree, silver
and copper. The market price of each metal fluetuatidely and is affected by numerous factors béyba control of any mining company.
These factors include industrial and jewelry fadtiien demand, expectations with respect to theakitaflation, the relative strength of the U.S
dollar and other currencies, interest rates, galessand loans by central banks, forward salesdtalmproducers, global or regional political,
economic or banking crises, and a number of othaofs. If the market price of gold, silver or cepghould drop, our royalty revenues would
also drop. Our sliding-scale GSR1 royalty amplitieis. When the gold price falls below the stepthmsliding-scale GSR1 royalty, we receive
a lower royalty rate on production. In additionthi&é gold, silver or copper price drops dramatjcalle might not be able to recover our
investment in royalty interests or properties. hakection of a royalty investment or of a propéotyexploration or development, the
determination
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to construct a mine and place it into productiord the dedication of funds necessary to achievie pugposes are decisions that must be made
long before the first revenues from production Wwél received. Price fluctuations between the tina¢ $uch decisions are made and the
commencement of production can have a materialradwadfect on the economics of a mine, and canirgdite or have a material adverse
impact on the value of royalty interests.

The volatility in gold prices is illustrated by tf@lowing table, which sets forth, for the periddsicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per ounce of gold, basether_ondon P.M. fix.

Gold Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low
1998 $313 $27¢
1999 32¢ 258
2000 312 263
2001 29¢ 25¢€
2002 34¢ 27¢
2003 41¢€ 32C
2004 454 37¢
2005 537 411
January -August 25, 200t 72& 52t

The volatility in silver prices is illustrated ble following table which sets forth, for the pesdddicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per ounce of silver, basedhe London P.M. fix.

Silver Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low
1998 $ 7.81 $4.6¢
1999 5.7¢ 4.8¢
2000 5.4k 4.57
2001 4.8 4.07
2002 5.1C 4.24
2003 5.97 4.37
2004 8.2¢ 5.5C
2005 9.2t 6.3¢
January -August 25, 200t 14.9¢ 8.8¢
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The volatility in copper prices is illustrated thetfollowing table, which sets forth, for the pelsandicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per pound of copper, basethe London Metal Exchange cash settlement pacedpper Grade A.

Copper Price Per Pound ($)

Year High Low
1998 $0.82 $0.67
1999 0.8C 0.6:
2000 0.8¢ 0.7¢
2001 0.81 0.6z
2002 0.7¢ 0.67
2003 1.0C 0.7z
2004 1.4z 1.1C
2005 2.0¢ 1.44
January - July 31, 200¢ 3.65 2.1¢

We depend on the services of our President and Ekexutive Officer, our Executive Chairman andestkey employees.

We believe that our success depends on the codtsereice of our key executive management perso@uegtently, Tony Jensen is serving as
President and Chief Executive Officer and Stanleynpsey is serving as our Executive Chairman. Mrséde has extensive experience in
mining operations. Mr. Dempsey’s knowledge of tbgall and commercial aspects of royalties and Hensive contacts within the mining
industry give us an important competitive advantagess of the services of Mr. Jensen, Mr. Dempsegtiter key employees could jeopardize
our ability to maintain our competitive positionthme industry. We currently do not have key peifferinsurance for any of our officers or
directors.

Our revenues are subject to operational risks®htiming industry.

Although we are not required to pay operating ¢amis financial results are subject to all of tlezdrds and risks normally associated with
developing and operating mining properties, bottilie properties where we are exploring or indlyefttr properties operated by others where
we hold royalty interests. These risks include:

— insufficient ore reserve:

— fluctuations in production costs that may make nmgrof ore uneconomit
— declines in the price of gold, silver or copf

— significant environmental and other regulatory niegons;

— labor disputes
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— geological problems

— pit walls or tailings dam failure:

— natural catastrophes such as floods or earthquake

— therisk of injury to persons, property or the eamiment.

Operating cost increases can have a negative efffieitte value of and income from our royalty ing#éseand may cause an operator to curtail,
delay or close operations at a mine site.

Estimates of reserves and mineralization by theatpes of mines in which we have royalty interests subject to significant estimates which
can change.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in eitimaroven and probable reserves and mineralizatnzluding many factors beyond our
control or that of the operators of mineral projsrtn which we have a royalty interest. Resentiengges on our royalty interests are prepared
by the operators of the mining properties, and waat participate in the preparation of such repdrhe estimation of reserves and of other
mineralization is a subjective process and theraoguof any such estimates is a function of thdityuaf available data and of engineering and
geological interpretation and judgment. Resultdrdfing, metallurgical testing and production, athe evaluation of mine plans subsequent to
the date of any estimate may cause revision of egtimates. The volume and grade of reserves restand rates of production may be less
than anticipated. Assumptions about prices areestibp great uncertainty and such prices haveuatetl widely in the past. Declines in the
market price of gold or other precious metals alsxy render reserves or mineralization containitatirely lower grades of ore uneconomic
exploit. Changes in operating and capital costsadhdr factors including short-term operating fastsuch as the need for sequential
development of ore bodies and the processing oforadifferent ore grades, may materially and adsgraffect reserves.

We may be unable to acquire additional royaltyrieges.

Our future success depends upon our ability toieeqayalty interests to replace depleting researgb to diversify our royalty portfolio. We
anticipate that most of our revenues will be detifrem royalty interests that we acquire or fingnagher than through exploration and
development of properties. In addition, we face petition in the acquisition of royalty interestswle are unable to successfully acquire
additional royalties, the reserves on propertiesetuly covered by our royalties will decline assting reserves are mined.

Anticipated federal legislation could decreaseroyalty revenues.

In recent years, the United States Congress hasd=yad a number of proposed major revisions ofaeeral Mining Law, which governs the
creation and possession of mining claims and relatéivities on federal public lands in the Unit&t@tes. It is possible that another bill may be
introduced in the Congress and it is possible dhagw law could be enacted. If and when a new milaw is enacted, it might impose a roy.
upon production of minerals from federal lands eright contain new requirements for mined land neelfion, and similar environmental
control and reclamation measures. It remains untteahat extent new legislation may affect exigtimining claims or operations, but it could
raise the cost of mining operations, perhaps nalgrffecting operators and our royalty revenue.
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The effect of any revision of the General MiningALan royalty interests in the United States camotietermined conclusively until such
revision, if any, is enacted. The majority of ounteirests are on public lands. If a royalty, assesspproduction tax or other levy imposed on
and measured by production is charged to the opesiaithe Pipeline Mining Complex, the amount @ttbharge would be deducted from gross
proceeds for calculation of our GSR1, GSR2 and Gi®ialties.

The mining industry is subject to significant emvimental risks.

Mining is subject to potential risks and liabilgi@associated with pollution of the environment #reldisposal of waste products occurring as a
result of mineral exploration and production. Laavsl regulations in the United States and abro&hited to ensure the protection of the
environment are constantly changing and generadiypacoming more restrictive and costly. Insuraaga&inst environmental risks (including
potential liability for pollution or other hazards a result of the disposal of waste products oic@ufrom exploration and production) is not
generally available to the companies within theingrindustry, such as the operators of the mineghich we hold a royalty interest, at a
reasonable price. If an operator is forced to irsignificant costs to comply with environmentalukdions or becomes subject to
environmental restrictions that limit its ability tontinue or expand operations, it could reduaerayalty revenues. To the extent that we
become subject to environmental liabilities for time period during which we were operating proiesttthe satisfaction of any liabilities
would reduce funds otherwise available to us anddcbave a material adverse effect on our finarsmaldition, results of operations and cash
flows.

In September 2002, we settled a claim by the ER#nag) Royal Gold, along with 92 other potentiakgponsible parties, known as PRPs. The
EPA’s allegation was based on the disposal of atlghazardous petroleum exploration wastes aCtHwmnalia Resources Hazardous Waste
Site by our predecessor, Royal Resources, Indnga©83 and 1984. Although we do not currentlyestgo incur additional costs in
connection with this claim, the State of Califorhis notified us and the other parties who padieig in the settlement that it will seek to
recover response costs. We do not know and camedicpthe amount of the estimated costs the Statéd seek to recover but, if we are
compelled to pay a large sum, it could materiatlyexsely affect our operations. If the State agteesvolumetric allocation among the part
our portion of the liability would be 0.438% of asgttlement amount. Please see Part |, Item 3.dllRmpceedings — Casmalia Resources
Hazardous Waste Disposal Site,” of this Annual Repo Form 10-K.

If title to properties are not properly maintain®dthe operators, our royalty revenues may be dsek

The validity of unpatented mining claims, which sbttute a significant portion of the propertieswanich we hold royalties in the United Sta
is often uncertain and such validity is always sabjo contest. Unpatented mining claims are gélgaransidered subject to greater title risk
than patented mining claims, or real property egés that are owned in fee simple.

Foreign operations are subject to many risks.

Our foreign activities are subject to the risksmally associated with conducting business in fareiguntries. This includes exchange controls
and currency fluctuations, limitations on repatdatof earnings, foreign taxation, foreign envircemtallaws and enforcement, expropriatior
nationalization of property, labor practices angpdies, and uncertain political and economic enwirents. There are also risks of war and
disturbances, as well as other risks that couldeaxploration or development
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difficulties or stoppages, restrict the movemenfuaids or result in the deprivation or loss of cant rights or the taking of property by
nationalization or expropriation, without fair coensation. Exploration licenses granted by somedoreountries do not include the right to
mine. Each country has discretion in determiningthiar to grant a license to mine. If an operatonoasecure a mining license following
exploration of a property, the value of our royaitierest would be negatively affected. Foreignrapiens could also be adversely impacted by
laws and policies of the United States affectingiign trade, investment and taxation. We currelmélye interests in projects in Argentina,
Burkina Faso, Finland, Mexico and Russia. We alssye precious metal royalty acquisitions or degwelent opportunities in other parts of
world, including Canada, Central America, Europasthalia, other Republics of the former Soviet Unidsia, Africa and South America.

We are also subject to the risks of operating irkBia Faso, West Africa. Countries in the regiomenhistorically experienced periods of
political uncertainty, exchange rate fluctuatiooslance of payments and trade difficulties as aglproblems associated with extreme poverty
and unemployment. Any of these economic or politicks could adversely affect the Taparko Project.

Our operations in Mexico are subject to risks saglhe effects of political developments and lagakst, and communal property issues. Ir
past, Mexico has experienced prolonged periodseafkveconomic conditions characterized by exchaatgeimstability, increased inflation and
negative economic growth which could occur agaithfuture. Any of these risks could adverselgetithe Mulatos mine.

We hold a royalty interest in an exploration prapéinat is subject to the risks of operating in lasThe economy of the Russian Federation
continues to display characteristics of an emergiagket, including extensive currency controls potentially high inflation. The prospects
for future economic stability in the Russian Fetieraare largely dependent upon the effectivenéssmnomic measures undertaken by the
government, together with legal, regulatory andtjpal developments. Russian laws, licenses anthipghave been in a state of change and
new laws may be given a retroactive effect. Ii$® aot unusual in the context of dispute resolutioRussia for parties to use the uncertainty
in the Russian legal environment as leverage imbas negotiations.

Our Martha royalty is subject to risks relatingofmerating in Argentina. Argentina, while currentigonomically and politically stable, has
experienced political instability, currency vallectuations and changes in banking regulationgdemt years. New instability and fluctuations
or regulation changes could adversely affect ovemaes from the Martha mine.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price may continue to be volatile andidaiecline.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuatedi may decline in the future. The high and logsitig sale prices of our common stock
were $24.64 and $11.34 in fiscal year 2004, $2ar81$13.04 in fiscal year 2005 and $39.41 and $1i8.&scal year 2006. The fluctuation of
the market price of our common stock has been t&ffidloy many factors that are beyond our contraluiting:
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— market prices of gold, silver and copp

— interest rates

— expectations regarding inflatio

— ability of operators to produce precious metals @evklop new reserve
— currency values

— general stock market conditions; ¢

— global and regional political and economic conditipas well as many other factc
We may change our dividend policy.

We have declared a cash dividend on our commotk $toeach fiscal year beginning in fiscal year @00Qur board of directors has discretion
in determining whether to declare a dividend bamed number of factors, including prevailing gotites, economic market conditions and
funding requirements for future opportunities oeaions. If our board of directors declines toldexdividends in the future, or reduces the
current dividend level, our stock price could falhd the success of an investment in our commatk stould depend solely upon any future
stock price appreciation in value.

Certain antitakeover provisions could delay or prevent a thaidy from acquiring us.

Provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation magke it more difficult for third parties to acquizentrol of us or to remove our management.
Some of these provisions are:

— Permit our board of directors to issue preferredlsthat has rights senior to the common stockautishareholder approval; a
— Provide for three classes of directors servinggeegd, thre-year terms

We are also subject to the business combinatiovigioms of Delaware law that could delay, detep@vent a change in control. In addition,
we have adopted a Stockholder’s Rights Plan thpoges significant penalties upon a person or gtieafpacquires 15% or more of our
outstanding common stock without the approval efttbard of directors. Any of these measures corddgnt a third party from pursuing an
acquisition of our Company, even if shareholdetibe the acquisition is in their best interests.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Royalties on Producing Properties

Recent activities at each of the significant pradggroperties in which we have a royalty intei@st described in the following pages. Please
also see Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Siatés included in Part II, Item 8. “Financial Stagnts and Supplementary Data” of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for more informationtbie history of these properties.
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We do not operate the properties in which we hayalty interests and therefore much of the infoioratlisclosed in this Form 1KR-regarding
these properties is provided to us by the operafamsexample, the operators of the various priaggeprovide us information regarding metals
production, estimates of mineral reserves and iathdit mineralization. There is more information éaale to the public from the operators of
the properties in which we have royalties, inclgdiaports filed by Newmont, Coeur d’Alene, and Bdrwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission. For risks associated with reserve edéig) please see “Risk Factors - Estimates ofwes@nd mineralization by the operators of
mines in which we have royalty interests are suligesignificant estimates which can change.”

Pipeline Mining Complex

The Pipeline Mining Complex is a large open pitll mmd heap leach operation located approximat@lgi6 miles southwest of Elko, Nevada,
in Lander County. The site is reached by drivingtfeom Elko on Interstate 80 approximately 46 siilend proceeding south on State
Highway 306 approximately 23 miles. The PipelinenMg Complex includes both the Pipeline and thetl$®ipeline deposits and is operated
by the Cortez Joint Venture.

The royalty interests we hold at the Pipeline Min@omplex include:

(a) Reserve Claims'GSRYT) . This is a sliding-scale GSR royalty for all g@icbduced from the “Reserve Claims,” which inclu8és
claims that encompass all of the proven and prebagserves in the Pipeline and South Pipeline dispas of April 1, 1999. As
defined in our royalty agreement with Cortez, o@RGroyalty applies to revenues attributed to préslotined and removed, with no
deduction for any costs paid by or charged to Qoegcept for deductions of Mining Law reform co$ning Law reform costs
includes all amounts paid by or charged to Corteahy royalty, assessment, production tax or déwsrimposed on and measurec
production, to the extent that any such levy ishéier imposed by the United States, in conneatitin reform of the General Mining
Law or otherwise. The revenues attributed to Coarezdetermined on a deemed market value basidabfaroduction for each
calendar quarter outturned to Cortez’s accourttatéfiner. The GSR royalty rate on the Reservin@lés tied to the gold price,
without indexing for inflation or deflation as shown the table below

(b) GAS Claims(GSRZ2) . This is a sliding-scale GSR royalty for all gpidduced from the 288 claims outside of the Res€taams.
The GAS Claims include 310 lode mining claims, pratduction from 22 of the GAS Claims that encomghssSouth Pipeline reser
as of April 1, 1999, are subject to the Reservén®aGSR royalty. The GSR royalty rate on the GASii@S is tied to the gold price,
without indexing for inflation or deflation, and glges to revenues attributed to products minedrantbved, with no deduction of
costs, except for Mining Law reform cos

(c) Reserve and GAS Claims Fixed Roya“GSR"). The GSR3 royalty is a fixed rate GSR royalty ofi2%% for the life of the min
and covers the same cumulative area as is covgredriiwo slidin-scale GSR royalties, GSR1 and GS
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(d) Net Value Royalty“NVR1"). This is a fixed 0.39% NVR on production from the &£&laims located on a portion of the Pipel
Mining Complex that excludes the Pipeline openTiiis NVR1 royalty is calculated by deducting cawtrdefined processing-related
and associated capital costs, but not mining dosts the revenue received by the operator froncthens covered by the royalt

(e) The Silver GSF. This is a 7% GSR royalty on all silver produceshi any of the Reserve Claims or the GAS cla

(f) The Other Products NS. This is a 3% NSR royalty on all products, othert gold or silver, produced from any of the ReseZlaims
or GAS claims, commencing July 1, 1999. This NSBReafBned as the actual price received by CortezHersale of products other than
gold and silver prior to delivery to any customefjnery or upgrading facility and after deductidos any Mining Law reform costs, tl
costs of insuring, marketing, freight or transptota and, if applicable, refining and treatmenttspfr such products. There is no
current production attributed to this royalty irgst.

The following shows the current sliding-scale G®katty rates under our royalty agreement with Corte

London PM Quarterly Averac GSR1 GSR2

Price of Gold Per Ounce ($U.¢ Royalty Percentag Royalty Percentag
Below $210.0( 0.4(% 0.72%
$210.00 — $229.9¢ 0.5(% 0.9(%
$230.00 — $249.9¢ 0.75% 1.35%
$250.00 — $269.9¢ 1.3(% 2.3%%
$270.00 — $309.9¢ 2.25% 4.05%
$310.00 — $329.9¢ 2.6(% 4.68%
$330.00 — $349.9¢ 3.0(% 5.4(%
$350.00 — $369.9¢ 3.4(% 6.12%
$370.00 — $389.9¢ 3.7%% 6.7%
$390.00 — $409.9¢ 4.0(% 7.2(%
$410.00 — $429.9¢ 4.25% 7.65%
$430.00 — $449.9¢ 4.5(% 8.1(%
$450.00 — $469.9¢ 4.7%% 8.55%
$470.00 and above¢ 5.0(% 9.0(%
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Under certain circumstances we would be entitledelayed production payments (i.@ayments not recoupable by Cortez) of $400,000 pe
year.

The following illustration depicts the area subjgcbur royalty interests at the Pipeline Miningn@mex:

—
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SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims thaec®wa portion of the Betze-Post mine, in EurekarBguNevada. Betz@ost is an open
mine operated by Barrick, at its Goldstrike propefthe SJ Claims and the Betze-Post open pit fgagmately 24 air miles northwest of
Carlin, Nevada. The property is accessed by drimioigh from Carlin on State Highway 766 for 19 miknd then on an improved gravel road
for two miles.

Barrick estimated that at a $400 gold price, proamed probable reserves related to our royalty éstest the SJ Claims includes 64.9 million
tons of ore, at an average grade of 0.137 ounae®pecontaining approximately 8.9 million ounadgold as of December 31, 2005. Barrick
does not provide us with additional mineralized eniat on the SJ Claims that is related to our nyyialterest.
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The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interest at the SJ Claims:

ax v

Leeville Project

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of theeville Project, in Eureka County,
Nevada. The Leeville Project is approximately I9ales northwest of Carlin, Nevada. The propestaécessed by driving north from Cal

on State Highway 766 for 19 miles and then on gorawed gravel road for two miles. Leeville Northais underground mine currently under
production ramp up by Newmont. Newmont has annaditicat it intends to be at full production at LékvNorth by the end of calendar 2007.
Currently, we derive royalty revenue from undergrwperations on a portion of the Leeville Soutt Borth mines, which are operated by
Newmont. Production from the Leeville South minexpected to continue into calendar 2C

As of December 31, 2005, Newmont estimated that#t00 gold price, proven and probable reservesaetto the Leeville South mine
includes 0.086 million tons of ore, at an averagelg of 0.371 ounces per ton, containing 32,00@esiof gold. In addition, Newmont has
reported additional mineralized material at Leev#louth totaling 21,000 tons of ore, at an avegagde of 0.300 ounces per ton.

At the Leeville North mine, proven and probablesrgss include 5.1 million tons of ore, at an avergpde of 0.465 ounces per ton, contai

2.381 million ounces of gold. In addition, Newmaats reported additional mineralized material tatall.4 million tons of ore, at an average
grade of 0.435 ounces per ton, at Leeville North.
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The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interest at the Leeville Project:
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Troy Mine

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005, we paseld two royalty interests in the Troy undergrosihcer and copper mine, operated by
Revett, located in Lincoln County, Montana. Theylmaine is approximately 15 miles south of the tafTroy, Montana, and access is via a
paved road connected to State Highway 56.

The first royalty interest we acquired in the Traine is a production payment equivalent to a 7.08R@oyalty from all metals and products
produced and sold from the Troy mine. The 7.0% @&SRIty will extend until either cumulative prodiart of approximately 9.9 million
ounces of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppemyve receive $10.5 million in cumulative paymentkichever occurs first. The second
royalty interest we acquired in the Troy Mine ipexpetual royalty, which begins at 6.1% on any potidn in excess of 11.0 million ounces of
silver and 94.1 million pounds of copper, and st@psn to a perpetual 2% after cumulative productias exceeded 12.7 million ounces of
silver and 108.2 million pounds of copper.

As of December 31, 2005, Revett estimated thathat @0 per ounce silver price, proven and probedderves related to the Troy mine include
10.4 million tons of ore, at an average grade 41 hunces per ton, containing 16.95 million ourafesilver. In addition, Revett has reported
additional mineralized material at the Troy mingating 46.3 million tons of ore, at an average grafl1.54 ounces per ton of silver.
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As of December 31, 2005, Revett estimated thatbdt @0 per pound copper price, proven and probaiskerves related to the Troy mine
includes 10.4 million tons of ore, at an averagedgrof 0.60 percent, containing 145.1 million paunticopper. In addition, Revett has
reported additional mineralized material at theyTmine totaling 46.3 million tons of ore, at an eage grade of 0.74 percent of copper.

Revett recently announced the planned productiothBaTroy mine is expected to produce approxingate8 million ounces of silver and
15.6 million pounds of copper in calendar 2006 sTikia reduction in estimated production numbgrented to us as of December 31, 2005, of
2.9 million ounces of silver and 24.2 million posnaf copper for calendar year 2006.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Troy mine:
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Bald Mountain Mine

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale NSR royaltyagortion of the Bald Mountain mine. The Bald Mtain mine is an open pit, heap leach
mine operated by Barrick. The Bald Mountain mineisated in White Pine County, approximately 65awmisouth of Elko, Nevada. The Bald
Mountain mine is approximately midway between Edkal Ely, Nevada. From Elko, the mine is reachedrbying on paved State Highway 46
south for approximately 45 miles, then for 30 mibesan improved gravel road to the mine site. FEdy the drive is 30 miles west on paved
United States Highway 50, then 55 miles north anithproved gravel Ruby Marshes Road.

As of December 31, 2005, Barrick informed us thatportion of the mine covered by our royalty iettrcontained proven and probable
reserves of 45.4 million tons of ore, at an aveigmgele of 0.039 ounces per ton, containing appratetg 1.78 million ounces of gold. These
reserves are based on a gold price of $400 pereolmaddition, Barrick has reported that the propeovered by our royalty interest contains
an additional 20.6 million tons of mineralized m&k at an average grade of 0.027 ounces perftgold.
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The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Bald Mountain mine:

]

Robinson Mine

We own a 3% NSR royalty on all mineral productioonfi the Robinson Mine operated by Quadra Mining Mtk Robinson Mine produces
two flotation concentrates for sale to third pamyelters. One concentrate contains copper, goldiaret. The second is a molybdenum
concentrate. Access to the property is via a pangldvay 6 1/2 miles west of Ely, Nevada in WhitaéCounty.

For the year ending December 31, 2005, Quadrarivédrus that the copper and gold reserves were htididn tons, at an average grade of
0.007 ounces per ton of gold containing 1.16 millkunces of gold and a copper grade of 0.69% ety#di2,213 million pounds of copper.
The reserves were calculated at $425 per ounagofdrand $1.15 per pound of copper. Silver and tddgyum reserves were not reported but
are produced and sold as a byproduct.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Robinson mine:
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Mulatos Mine

We own a 0.3 to 1.5% sliding-scale NSR royalty lom Mulatos Mine in southeastern Sonora, Mexico @dprately 137 miles east of the city
of Hermosillo and 186 miles south of the bordehwite United States. Commercial production at thiakbs mine began on April 1, 2006.
Operation of the gold heap leach mine is by Alard@sof December 31, 2005, based upon a gold pfi&®80 per ounce, Alamos has reported
proven and probable reserves of 40.6 million tahgn average grade of 0.047 ounces per ton, cimgal.892 million ounces of gold.
Additional mineralized material, based upon a $§6l price, is reported as 153.2 million tons af at 0.026 ounces per ton.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Mulatos mine:

PIT LOCATION

Martha Mine

We own a 2% NSR royalty on mineral production froemtain properties in Santa Cruz Province, Argentincluding the underground Martha
silver mine operated by Coeur d’Alene. The Marthaenis located in remote southern Argentina. Thaperty is accessed by driving west-
northwest from the coastal town of Puerto San dulihich is approximately 1,300 miles south of BaeAires. From Puerto San Julian the
mine is reached by driving 95 miles on public higlys (the last 25 of which are unpaved roads) aad tive miles on a local road, which is
also unpaved.

As of December 31, 2005, Coeur d’Alene informedhad, at a $6.50 per ounce silver price, estimptegten and probable reserves associated
with our Martha mine royalty includes approximat6él§,000 tons of ore, at an average grade of 6(h8emuper ton, containing approximately
4.05 million ounces of silver. In addition, CoetAkkne has reported an additional 134,000 tons iofenalized material, at an average grade of
45.4 ounces per ton of silver.
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Table 1 below summarizes proven and probable resdor gold, silver and copper that have been teddo us by the operators of our royalty
interests as of December 31, 2005:

TABLE 1

Summary of Proven and Probable Gold Reserves Subj&@ur RoyaltiesV
As of December 31, 2005

Average Golc Gold Containec

Tons Grade Ounces

Royalty Operatol Category@ (millions) (ounces per tor (millions) 3)
Pipeline GSR:® Barrick Proven 29.5 0.03¢ 1.01¢
Probable 72.7 0.02¢ 2.02¢
Pipeline GSR) Barrick Proven 12.4 0.02¢ 0.32:
Probable 35.8 0.03( 1.05%
Pipeline GSR®) Barrick Proven 41.8 0.03: 1.33¢
Probable 108.5 0.02¢ 3.081
Pipeline NVR1(™ Barrick Proven 31.9 0.02¢ 0.937
Probable 84.7 0.02¢ 2.34¢
SJ Claims®) Barrick Reserve 64.9 0.137 8.89¢
Leeville North®) Newmon Proven — — —
Probable 5.1 0.46¢ 2.381
Leeville Soutr®) Newmon Proven 0.086 0.371 0.032
Probable — — —
Bald Mountain(10) Barrick Reserve 45.4 0.03¢ 1.77¢
Robinson(11) Quadra Proven 154.8 0.007 1.12¢
Probable 5.6 0.00¢ 0.03¢
Mulatos(12) Alamos Proven 8.1 0.047 0.37¢
Probable 324 0.047 1.51¢

Summary of Proven and Probable Silver Reserves8utyj Our Royaltie§)
As of December 31, 2005

Silver
Average Silvel Containec
Tons Grade Ounces
Royalty Operatol Category(13) (millions) (ounces per tor (millions) ®
Troy (14) Revett Reserve 10.4 1.41 14.65:
Martha(1s) Coeur ( Alene Proven 0.025 58.6¢ 1.48¢
Probable 0.042 61.2¢ 2.56¢

See footnotes to Table 1 on page 28.
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TABLE 1 (Continued)

Summary of Proven and Probable Copper Reserveg&ubjOur Royaltie§)
As of December 31, 2005

Copper

Average Coppe Containec
Tons Grade Pounds

Royalty Operatol Category(16) (millions) (% Cu) (millions) @)
Troy 4 Revett Reserve 10.4 0.6C 124.85¢
Robinson(11) Quadra Proven 154.8 0.6¢ 2,131
Probable 5.6 0.7t 82.C

See footnotes to Table 1 on page 28.
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Footnotes to Table 1

@

@

(©)

4)
®)
6)
U]

“Reserv” is that part of a mineral deposit which could beresnically and legally extracted or produced attiime of the reserv
determination

“Proven (Measured) Reser” are reserves for which (a) quantity is computechfdimensions revealed in outcrops, trenches, wgekor
drill holes, and the grade is computed from thelteof detailed sampling, and (b) the sites fepiection, sampling and measurement are
spaced so closely and the geologic charactervugefialefined that the size, shape, depth and mimeraent of the reserves are well
established

“Probable (Indicated) Reser” are reserves for which the quantity and grade amgpated from information similar to that used fooyer
(measured) reserves, but the sites for inspeciEmmpling, and measurement are farther apart athegwise less adequately spaced. The
degree of assurance of probable (indicated) resealthough lower than that for proven (measuresgnves, is high enough to assume
geological continuity between points of observat

Amounts shown represent 100% of the reserves dubjeur royalty interest and do not take into astdosses in processing the ¢

Gold reserves were calculated by the variousaipes at $400 per ounce except for the Robinsome mvimere Quadra calculated reserves at
$425 per ounce, and the Mulatos mine where Alaratisitated reserves at $350 per out

Contained ounces or contained pounds shown haa#aarance for dilution of ore in the mining processl do not take into account los
in processing the or

GSR1 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers the Reserve Cla
GSR2 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers an area outside of treeRe Claims
GSR3 is a 0.71% fixed rate royalty that coverssdime area as GSR1 and GS

NVR1 is a 0.39% net value royalty that covers puatidun from the majority of the GAS Claims, whichvens a portion of the Pipelir
Mining Complex that excludes the Pipeline pit. NVRXalculated by deducting contract defined prsicgsrelated and associated capital
costs but not mining costs from revenue receivethbyoperator

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims. SJn@alid not provide a breakdown of proven and prtebedserves
We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, on the Leeville Proje

We own a 1.75 to 3.5% sliding-scale NSR royahyagortion of the Bald Mountain mine. Bald Mountaiine did not provide a
breakdown of proven and probable reser

We own a 3.0% NSR royalty on the Robinson m
We own a 0.03 to 1.5% slidi-scale NSR royalty on the Mulatos mii
Silver reserves were calculated by the operato3 &0 per ounce for Troy and $6.50 per ounce fartivh mine

We own a 7.0% GSR, a 6.1% GSR royalty and a 2%epeaproyalty in the Troy mine, subject to certaimduction thresholds. The T
mine did not provide a breakdown of proven and pbdb reserve:

We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha mi
Copper reserves were calculated by the operat&%.60 per pound for Troy and $1.15 per pound foibiRson.
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Table 2 below summarizes mineralization for goldies and copper which have been reported to uthbyperators of our royalty interests as
of December 31, 2005:

TABLE 2

Gold Mineralization Subject to Our Royalties
As of December 31, 2005

Average Golc

Tons Grade
Royalty Operatol Category (millions) (ounces per tol
Pipeline GSR:2 Barrick Mineralization 75.2 0.022
Pipeline GSR3 Barrick Mineralization 60.8 0.032
Pipeline GSR®) Barrick Mineralization 136.0 0.026
Pipeline NVR16) Barrick Mineralization 96.4 0.028
Leeville North(®) Newmont Mineralization 1.4 0.435
Leeville SoutH®) Newmont Mineralization 0.021 0.300
Bald Mountain(”) Barrick Mineralization 20.6 0.027
Mulatos®) Alamos Mineralization 153.2 0.026

Silver Mineralization Subject to Our Royalties
As of December 31, 2005

Average Silvel

Tons Grade
Royalty Operatot Category (millions) (ounces per tol
Troy © Revett Mineralization 46.3 1.54
Martha(10) Coeur (Alene Mineralization 0.134 45.4

Copper Mineralization Subject to Our Royaltles
As of December 31, 2005

Average Copps

Tons Grade
Royalty Operatot Category (millions) (%)
Troy © Revett Mineralization 46.3 0.74

See footnotes to this table on page 30.
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Footnotes to Table 2

@

@
®
4)
®)

(6)
@
®)
©)
(10)

Mineralization has not been included in the progad probable ore reserve estimates becauselemeght drilling indicates a sufficient
qguantity and grade to warrant further exploration@velopment expenditures, these deposits dousdifgjas commercially mineable ore
bodies until further drilling and metallurgical vkoare completed, and until other economic and teathfeasibility factors based upon
such work are resolve

GSR1 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers the Reserve Cla
GSR2 is a slidin-scale royalty that covers an area outside of tre=Re Claims
GSR3 is a 0.71% fixed rate royalty that coverssdu@e area as GSR1 and GS

NVR1 is a 0.39% net value royalty that covers puatiden from the GAS Claims, which covers a portidritee Pipeline Mining Comple
that excludes the Pipeline pit. NVR1 is calculdtgdleducting contract defined processing-relatetamsociated capital costs but not
mining costs from revenue received by the oper.

We own a carried working interest, equal to a 1M3R royalty, on a majority of the Leeville Proje

We own a 1.75 to 3.5% slidi-scale NSR royalty on a portion of the Bald Mountaime.

We own a 0.03 to 1.5% slidi-scale NSR royalty on the Mulatos mit

We own a 7.0% GSR royalty, a 6.1% GSR royalty a@86eperpetual royalty in the Troy mine, subjectéotain production thresholc
We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha mi
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Historical Production

The following table discloses historical productionthe properties that are subject to our royadtgrests as reported by the operators of the

mines, for the past three fiscal years:

Historical Production in Ounces (Pounds for CopjpgrProperty

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

Pipeline Mining Complex (golc
Bald Mountain (gold

SJ Claims (gold

Leeville North® (gold)
Leeville South (gold
Robinson mine? (gold)
Robinson mine? (copper)
Mulatos mine®) (gold)
Troy mine (silver)®

Troy mine (copper®
Martha mine (silver®

@ Production at Leeville North began in the thirderalar quarter of 200

(@  The Robinson royalty was acquired during our fisesr 2006
®  The Mulatos royalty was acquired during our fispedr 2006
@ The Troy mine began production during our fiscary2005.
®  We did not receive historical production for fisyalar 2004
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2006

598,974

126,317
1,005,54¢
28,938
54,758
13,082
27,214,57
23,912
884,528
7,091,87¢
2,284,784

2005

973,602

28,037
531,342
N/A
93,180
N/A

N/A

N/A
522,145

4,584,57.
1,795,85

2004
973,220
33,894
401,913
N/A
105,505
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
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Royalties on Development Stage Properties

The following is a description of our interestgayalties on development stage properties. Therg@arven and probable reserves associated
with these properties at this time.

Taparko Mine

We own a production payment equivalent to a 15.08RGTB-GSR1) royalty on all gold produced from fraparko Project, located in
Burkina Faso and operated by Somita. TB-GSR1 regriaforce until cumulative production of 804,42@naes of gold is achieved or until
cumulative payments of $35 million have been madedyal Gold, whichever is earlier. We also owrredpiction payment equivalent to a
GSR sliding-scale royalty (TB-GSR2) on all gold guoed from the Taparko Project. TB-GSR2 is effectiencurrently with TB-GSR1, and
remains in-force until the termination of TB-GSR1.

We also own a perpetual 2% GSR royalty (TB-GSR@alty on all gold produced from the Taparko Propeta. TB-GSR3 will commence
upon termination of TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 royaltiegqortion of the TB-GSR3 royalty is associated wattisting proven and probable
reserves and has been classified as a developitagetreyalty interest. The remaining portion of i@ GSR3 royalty, which is not currently
associated with proven and probable reservesassified as an exploration stage royalty interest.

Royalties on Exploration Stage Properties

The following are descriptions of our interestsagalties on exploration stage properties. Theeenarproven and probable reserves associatec
with these properties at this time.

Mule Canyon

We own a 5.0% NSR royalty on a portion of the M@knyon property located in Lander County, Nevagpr@imately 12 miles southeast of
Battle Mountain, Nevada. This property is contrdlley Newmont.

Buckhorn South Project

We own a 16.5% NPI royalty on the Buckhorn Southjéat. The Buckhorn South project is approxima&eB00 acres and is located in Eureka
County, Nevada, approximately 50 miles southwe#lkd, Nevada and approximately two miles soutBoékhorn mine. The property
consists of 265 unpatented mining claims. Of the @&ims that comprise Buckhorn South, we leasddcl@ms and staked the balance of the
project area. The leased claims are burdened bylative third party royalties equal to a 4% NSRaiby; the remaining claims are subject to
another third party 1% NSR royalty.

Long Valley

We own a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Long Valley gotdject 10 miles east of Mammoth Lakes, Califorfiiae project is a claim group
consisting of 95 claims. The project is controligdl under evaluation by Vista Gold Corporation.
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RG Russia

On June 20, 2003, through a newly formed wholly-ed/subsidiary, RG Russia, Inc., we entered intaggeement for exploration in Russia
with a subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Cogtion, who holds an exploration license grantedngyRussian government. As part of the
exploration agreement, we provided exploration fngdotaling $1.3 million to vest in a 1% NSR royainterest. On May 3, 2005, the
subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Corporagatered into an agreement with Fortress Mineralp@ation (“Fortress”), whereby
Fortress acquired a 51% indirect interest in thetlBye project, with an option to earn an additi®896 indirect interest by completion of
certain work requirements. Our 1% NSR royalty reman effect as to 100% of the project. Fortresscidrely exploring the property.

Taparko Mine

We own a perpetual 2% GSR royalty (TB-GSR3) royattyall gold produced from the Taparko Project af@&GSR3 will commence upon
termination of TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 (developmengas}aoyalties. A portion of the TB-GSR3 royaltyaissociated with existing proven and
probable reserves and has been classified as fogement stage royalty interest. The remaining portf the TB-GSR3 royalty, which is not
currently associated with proven and probable vesgiis classified as an exploration stage royatgrest.

In addition, we own a 0.75% milling fee royalty (M8R1) on all gold processed through the TaparkgeRtgrocessing facilities that is mined
from any area outside of the Taparko Project anebject to a cap of 1.1 million tons per year.

Taranis Resources Inc.

On November 4, 2005, we entered into two Exploratind Earn-In Agreements (the “Agreements”) withahds with respect to its exploration
program in Finland. As part of the first Agreememé will obtain a 2% NSR royalty and future earrrights on any new property acquired by
Taranis in Finland as a result of its regional ergtion program.

As part of the Agreements, we agreed to providéifumtotaling $500,000 to Taranis for exploratioarivon the Kettukuusikko property in
Lapland, Finland, in exchange for a 2% NSR royaltythe property. As of June 30, 2006, we have fdride entire $500,000 commitment. '
also have an option to fund up to an additionald$800. If we fund the entire additional amount,wi earn a 51% joint venture interest in 1
Kettukuusikko project, and we will release our 2%Rroyalty. We have elected to exercise this opliothe event that we do not fully fund
the $600,000 to earn the joint venture interestywwald retain our 2% NSR royalty.

Argentine Royalties

Hidefield controls properties located in the easfaart of the Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, whidnot in production. We own a 2% NSR
royalty on these properties, which have been dgtieplored during our fiscal year 2006.
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Simon Creek

We own a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Simon Creek priypdihe Simon Creek property is located in Eurekaily, Nevada, and is operated by
Barrick.

Horse Mountain

We own a 0.25% in the Horse Mountain property. Hioese Mountain property is located in Lander Couhtgvada, and is operated by
Barrick.

Ferris/Cooks Creek

We own a 1.50% net value royalty interest on ne¢meies derived from the Ferris/Cooks Creek propertych is located in Lander County,
Nevada, and is operated by Barri

Rye
We own a 0.5% NSR royalty on the Rye property. Rige property is located in Pershing County, Nevadd, is operated by Barrick.
BSC

We own a 2.5% NSR royalty on the BSC property. BB property is located in Elko County, Nevada, snoperated by Nevada Pacific
Gold.

Copper Basin
We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on a 60% non-vesteddstan the Copper Basin project, located in Lar@eunty, Nevada.
ICBM

We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on a vested 67% intéeggiroximate) on the ICBM project, located in Lan@€ounty and Humboldt County,
Nevada. The ICBM project is currently under expliaralease to Staccato Gol“Staccato”).

Long Peak

We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on the Long Peak prpjecated in Lander County, Nevada. The Long Peajept is currently under
exploration lease to Staccato.

Dixie Flats
We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on the Dixie Flats peojéocated in Elko County, Nevada. We continuaatd 1,280 acres of patented land
through an exploration agreement at the Dixie Riadgect. The Dixie Flats project is currently unégploration lease to Staccato.
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Exploration Properties

Sparrow Hawk Claims

We continue to hold 31 unpatented mining claimsnfiQuicksilver Phenomenon, LLC on lands locatedseast of the Cortez Joint Venture
area, Eureka County, Nevada. There are no reservesources identified on this project as of J8®,e2006.

Hoosac Project

We continue to hold a direct ownership in 16 unpie claims and an indirect interest in 192 unpgaténlaims through leases in the Hoosac
Project. The Hoosac Project is located in EurekanBg Nevada. The Hoosac Project is not currentlyen exploration lease.

Bulgarian Exploration

We own a 50% interest in Greek American Exploratitth, a Bulgarian private limited company that laasagreement with the Bulgarian
Committee of Geology and Mineral Resources to cohdeological research and exploration on a licém&ailgaria.

Greek American Exploration joined with Phelps Dodggloration Corporation to form a Bulgarian compaamed Sofia Minerals Ltd. Sofia
Minerals is held equally by Greek American Explamtand Phelps Dodge Exploration. There was noce&fibn activity during fiscal year
2006 and Sofia Minerals does not currently hold emycession agreements with the Bulgarian Committé€eology and Mineral Resources.
There were no expenses incurred in fiscal year 2006are currently in discussions with the othenerg of the companies to determine
appropriate actions to dissolve the Bulgarian camgsa

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Casmalia Resources Hazardous Waste Disposal Site

On March 24, 2000, the EPA notified Royal Gold @2dother entities that they were considered PREsmhe Comprehensive Environmer
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1380amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmalia Resotitagardous Waste Disposal Site (the
“Site”) in Santa Barbara County, California. EPAlegation that Royal Gold was a PRP was baseti@disposal of allegedly hazardous
petroleum exploration wastes at the Site by RoyatlG predecessor, Royal Resources, Inc., durif@8 Ehd 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 28@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP graugeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States o&Aca intending to settle their liability for thenltled States of America’s past and future
cleanup costs incurred at the Site. Based on the minuolaime of allegedly hazardous waste that RoyabRe®s, Inc. disposed of at the S
our share of the $25.3 million settlement amourdg $207,858, which we deposited into the escrowwacihat the PRP group set up for that
purpose in January 2002. The funds were paid ttJtlieed States of America on May 9, 2003. The Whiates of America may only pursue
Royal Gold
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and the other PRPs for additional clean-up codteiUnited States of America’s total clean-up sadtthe Site significantly exceed the
expected cost of approximately $272 million. Weded this to be a remote possibility; therefore,aoasider our potential liability to the
United States of America to be resolved.

The Partial Consent Decree does not resolve Roglal'&potential liability to the State of Califom{the “State”) for its response costs or for
natural resource damages arising from the Site. Skate has not expressed any interest in pursw@ngal resource damages. However, on
October 1, 2002, the State notified Royal Gold tredrest of the PRP group that participated instiement with the United States of Ame
that the State would be seeking response costmtptpproximately $12.5 million from them. It i®thknown what portion of these costs the
State expects to recover from this PRP group itese¢nt. If the State agrees to a volumetric atiocawe will be liable for 0.438% of any
settlement amount. However, we expect that ouresbiliability will be completely covered by a $ifllion, zero-deductible insurance policy
that the PRP group purchased specifically to ptateelf from claims such as that brought by that&tNo notices or any other forms of acti
with respect to Royal Gold have been made by thgeSince its October 1, 2002 notice.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our sectnitgers during the quarter ended June 30, 200€ulRerom our annual meeting will |
described in Part Il, Item 4 of our report thatl\wi filed on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending Deber 31, 2006.

ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Royal Gold’s executive officers as of August 250@0vere as follows:

Name Age Office

Stanley Dempse 67 Executive Chairma

Tony Jensel 44 President and Chief Executive Offic
Karen P. Gros 52 Vice President and Corporate Secre
Randy L. Parce 61 Vice President and General Cour
Stefan L. Wenge 33 Chief Financial Office
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ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Current Stockholders

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Glob&cE&larket (“Nasdaq”) under the symbol “RGLD” amulthe Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol “RGL.” The following table shovwe thigh and low sales prices, in U.S. dollarsttiercommon stock on Nasdaq, for each
quarter since July 1, 2004.

Sales Price
Fiscal Year High Low
200t First Quarter (July, Aug., Sef— 2004) $ 17.11 $ 12.3(
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De— 2004) $ 19.0: $ 14.9¢
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2005) $ 19.9¢ $ 15.3¢
Fourth Quarter (AprilMay, June— 2005) $ 20.5C $ 15.9¢
200¢ First Quarter (July, Aug., Sej— 2005) $ 30.2( $ 18.7¢
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De— 2005) $ 35.6¢ $ 20.9¢
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2006) $ 41.6¢€ $ 27.01
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2006) $ 37.5C $ 23.0(

As of August 25, 2006, there were approximately gio&reholders of record of our common stock.

Dividends

For calendar year 2006, we declared an annualefidaf $0.22 per share of common stock, in fourtgug payments of $0.055 each. We
paid the first payment of $0.055 per share on Jgn2@, 2006, to shareholders of record at the abddrisiness on January 6, 2006. We paid
the second payment of $0.055 per share on Apri2@Q6, to shareholders of record at the close siness on April 7, 2006. We paid the third
payment of $0.055 on July 28, 2006 to shareholderscord at the close of business on July 7, 2006 anticipate paying the fourth payment
of $0.055 on October 20, 2006, to shareholderseadnd at the close of business on October 6, 2006.

For calendar year 2005, we declared an annualefidaf $0.20 per share of common stock, in fourtgulg payments of $0.05 each. We paid
the first payment of $0.05 per share on Januar@Q@5, to shareholders of record at the close sifgss on January 7, 2005. We paid the
second payment of $0.05 per share on April 22, 2@0shareholders of record at the close of businesApril 8, 2005. We paid the third
payment of $0.05 on July 22, 2005 to shareholdersaord at the close of business on
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July 8, 2005. We paid the fourth payment of $0.0%0xtober 21, 2005, to shareholders of recordeatlse of business on October 7, 2005.

We currently plan to continue to pay dividends arakendar year basis, subject to the discretiamuoboard of directors. However, our board
of directors may determine not to declare a divitleased on a number of factors including the galtkpeconomic and market conditions,
the financial needs of opportunities that mighsauin the future.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not make any unregistered sales of our ggsuduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Statements of Operations Data

For The Years Ended June :

Amounts in thousands, except per share 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Royalty revenu $28,38( $25,30: $21,35: $15,78¢ $12,32:
Exploration and business developm 3,391 1,89: 1,392 1,23: 61€
General and administrative expel 5,022 3,69t 2,92: 1,96¢€ 1,87¢
Depreciation and depletic 4,261 3,20¢ 3,31« 2,85t 2,28¢
Impairment of mining asse — — — 16€ —
Current and deferred tax expense (ben 5,101 4,10z 3,65¢ 1,88t (6,777
Net income 11,35( 11,45 8,87z 6,752 10,69¢
Basic earnings per she $ 0.5C $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4: $ 0.34 $ 0.6C
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.4¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4z $ 0.3¢ $ 0.5¢
Dividends declared per she $ 0.22 $ 0.2 $ 0.1 $ 0.1C $ 0.07¢

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Amounts in thousanc 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Total asset $172,26( $102,31¢ $93,52: $86,35¢ $29,59(
Working capital 81,45: 53,33( 49,46( 34,29¢ 11,99(
Long-term obligations 98 97 108 118 121
Deferred tax liabilities 7,17¢ 7,58¢ 8,07¢ 8,741 —
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

Royal Gold, Inc., together with its subsidiariesehgaged in the business of acquiring and manggewous metals royalties. Royalties are
passive (non-operating) interests in mining prgjelat provide the right to revenue from the progdter deducting specified costs, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapagects that are in production or near productivexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsadiptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wedt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgrihe 2006 fiscal year, we focused on the
management of our existing royalty interests, ttgussition of royalty interests, and the creatiémayalty interests through financing and
strategic exploration alliances.

Our financial results are closely tied to the poégold and production from our royalty propertiBairing the 2006 fiscal year, the price of
gold averaged $527 per ounce compared with an gegrnace of $422 per ounce for the 2005 fiscal yAara result of the increased gold pri
our GSR1 sliding-scale royalty rate at the PipeNiring Complex paid out at rates ranging from 4.&%6.0% compared with rates ranging
from 4.0% to 4.5% during the prior period. Loweoguction at the Pipeline Mining Complex (which wagely offset by rising metal prices
and an increase in our GSR1 sliding-scale royailtg)r an increase in revenues from SJ Claims attiMauntain, and payments from the
recently acquired Mulatos and Robinson royaltissiited in revenues of $28,380,143 during the 2@8@&Fyear, compared with total revenues
of $25,302,332 during the 2005 fiscal year.

Our principal mineral property interests are sethfdelow:

= Pipeline: Four royalty interests at the Pipelinealig Complex, which includes the Pipeline and Sdiffeline, GAP and Crossroa
gold deposits. The Pipeline Mining Complex is opedleby the Cortez Joint Venture, which is a joiehture between Barrick (60%),
and Kennecott Explorations (Australia) Ltd. (40®subsidiary of Rio Tinto plc. Our four royalty énésts at the Pipeline Mining
Complex are

0 GSRI1- A sliding-scale GSR royalty that covers the current minegigot, which includes the Pipeline and South Pipe
deposits, and ranges from 0.4% at a gold pricevb8R@10 per ounce to 5.0% at a gold price of $4#opace or above

0 GSR2 - A sliding-scale GSR royalty that cevareas outside the Pipeline deposit and ranges@drd2% at a gold price below
$210 per ounce to 9.0% at a gold price of $470@pece or above

0 GSR3- A 0.71% fixed rate GSR royalty on the productione®d by GSR1 and GSR2; a
o0 NVR1-A fixed rate 0.39% net value royalty on all prodanton the South Pipeline, Crossroads and somiegeoBAP deposit, b
not covering the Pipeline depos
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= Leeville: We hold a 1.8% carried working interesjual to a 1.8% NSR royalty, on the majoritytaf t eeville Project, which includes
Leeville South and Leeville North underground mjresated in Nevada and operated by Newm

= SJ Claims: We hold a 0.9% NSR royalty on the Sih@awhich covers a portion of the Be-Post open pit mine, at the Goldstr
operation, located in Nevada and operated by Bat

= Troy: Two royalty interests in the Troy undergrowilder and copper mine, operated by Revett, lacataorthwestern Montan

0 A production payment equivalent to a 7.0% GSR ryyahtil either cumulative production of approxirat9.9 million ounces c
silver and 84.6 million pounds of copper, or weeige $10.5 million in cumulative payments, whichewecurs first; an

0 A GSR royalty which begins at 6.1% on anydpretion in excess of 11.0 million ounces of silaad 94.1 million pounds of
copper, and steps down to a 2% GSR royalty afterutative production has exceeded 12.7 million osrafesilver and
108.2 million pounds of coppe

= Martha: A 2% NSR royalty on a number of propertieSanta Cruz Province, Argentina, including thertida silver mine, which i
operated by Coeur Alene Mines Corporation; ar

= Bald Mountain: A 1.75% NSR sliding-scale royaltjerest that increases to 2% at a gold price pf@pmately $811 per ounce and
covers a portion of the Bald Mountain mine in Nezjagperated by Barricl
During the 2006 fiscal year, we acquired the folloywroyalty interests:

= Taparko: Four royalty interests on the Taparko&utjlocated in Burkina Faso and operated by HigleROur four royalty interests
the Taparko Project ar

0 TB-GSR1- A production payment equivalent to a 15% GSR rgyait all gold produced from the Taparko Projecilwgither
cumulative production of 804,420 ounces of goldakieved or until we receive $35 million in cumidatpayments

0 TB-GSR2 - A production payment equivalerd 8SR sliding-scale royalty on all gold produceahfrthe Taparko Project. TB-
GSR2 remains in force until the termination of-GSR1;

0 TB-GSR3- A perpetual 2% GSR royalty on all gold producedrfrine Taparko Project area. -GSR3 will commence upon tt
termination of the T-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties; an

0o TB-MR1 - A 0.75% milling fee royalty on alblgl, subject to annual caps, processed througfidparko Project processing
facilities that is mined from any area outside Tlagparko Project are

= Robinson: A 3% NSR royalty on the Robinson mineated in eastern Nevada and operated by Quadr:
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= Mulatos: A sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Mastmine, located in Sonora, Mexico, and operatedlagnos. The sliding-scale NSR
royalty, capped at two million ounces of gold protion, ranges from 0.30% payout for gold pricete$300 per ounce up to a
maximum rate of 1.50% for gold prices above $400cpmce.

Estimates received from the mine operators dutieditst quarter of calendar year 2006 indicated gnoduction, attributable to our royalty
interests, for calendar year 2006 are expectee @slkfollows:

Royalty Operatot Metal Production

Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 385,000 o:
Pipeline GSR! Barrick Gold 385,000 o:
Pipeline NVR1 Barrick Gold 213,000 o:
Leeville North Newmont Gold 196,000 o:
Leeville Soutr Newmont Gold 29,000 oz
SJ Claims Barrick Gold 903,000 o:
Bald Mountain Barrick Gold 248,000 o:
Robinsor(®) Quadra Gold 53,500 oz
Mulatos(®@) Alamos Gold 110,000 to 120,000 ¢
Troy Revett Silver 1.8 million oz
Martha Coeur ' Alene Silver 2.5 million oz
Troy Revett Coppet 15.6 million Ibs
Robinsor® Quadrs Copper 125 to 130 million lbs
Robinsor@ Quadrs Molybdenum 0.5 to 1.0 million Ib<®

(M Production estimates are for the full calendar yRaceipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourth quarter of fiscal year 20C
(@ Production estimates are for the full calendar yRawalty revenue began accruing to us on Aprddné.

®  In August 2006, Quadra reported that their oagimolybdenum production estimates will not be nGrtadra was not able to provide
updated molybdenum production estimates at this.!
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During the first six months of calendar 2006, thieeroperators have reported production attributedteur royalty interests as follows:

Royalty Operatot Metal Productior

Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 174,376 o:
Pipeline GSR! Barrick Gold 174,376 o:
Pipeline NVR1 Barrick Gold 57,663 0z
Leeville North Newmont Gold 19,875 oz
Leeville Soutr Newmont Gold 18,827 oz
SJ Claims Barrick Gold 503,952 o:
Bald Mountain Barrick Gold 100,598 o:
Robinsor(t) Quadrz Gold 13,082 o:
Mulatos(®@) Alamos Gold 23,912 oz
Troy Revett Silver 449,075 o:
Martha Coeur [’ Alene Silver 1,176,500 o:
Troy Revett Coppet 3,580,454. b
Robinsor® Quadrz Copper 27,214,572 Ik
Robinsor® Quadrs Molybdenum 60,743 lbs

M Royalty revenue commenced during our fourth quaot fiscal year 2006. We began receiving revefnum the Robinson royalty as a
$20 million reclamation trust account was fully died by Quadra during our fourth quarter of fisdz0&

@ Royalty revenue commenced effective April 1, 20R6yalty revenue began accruing to us on April D&
Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements, infeonity with accounting principles generally acaspin the United States of America,
requires management to make estimates and assms\plioese estimates and assumptions affect thetedpmmounts of assets and liabilities,
at the date of the financial statements, as welhaseported amount of revenues and expensesydierreporting period.

Our most critical accounting estimates relate toamsumptions regarding future gold prices ancettienates of reserves and recoveries of
operators. We rely on reserve estimates reporteabégperators on the properties in which we hayalty interests. These estimates and the
underlying assumptions affect the potential impaints of long-lived assets and the ability to realicome tax benefits associated with
deferred tax assets. These estimates and assumplsanaffect the rate at which we charge depieaciaind amortization to earnings. On an
ongoing basis, management evaluates these estiaratesssumptions; however, actual amounts couierdibm these estimates and
assumptions. The reserves reported by our varipesators as of December 31, 2005, were based oltggce of $400 per ounce, except
Alamos who calculated reserves at $350 per ound&aadra who calculated reserves at $425 per ounce.

We based our deferred tax asset valuation on a @d26unce gold price, as of June 30, 2006. Ifadhg-term gold price is substantially lower,
these estimates would need to change and coulll iresoaterial write-offs of assets and the needstablish a valuation allowance against the
deferred tax asset.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2006, we had current assets of $84li8n compared to current liabilities of $3.3lh@n for a current ratio of 26 to 1. This
compares to current assets of $56.2 million andectfiabilities of $2.9 million at June 30, 200B6sulting in a current ratio of 19 to 1. The
increase is due primarily to an increase in ouh @a®l equivalents. We continue to have no long-thebi.

In September 2005, we sold 2,227,912 shares of@amon stock in an underwritten public offeringaatirice of $26.00 per share, resulting in
proceeds of approximately $54.7 million, which & of the underwriter’s discount of $2.9 milliondatmransaction costs of approximately
$327,000. The net proceeds from this equity offeliave been and will continue to be used to fuedattguisition and financing of additional
royalty interests and for general corporate purpose

During fiscal year 2006, liquidity needs were nretti $28.4 million in royalty revenues, net procefrdsn issuance of common stock of
approximately $58.6 million, our available cashorgses, and interest and other income of $3.2anilli

We have a line of credit from HSBC that may be usealcquire producing royalties and for generapoaate purposes. During our second
quarter, we finalized a line of credit expansiotiviH SBC to raise the availability under the linecoédit from $10 million to $30 million. Any
loan under the line of credit will be secured hyartgage on our GSR1, GSR3 and NVRL1 royaltiesePipeline Mining Complex, and by a
security interest in the cash proceeds from oualtgyinterests. The maturity date of our line aédit was extended in July 2006 for one year to
December 31, 2009. As of June 30, 2006, no funds haen drawn under the line of credit.

We believe that our current financial resourcesfands generated from operations will be adequatover anticipated expenditures for
general and administrative expense costs, exptoratnd business development costs, and capitahdikpees for the foreseeable future. Our
current financial resources are also availabledgalty acquisitions and to fund dividends. Ourdeterm capital requirements are primarily
affected by our ongoing business development gietiviln the event of a substantial royalty or otliEquisition, we may explore debt or equity
financing opportunities.

Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2006 aarfollows:

Payments Due by Peric

Less thar More thar
Contractual Obligation Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating lease $430,98¢ $119,06° $248,19¢ $63,72¢ $ —
Long-term retirement obligatio 97,74¢ 26,40( 52,80( 18,54¢ —
Total $528,73t $145,46° $300,99¢ $82,27¢ $ =

For information on our contractual obligations, d&se 10 to the Consolidated Financial StatementieuPart Il, Item 8.Financial Statemen
and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report omi20-K. Royal Gold believes it will be able to fliall existing obligations from net cash
provided by operating activities.

43




Table of Contents

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006, Compared withaF¥ear Ended June 30, 2005

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, we redandeincome of $11,350,081, or $0.50 per basicestiad $0.49 per diluted share, as
compared to net income of $11,453,715, or $0.5%psic share and $0.54 per diluted share, forisiealfyear ended June 30, 2005.

For fiscal year 2006, we received total royaltyamwe of $28,380,143, at an average gold price 7 $&r ounce, compared to royalty revenue
of $25,302,332, at an average gold price of $42dpace for fiscal year 2005. Royalty revenue deddorresponding production, attributable
to our royalty interests, for fiscal year 2006 camga to fiscal year 2005 is as follows:

Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Fiscal Yeai Fiscal Yeai
2006 Fiscal Yea 2005
Royalty 2006 Royalty Fiscal Yeal
Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Productiol Revenue 2005 Productiol
Pipeline Gold $16,813,05 598,97: 0z. $21,392,63 973,602 o0:
Leeville Gold $ 767,74 83,69t 0z. $ 763,01 93,180 oz
SJ Claims Gold $ 4,783,89 1,005,54! oz. $ 2,026,05: 531,342 o:
Bald Mountain Gold $ 1,492,65! 126,31 oz. $ 208,10: 28,037 oz
Robinsor® $ 2,202,74 N/A
Gold 13,08: oz. N/A
Coppet 27,214,57 Ibs N/A
Molybdenum 60,74: lbs N/A
Mulatos®) Gold $ 225,00( 23,917 oz. N/A N/A
Troy $ 1,693,44 $ 749,36
Silver 884,52¢ oz. 522,145 o:
Copper 7,091,871 Ibs 4,584,574 Ib:
Martha Silver $ 401,58¢ 2,284,78. oz. $ 163,16 1,795,853 o:

1) Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourtfoguarter of fiscal year 200

The increase in royalty revenue compared with figear 2005 resulted from a higher GSR sliding-scalalty rate from the Pipeline Mining
Complex due to higher gold prices in fiscal yeab@0an increase in revenues from the SJ Claim®BafdiMountain, and payments from the
recently acquired Mulatos and Robinson royaltidgese increases were partially offset by a decriegseduction at the Pipeline Mining
Complex.

Cost of operations increased to $2,288,347 fofiiwal year ended June 30, 2006, compared to $3837or the fiscal year ended June 30,
2005. The increase was primarily due to mash employee compensation expense of $380,5@%sdisd below, and an increase in Nevadi
Proceeds Tax expenditures due to increased royalgnues at our SJ Claims and Bald Mountain ra@&lfThese increases were partially ol
by a decrease in consulting services.
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General and administrative expenses increased,02$357 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 200@pared to $3,695,098 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2005. The increase is primarilytalmen-cash employee compensation expense of $08Bdiscussed below.

Exploration and business development expensesasedeto $3,396,733 for the fiscal year ended JOn2@6, compared to $1,892,865 for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The increasénsply due to non-cash employee compensation esgpeh$932,066, discussed below, and
an increase in our exploration funding of approxeha$463,000, due to the Taranis Resources exmaralliance, as discussed in Note 2 in
the accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanceteBtents.

Depreciation and depletion increased to $4,261f66the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, compar&3,£204,984 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. The increase is primarily due teemeed production at our SJ Claims.

As discussed in Note 3 in the accompanying Noté&otesolidated Financial Statements, the Finanoigiofinting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2084gre-Based PaymefiSFAS 123(R)”). SFAS 123(R) requires all sharedzhpayments to
employees, including grants of employee stock otioestricted stock, and performance shares, tedzgnized in the financial statements
based on their fair values. The Company has ad&f&$ 123(R) as of July 1, 2005, using the modifieaspective application transition
method. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 123{R3,Company recorded total non-cash stock comfiensexpense related to our equity
compensation plans of $2,777,686 for the fiscat yealed June 30, 2006, which is allocated amongataperations, general and
administrative expenses, and exploration and besidevelopment expenses in our consolidated stateragoperations and comprehensive
income. The total non-cash compensation expensesadid to cost of operations, general and admétigdr, and exploration and business
development for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2886 $380,565, $1,465,055 and $932,066, respéctiliee total income tax benefit
associated with non-cash stock compensation expeasapproximately $1,011,078 for the fiscal yeatesl June 30, 2006.

Interest and other income increased to $3,203,868¢ fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, compar&83d,136 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. The increase is primarily due tbérignterest rates and an increase in funds avaifabinvesting over the prior period. The
increase in funds available for investing is priityadue to the public offering of our common statikring the first quarter of fiscal year 2006
and cash flow from operations.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, we rezedriurrent and deferred tax expense totaling $5680 compared with $4,102,462 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This resulted ieffective tax rate of 31.0% in the current pericaimpared with 26.4% in the prior period.
The increase in our effective tax rate is the tesiuihe release of a valuation allowance assogiaith the sale of available for sale securitie
approximately $320,000 and the recognition of Cadiorloss carryforwards totaling approximately $080,during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005, Compared withaFi¥éear Ended June 30, 2004

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we redangdeincome of $11,453,715, or $0.55 per basicestiad $0.54 per diluted share, as
compared to net income of $8,871,679, or $0.43peic share and $0.42 per diluted share, for fvalffiyear ended June 30, 2004.

For fiscal year 2005, we received total royaltyamwe of $25,302,332, at an average gold price 22 $&r ounce, compared to royalty revenue
of $21,353,071, at an average gold price of $38%pace for fiscal year 2004. Royalty revenue dredorresponding production, attributable
to our royalty interests, for fiscal year 2005 camga to fiscal year 2004 is as follows:
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Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2005 864 2

Fiscal Yeal Fiscal Yeal
2005 Royalty Fiscal Year 200! 2004 Royalty Fiscal Year 200
Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Production Revenue Production
Pipeline Gold $21,392,63 973,602 o0: $18,737,67 973,220 o:
Leeville Gold $ 763,01 93,180 oz $ 729,71 105,505 o:
SJ Claims Gold $ 2,026,05: 531,342 o: $ 1,398,62! 401,913 o:
Bald Mountain Gold $ 208,10: 28,037 oz $ 230,71 33,894 0z
Troy @ $ 749,36. N/A
Silver 522,145 o: N/A
Coppet 4,584,574 |b N/A
Martha® Silver $ 163,16 1,795,853 0: $ 256,33t N/A

@ Troy mine began production during our fiscal ye@d2.
(@ We did not receive production data from the Marttiae for our fiscal year 200.

The increase in royalty revenue compared with figear 2004 resulted from a higher sliding-scalgaity rate from the Pipeline Mining
Complex due to a higher gold price in fiscal ye@®%2, and the addition of revenues from the acquiieg mine royalties.

Cost of operations increased to $1,847,343 fofiiwal year ended June 30, 2005, compared to $861Zor the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004, primarily related to an increase in NevadaMeceeds Tax expenditures of approximately $108), ,@hich is associated with increased
royalty revenues. Nevada net proceeds of mines tasepaid on all royalties received which arelatted to production in Nevada, at a rate of
5% of gross cash receipts. The increase is alsdéodae increase in consulting fees, which weretedl#o the Crossroads project at the Cortez
Joint Venture.

General and administrative expenses increased,6@$898 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 200%pared to $2,923,289 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2004, primarily due to increasedwumting and consulting fees of approximately $3@Q,0he increased accounting and
consulting fees were the result of Sarbanes-Oxdeyptiance work. Increases in employee related afsapproximately $124,000 along with
an increase in costs for investor relations of apipnately $99,000 also contributed to the increasgeneral and administrative expenses.

Exploration and business development expensesasedeto $1,892,865 for the fiscal year ended JOn2@05, compared to $1,391,944 for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, primarily duentinarease in employee related costs allocatedsobss development of approximately
$778,000, due to increased business developmenitiastthroughout the year. This increase wasetffsmrtially by a decrease in consulting
services for business development activities of@admately $353,000.
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Depreciation and depletion decreased to $3,204@8%e fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, compar&3,313,953 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004, primarily due to decreases in depleates for our GSR3, NVR1, Bald Mountain, SJi@k and Leeville South interests in the
current fiscal year, which were due to increasge@ven and probable reserves attributable to ayalty interests. These decreases were
partially offset by increased production at thediipe Mining Complex along with additional depletifor the newly acquired GSR royalty at
the Troy mine.

As discussed in Note 3 in the accompanying Noté&sotesolidated Financial Statements, we recordegcash employee stock compensation
expense of $205,301 for the fiscal year ended 26@5pared to $0 for the fiscal year ended Jun@@04. The employee non-cash stock
compensation allocated to cost of operations, gderd administrative and business developmenhfofiscal year ended June 30, 2005, was
$16,839, $154,517 and $33,945, respectively. Thmeaash compensation expense recorded during thedpepresents amortization, based on
the employees’ service period, of the fair valu¢hef Restricted Stock issued pursuant to the 2084iBus Long-Term Incentive Plan at the
issuance or measurement date.

Interest and other income increased to $834,13th#fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, compared4d,$81 for the fiscal year ended June
2004, primarily due to higher interest rates anéharease in funds available for investing overher year.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we rezedrsurrent and deferred tax expense totaling $462 compared with $3,654,358 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. This resulted iefeective tax rate of 26.4% in the current pericoimpared with 29.2% in the prior period.
The decrease in the effective tax rate resultem fra increase in allowable percentage depletionatemhs associated with higher revenue f
our GSR1 royalty during the period, and the releddbe valuation allowance associated with the sélavailable for sale securities of
approximately $320,000 during the period.

Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary “Safe Harbor” Statement under the Pei&ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Witretexception of historical matters, the
matters discussed in this report are forward-logldtatements that involve risks and uncertaintias ¢ould cause actual results to differ
materially from projections or estimates contaihedein. Such forward-looking statements includéeestents regarding projected production
estimates from the operators of our royalty prapsythe adequacy of financial resources and ftmdsver anticipated expenditures for
general and administrative expenses as well asat@xipenditures and costs associated with buso@sgdopment and exploration, settlement
of the Casmalia matter, the potential need fortaatdil funding for acquisitions, our future capitammitments and our expectation that
substantially all our revenues will be derived froogalty interests. Factors that could cause actgllts to differ materially from these
forward-looking statements include, among others:

= changes in gold and other metals pric

= the performance of the Pipeline Mining Complex,Z8-Post mine and facilities, as well as the LeeviltrtN and Robinson mine
= decisions and activities of the operators of oyahy properties

= unanticipated grade, geological, metallurgical cessing or other problems at these propel

= changes in project parameters as plans of the wpsiare refined
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= changes in estimates of reserves and mineralizhtidhe operators of our royalty properti

= the completion of the construction of the Taparkojétt in 2007

= economic and market conditior

= future financial need:

= the availability and size of acquisitions; &

= the ultimate additional liability, if any, to thde®e of California in connection with Casmalia regt
as well as other factors described elsewhere gnrédport. Most of these factors are beyond ouithd predict or control. We disclaim any
obligation to update any forward-looking statenmaide herein. Readers are cautioned not to put uediaace on forwardeoking statement:
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

Our earnings and cash flow are significantly impddby changed in the market price of gold. Goldgwican fluctuate widely and are affected
by numerous factors, such as demand, productigidegconomic policies of central banks, produeslging, world political and economic
events, and the strength of the U.S. dollar redativother currencies. Please see “Decreasesciespof precious metals would reduce our
royalty revenues,” under Part I, Item 1A of thisnAial Report on Form 10-K for more information thah affect gold prices. During the last
five years, the market price for gold has fluctddbetween $278 per ounce and $725 per ounce.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, wertegdaoyalty revenues of $28,380,143, with an ayergold price for the period of $527 per
ounce. The GSR1 royalty, on the Pipeline Mining @R, which produced the majority of our revenussthe period, is a sliding-scale
royalty with variable royalty rate steps basedlmmaverage London PM gold price for the period.tRerfiscal year, if the price of gold had
averaged higher or lower by $20 per ounce, we whalck recorded an increase or decrease in revehagproximately $1.0 million,
respectively. Due to the set price steps in the GRRalty, it is not possible to extrapolate theffects on a linear basis.

We receive royalties from the NVR1 royalty on thipdfine Mining Complex in gold, and the value ofsthoyalty therefore depends on the
price of gold. We sold 1,733 ounces of gold bulliofiscal year 2006, at an average realized pfcg524 per ounce, and 2,905 ounces of gold
bullion in fiscal year 2005, at an average realigede of $417 per ounce.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange AAdi9¥4, as amended. Our internal control over firereiporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafiicial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples

Management assessed the effectiveness of our ahtontrol over financial reporting as of June 3006. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Cdtmendf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwasn@gsion (COSO) ifnternal
Control-Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment and those criteria, mareag concluded that, as of June 30, 2006, oumialte
control over financial reporting is effective.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the registered pubtiounting firm that audited the financial statenseéntluded in this annual report, has also
audited management’s assessment of the effectiveiese Company’s internal control over financgporting as of June 30, 2006 and the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirgancial reporting as of June 30, 2006, as dtateheir report, which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Royal Gold, Inc.:

We have completed integrated audits of Royal Gold,s 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statgsiand of its internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2006, and artaddts 2004 consolidated financial statementadéoordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat@sj. opinions, based on our audits, are preserakxivb

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairlyall material respects, the financial
position of Royal Gold, Inc. and its subsidiariedane 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of gsadjpons and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended June 30, 2006rformity with accounting principles generally actapin the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibilitie@ Company’s management. Our responsibility isxpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted dits af these statements in accordance with thedatals of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdsedards require that we plan and perform the dadibtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit of financial statementduides examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ishstatements, assessing the accounting prirscied and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&kstent presentation. We believe that our audisige a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrste&ements, the Company changed its method dfuating for share-based compensation
and adopted SFAS No. 123(Rhare-Based Paymeneffective July 1, 2005.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment,dezl in Management's Report on Internal Controlr@irancial Reporting appearing
under Item 8, that the Company maintained effedtiternal control over financial reporting as ohduB0, 2006 based on criteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrie Treadway Commission (COSO), is
fairly stated, in all material respects, basedrmsé criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the @amy maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting of June 30, 2006, based on criteria establishietiernal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Companysagement is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effectss of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express opiri@m management’s assessment and on the effeds/ehthe Compang’internal control ove
financial reporting based on our audit. We condiicter audit of internal control over financial refiog in accordance with the standards of
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standards require that we plan arfidrpethe audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal coltrel financial reporting was maintained in all rigtierespects. An audit of internal control
over financial reporting includes obtaining an wstinding of internal control over financial repogt evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating
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effectiveness of internal control, and performingtsother procedures as we consider necessarg irtumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsméor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaacepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdleaassurance regarding prevention or timely detecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
August 25, 2006
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Current asset:
Cash and equivalen
Royalty receivable
Deferred tax asse
Prepaid expenses and otl

Total current asse

Royalty interests in mineral properties, net (N&}:
Available for sale securities (Note

Deferred tax asse

Other asset

Total asset

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Income taxes payab
Dividend payable
Accrued compensatic
Other

Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Other long term liabilitie:
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder equity

ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of June 30,

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 40,000sb@Des; issued 23,816,640 and 21,258,576 shares,

respectively
Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income (It

Deferred compensatic
Accumulated defici
Treasury stock, at cost (229,224 sha

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

2006 2005
$ 78,449,38  $ 48,840,37
5,962,05: 6,601,32!
131,62 452,73
232,83 333,88
84,775,89 56,228,31
84,589,56 44.817,24
1,988,44: 554,81
495,01 160,41°
410,89 557,77
$172,259,82  $102,318,55
$ 107564 $ 1,140,50
334,76 253,49
1,300,62: 1,050,62:
375,00 278,50
237,48: 175,09¢
3,323,51 2,898,22:
7,178,90 7,586,40;
97,74¢ 96,63
10,600,17 10,581,26.
238,16t 212,58t
166,459,67  104,163,51
498,46 (284,92
— (524,65
(4,439,77)  (10,732,35)
(1,096,87)  (1,096,87)
161,659,64  91,737,29
$172,259,82  $102,318,55

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsélemcome
For the Years Ended June 30,

2006 2005 2004
Royalty revenue $28,380,14 $25,302,33  $21,353,07
Costs and expens
Costs of operation 2,288,34 1,847,34. 1,512,86°
General and administratiy 5,022,15 3,695,09i 2,923,28!
Exploration and business developm 3,396,73. 1,892,86! 1,391,94
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 4,261,06! 3,204,98: 3,313,95.
Total costs and expens 14,968,29 10,640,29 9,142,05.
Operating incomi 13,411,84 14,662,04 12,211,01
Interest and other incon 3,203,96: 834,13¢ 442,18:
Gain on sale of available for sale securi — 163,57" 22,77¢
Interest and other expen (165,06¢) (103,579 (149,940
Income before income tax 16,450,74 15,556,17 12,526,03
Current tax expense (Note (5,973,87) (3,047,55) (882,24))
Deferred tax benefit (expense) (Note 873,21: (1,054,91) (2,772,11)
Net income $11,350,08 $11,453,71 $ 8,871,67!
Adjustments to other comprehensive incc 783,38: (208,329 (36,86¢)
Unrealized change in market value of availablestde securities, net of t: 783,38 (208,329) (36,86¢)
Realization of the change in market value on shéevailable for sale securities, net
tax — (104,689 —
Comprehensive incon $12,133,46 $11,140,69  $ 8,834,81L
Basic earnings per she $ 0.5C $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4%
Basic weighted average shares outstan 22,863,78 20,875,95 20,760,45
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.4¢ $ 0.54 $ 0.4z
Diluted weighted average shares outstan: 23,121,86 21,070,79 21,110,52

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytfierYears Ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Accumulatec

Additional Other Total
Common Share Paic-In Comprehensiv.  Deferred Accumulatec Treasury Stocl Stockholder
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss Compensatia Deficit Shares Amount Equity

Balance at June 3

2003 20,883,91 $208,83¢ $100,612,04 $ 64,96 $ — $(24,796,47) 229,22: $(1,096,87) $ 74,992,50
Issuance of commc

stock for:

Exercise of option 128,66 1,287 736,89( 738,17"
Tax benefit of stocl

option exercise 670,95: 670,95!
Net income an

comprehensive

income for the year

ended June 30, 20( (36,86¢) 8,871,67! 8,834,81.
Dividends (2,338,13) (2,338,13)
Balance at June 3

2004 21,012,58 $210,12! $102,019,89 $ 28,097 $ — $(18,262,92) 229,22: $(1,096,87)) $ 82,898,31
Issuance of commc

stock for:

Acquisition of royalty

interest in minera
property 3,00( 30 55,14( 55,17(

Exercise of option 200,99: 2,01C 971,00: 973,01.
Tax benefit of stock

option exercise 387,94. 387,94
Issuance of restricte

stock 42,00( 42C 729,54( (729,96() —

Recognition of

compensation

expense for restricte

stock issuance (Not:

3) 205,30: 205,30:
Net income ani

comprehensive

income for the year

ended June 30, 20( (313,01) 11,453,71 11,140,69
Dividends (3,923,14) (3,923,14)
Balance at June 3

2005 21,258,57 $212,58! $104,163,51 $ (284,920 $ (524,65 $(10,732,35) 229,22: $(1,096,87) $ 91,737,29
Issuance of commc

stock for:

Equity offering 2,227,91: 22,27¢ 54,696,15 54,718,43

Exercise of stoc

options 276,77 2,76¢ 3,909,10 3,911,87!

Vesting of restricte:

stock 53,37t 533 (53%) —

Tax benefit of stock-

based compensatior

exercise: 1,438,39! 1,438,39!
Recognition of norcast

compensation

expense for share-

based compensation

(Note 3) 2,777,68 2,777,68
Reversal of deferred
compensatiol (524,659 524,65¢ —

Net income ani



comprehensive income
for the year ended

June 30, 200 783,38: 11,350,08 12,133,46
Dividends (5,057,500 (5,057,501
Balance at June 30,

2006 23,816,64 $238,16' $166,459,67 $ 498,46: $ — $ (4,439,77) 229,22: $(1,096,87) $161,659,64

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30,

Cash flows from operating activitit
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation, depletion and amortizati

Gain on available for sale securit

Deferred tax (benefit) expen

Non-cash employee stock compensation exp:

Tax (benefit) expense of sh-based compensation exerci:

Other
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Royalty receivable
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Federal income taxes payal
Accrued liabilities and other current liabiliti
Other long term liabilitie:
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditures for property and equipn

Acquisition of royalty interests in mineral progesg (Note 2

Purchase of available for sale securities (Notas®4)
Proceeds from sale of available for sale secul
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paic
Tax benefit from sha-based compensation exerci:
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase in cash and equivale
Cash and equivalents at beginning of \
Cash and equivalents at end of y

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest
Income taxe:
Non-cash financing activitie:
Deferred compensation (equity offs
Acquisition of royalty interest in mineral prope

2006 2005 2004
$11,350,08 $11,453,71  $ 8,871,67'
4,261,06! 3,204,98. 3,313,95:
— (163,57) (22,779
(873,21) 1,054,91. 2,772,11!
2,777,68 205,30: —
(1,438,39) 387,94 670,95:
— — 26,62:
639,27 (1,380,02)  (2,095,87)
184,63 (65,88¢) (112,95
(64,86%) (141,50 (95,13¢)

1,519,671 253,49

165,57 17,38¢ 82,86:
1,11F (6,455) (10,400
$18,522,62  $14,820,29  $13,401,04
$ (3865) $ (126,95) $ (271,020
(43,931,44)  (7,514,94) —
(204,71)  (1,000,00) —
— 539,96 38,64
$(44,174,82) $(8,101,94) $ (232,379
$ (4,807,50) $(3,651,89) $(2,591,48)
1,438,39! — —
58,630,31 973,01 738,17
$55261,20 $(2,678,88) $(1,853,31)
29,609,01 4,039,470 11,315,35
48,840,37 44,800,900  33,485,54
$78,449,38  $48,840,37  $44,800,90
$ — 3 — 3 —
$ 461091  $ 2,330,000 $ 453,00(
$ — $ 72996 $ _
$ — $ 5517 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Operations

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiaries, is engaged in th&ress of acquiring a
managing precious metals royalties. Royalties assige (non-operating) interests in mining projélatd provide the right to revenue from the
project after deducting specified costs, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapagects that are in production or near productinexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsaéiptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wadt conduct mining operations at this time.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in oamity with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of America requires
us to make estimates and assumptions that affecefiorted amounts of assets and liabilities, asadabure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the dates of the financial statements, andeperted amounts of revenues and expenses duringpbeting periods. Actual results could
differ significantly from those estimates.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Royal Gold, Inc. and its wholbyvned subsidiaries. Intercompany transaction:
account balances have been eliminated in consmidat

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchasgétth an original maturity of three months or lésde cash equivalents. At June 30, 2006,
cash and cash equivalents were primarily held inaured interest bearing cash and money markeuatso

Available for Sale Securities

Investments in securities that have readily deteaflie fair values are classified as available-fde-investments. Unrealized gains and losses
on these investments are recorded in accumulabed obmprehensive income as a separate componstuoholders’ equity, except that
declines in market value judged to be other therpterary are recognized in determining net incombekl\investments are sold, the realized
gains and losses on these investments, determsieg the specific identification method, are in@ddn determining net income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s policy for determining whether degtinin fair value of available-for-sale investmeams other than temporary includes a
quarterly analysis of the investments and a re\dgwnanagement of all investments that are impaifesich impairment is determined by the
Company to be other than temporary, the investraetst basis is written down to fair value and rded in net income during the period the
Company determines such impairment to be othertéraporary.

Royalty Interests in Mineral Properties

Royalty interests in mineral properties includeldsed royalty interests in production stage, depeient stage and exploration stage prope
The fair value of acquired royalty interests in eral properties are capitalized as tangible asgets such interests do not meet the definition
of a financial asset under the Financial Accounfitgndard Board’s (“FASB”) Statement of FinancialcAunt Standards (“SFAS”) No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabili- a Replacements of FASB Statement No, 25
a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 188¢ounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities. Also, in accordance with FASB
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No., or EITF,DAAbrking Group Report No.Whether Mineral Rights are Tangible or Intangiblesats
and Related Issuegie recognize our royalty interests as tangibletasseof June 30, 2006 and 2005. We based ourusioclon the followin
factors:

1. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do me&et the definition of financial assets under FASBtement No. 140; ar
2. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do matet the definition of derivative instruments unBASB Statement No. 13

Acquisition costs of production and developmengsteoyalty interests are depleted using the uriggaduction method over the life of the
mineral property, which is estimated using proved probable reserves. Acquisition costs of roymitgrests on exploration stage mineral
properties, where there are no proven and prolvabkrves, are not amortized. At such time as tbecésted exploration stage mineral interests
are converted to proven and probable reservegatebasis is amortized over the mineral propergegining life, using proven and probable
reserves. The carrying values of exploration stagesral interests are evaluated for impairmentiahgime as information becomes available
indicating that the production will not occur iretfuture. Exploration costs are charged to oparatiohen incurred.

Asset Impairment

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatehibakelated carrying amounts of an asset
or group of assets may not be recoverable. Thevezability of the carrying value of royalty intetesn production and development stage
mineral properties is evaluated based upon estihfatare undiscounted net cash flows from eachltpyaterest property using estimates of
proven and probable reserves. We evaluate the eeglolity of the carrying value of royalty interssh exploration stage mineral properties in
the event of significant decreases in the pricgaddl, and whenever new information regarding theearal properties is obtained from the
operator that could affect the future recoverapiit our royalty interests. Impairments in the garg value of each property are measured and
recorded to the extent that the carrying valueaitheproperty exceeds its estimated fair value, wligenerally calculated using estimated
future discounted cash flows.

Our estimate of gold prices, operator’s estimafggaven and probable reserves related to our tpyabperties, and operator’s estimates of
operating, capital and reclamation costs are stbjerertain risks
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and uncertainties which may affect the recoverghilf our investment in these royalty interestsnimeral properties. Although we have made
our best assessment of these factors based omtcooreditions, it is possible that changes coulcliocwhich could adversely affect the net «
flows expected to be generated from these royatgrests.

Office Furniture, Equipment and Improvements

We record the acquisition cost of office furnitamed equipment and leasehold improvements, lessradated depreciation and amortization,
as a component of other assets in our consolidstkzthce sheets. We depreciate our office furnémeequipment over estimated useful lives
ranging from two to seven years using the straligletimethod. Leasehold improvements are amortized the term of the lease using the
straightline method. The cost of normal maintenance andirefs expensed as incurred. Significant expenetuvhich increase the life of t
asset, are capitalized and depreciated over thmatsd remaining useful life of the asset. Upoireatent or disposition of office furniture,
equipment, or improvements, related gains or loasesecorded in operations.

Revenue

Royalty revenue is recognized in accordance wightéhms of the underlying royalty agreements sulje() the pervasive evidence of the
existence of the arrangements; (ii) the risks @wehrds having been transferred; (iii) the royakynl fixed or determinable; and (iv) the
collectibility of the royalty being reasonably as=siL For royalty payments received in gold, royattyenue is recorded at the average spot
of gold for the period in which the royalty was reed.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFA 6 Accounting for Income Taxe®eferred income taxes reflect the impact of
temporary differences between the reported amafrassets and liabilities for financial reportingrposes and such amounts measured by tax
laws and regulations. The deferred tax assetsiabitities represent the future tax return conseges of those differences, which will eithel
taxable or deductible when the assets and lisdslitire recovered or settled. A valuation allowasgeovided for deferred tax assets when
management concludes it is more likely than natsbane portion of the deferred tax assets willbetealized.

StockBased Compensatian

Effective July 1, 2005, we account for our stockdrhcompensation in accordance with SFAS No. 18sgd 2004)Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requires all sharedzhpayments to employees, including grants of epgastock options and restricted
stock, to be recognized in the financial statembatsed on their fair values. Prior to July 1, 2006 measured compensation cost as prescribe
by Accounting Principles Board No. 2&¢counting for Stock Issued to Employe€#PB 25"). See Note 3 within these Notes to Guitated
Financial Statements for further discussion onGbenpany’s stock-based compensation.
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Operating Segments

We manage our business under one operating segooasisting of royalty acquisition and managemetiviies. All of our assets and
revenues are attributable to the royalty operaemgment.

Comprehensive Income

In addition to net income, comprehensive incoméuihes changes in equity during a period associattdcumulative unrealized changes in
the fair value of marketable securities held fde saet of tax effects.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividiegt income or loss by the weighted average nuwitmymmon shares outstanding during
each year. Diluted earnings per share reflecteffieet of all potentially dilutive stock-based coemgation awards.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior period financialatagénts have been reclassified for comparative pepto conform with the presentation in the
current period financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted FASEedhent No. 123 (revised 2008hare-Based PaymefiSFAS 123(R)”), which is a
revision of FASB Statement No. 128¢counting for Stock-Based Compensati@FAS 123"). The Company has adopted SFAS 123&R)qu
the modified prospective application transition hoet. SFAS 123(R) supersedes Accounting Principtesr@No. 25Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employe¢“APB 25”), and amends FASB Statement No. Stgtement of Cash FlIowSFAS 123(R) requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of empleyeek options, to be recognized in the finandialesnents based on their fair values.

In October 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS123(Mractical Accommodation to the Application of Gr&rdte as Defined in FASB Statem
No. 123(R)which provides guidance on the application of gdate as defined in SFAS 123(R). The guidancearBP has been applied
upon the Company’s initial adoption of SFAS 123(R).

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS123(Ry&nsition Election Related to Accounting for thex'Effects of Share-Based Payment
Awards.This FSP requires an entity to follow either thensition guidance for the additional-paideapital pool as prescribed in SFAS 123
or the alternative method as described in the P&Rentity that adopts SFAS 123(R) using the modifieospective application may make a
one-time election to adopt the alternative traasitnethod described in this FSP. The Company lezs$eel to adopt the alternative transition
method described in the FSP.

On July 13, 2006, FASB Interpretation (“FIN") Nd,4Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — Arifptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109, was issued. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting focartainty in income taxes recognized in a compafigancial statements in
accordance with SFAS 109. FIN 48 also prescribegagnition threshold and measurement attribut¢hiefinancial statement recognition &
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measurement of tax position taken or expectedkentén a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidameele-recognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disate, and transition. The provisions of FIN 48e&ffective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company is evaluating tipadat) if any, the adoption of FIN 48 could haveoom financial statements.

2. ROYALTY ACQUISITIONS
Taranis Exploration Alliance

On November 4, 2005, Royal Gold entered into twpl&pation and Earn-In Agreements (the “Agreementgth Taranis Resources Inc.
(“Taranis”) with respect to its exploration programFinland. As part of the first Agreement, thenGany will obtain a 2% net smelter return
(“NSR”) royalty and future earn-in rights on anynproperty acquired by Taranis in Finland as altexlts regional exploration program, in
exchange for a $321,638 investment in 937,500 shar€aranis’ common stock and 468,750 warrantsAQgust 21, 2006, we acquired,
under a private placement, an additional 100,0@®ezhof Taranis’ common stock and warrants exdstgga purchase up to 50,000 Taranis
common shares at $0.49.

As part of the Agreements, we have funded $500t600@ranis for exploration work on the Kettukuusikbroperty in Lapland, Finland, in
exchange for a 2% NSR royalty on the property. A3ume 30, 2006, we have funded the entire $500;08tmitment. We also have an option
to fund up to an additional $600,000. If we fund #ntire additional amount, we will earn a 51% f@@nture interest in the Kettukuusikko
project, and we will release our 2% NSR royaltye T@ompany has elected to exercise this optiorhdretent that Royal Gold does not fully
fund the $600,000 to earn the joint venture intergs would retain our 2% NSR royalty.

Taranis is publicly traded and therefore we haeemted the acquisition of the Taranis common stuk warrants a8vailable for sale
securitieson our consolidated balance sheets at their reldiv values. Our cost basis in the Taranis cometock and warrants is $204,715.
We have expensed the remaining $116,923 of the,6381investment, plus approximately $34,000 ingemtion costs, asxploration and
business developmesxpense on our consolidated statements of opesadioth comprehensive income. Finally, amounts funddéranis as
part of the $500,000 Kettukuusikko exploration catnment have been expensed as a compondaxpibration and business development
expense on our consolidated statements of opesatioth comprehensive income.

Robinson and Mulatos Royalties

On December 28, 2005, Royal Gold paid $25 millioiKennecott Minerals (“Kennecottify exchange for two existing royalty interests higjt
Kennecott, including a 3% NSR royalty on the Robimsine, located in eastern Nevada, and a slidiageNSR royalty on the Mulatos mine,
located in Sonora, Mexico.

The Robinson mine is an open pit copper mine wghi§cant gold and molybdenum credits. The mine haen owned and operated by Qu
Mining Ltd. (“Quadra”) since 2004. Royal Gold begaeeiving revenue from the Robinson royalty duidog fourth quarter after a
$20.0 million reclamation trust account was fulynéled by Quadra.
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The Mulatos project, owned and operated by Alamolsi@nc. (“Alamos”), is an open pit, heap leachdymine. According to Alamos,
commercial production has been achieved effectipgl A, 2006. The Mulatos mine sliding-scale royattapped at two million ounces of gold
production, ranges from 0.30% for gold prices be®800 per ounce up to 1.50% for gold prices abe\@d%er ounce.

The Kennecott transaction has been accounted f@paschase of assets. As such, the $25 millionisitipn cost, and approximately $267,(

of our direct legal and other acquisition costsjehlaeen allocated to the two acquired royaltiesating to their relative fair values, as separate
components oRoyalty Interests in Mineral Properties our consolidated balance sheets. Accordingly,8ifnillion has been allocated to the
Robinson royalty and $7.4 million has been allodatethe Mulatos royalty.

Taparko Project Royalties

On March 1, 2006, Royal Gold entered into an Ameraled Restated Funding Agreement (“Funding Agre¢neiith Societe des Mines de
Taparko, also known as Somita SA (“Somita”), a a®&hed subsidiary of High River Gold Mines Ltd. (¢t River”), to acquire two initial
production payments equivalent to gross smelteirmgt' GSR”) royalties and two subsequent GSR rgyiaterests on the Taparko-Bouroum
Project (“Taparko Project”) in Burkina Faso, Westiga. The Funding Agreement amended and restagethitial Funding Agreement dated
December 1, 2005, among Royal Gold, High River &anhita. The Taparko Project is operated by SorRitgal Gold’s funding of the project
will total $35 million over approximately a one-yqzeriod, which will be used for the developmend apnstruction of the Taparko Project.
Construction of the Taparko Project has been peitidoy Somita and is expected to be largely coragldtrring the fourth quarter of calendar
2006, with production commencing during the firgatger of calendar 2007.

As of June 30, 2006, we have funded approximat&8/&million of the $35 million total funding commmient. As a result of our funding to-
date, we have obtained the following mineral indéesgall related to the Taparko Project:

1. TB-GSR1 - A production payment equivalerd fifteen percent (15%) GSR royalty on all goldguced from the Taparko Project. TB-
GSR1 remains in force until cumulative productié804,420 ounces of gold is achieved, or until clative payments of $35 million
have been made to us, whichever is eal

2. TB-GSR2 — A production payment equivaler& ©8SR sliding-scale royalty on all gold producexhf the Taparko Project. TB-GSR2
will be paid concurrently with, and remains in ferentil the termination of TB-GSR1. The sliding{gceoyalty rate will be determined
as follows:

a. When the average price of gold is $430 per ounceare, the rate will be equal to the average ptieeled by 100 e.g., a $44C
gold price divided by 100 = 4.4%

b. When the average gold price is $385 per eamdess, the rate will be equal to the averagemlivided by 90 (e.g a $350 gold
price divided by 90 = 3.88%

c. When the average price is between $385 and $430upee, the rate is 4.3¢

3. TB-GSR3- A perpetual 2% GSR royalty on all gold producedrfrihe Taparko Project area (as defined in the Fundgreement)
This royalty will commence upon termination of fhB-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties
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4. TB-MR1 - A 0.75% milling fee royalty, calatkd in the same manner as the TB-GSR1 royaltgllgold processed through the
Taparko Project processing facilities that is mifreth any area outside of the Taparko Project éasalefined in the Funding
Agreement). TB-MRL1 royalty is subject to a cap df million tons per year (_e.gif in a given year, the Taparko Project procegsi
facility processes 800,000 tons of ore from thearkp Project area and 500,000 tons of ore fromsasetside the Taparko Project area,
the 800,000 tons from the Taparko Project area dvbalsubject to TB-GSR1, TB-GSR2, or TB-GSR3 arditB-MR1 would only
apply to 300,000 tons of or

The Taparko transaction has been accounted fopaschase of assets. Accordingly, the four comptnehthe transaction noted above have
been recorded at their allocated relative fair galas components Rioyalty Interests in Mineral Properties our consolidated balance sheets.
The remaining funding amounts will be allocatedaading to their relative fair values as funding o

In order to secure our investment during the pebiedveen funding by Royal Gold and project complefias defined in the funding
agreement), High River has pledged its 90% interetfte equity of Somita. Royal Gold will maintata security interest, in the form of the
Somita shares, through the construction period.sEuarity interest will be released upon the projeeeting Project Completion, as defined in
the Funding Agreement.

In addition to the 90% interest in Somita, Royaldzalso obtained as collateral a pledge of sharés@equity investments held by High

River. The equity value underlying the pledge @&fsth shares is valued at approximately $14.9 mii®of June 30, 2006, and includes
12,015,000 common shares in the capital stock lafnge Mines, Inc. and 1,790,941 common sharekercapital stock of Intrepid Minerals
Corporation. The purpose of this collateral is immain a construction reserve that can be useeht@dy any construction defects noted du
the construction contract warranty period. Thidatetal can only be used to remedy identified camesion defects and cannot be used to repay
any of Royal Gold's investment. This security ierwill be released by Royal Gold at the end efdbnstruction contract warranty period.

Investment in Revett Silver Company and the Troy Mine

On October 14, 2004, in a three-part transactioen Qompany paid $8.5 million to Revett Silver Compé'Revett”) and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Genesis Inc. (“Genesis”), in excharggewWo royalty interests in the Troy undergrounsiesi and copper mine, located in
northwestern Montana, and shares in Revett.

For consideration of $7.25 million, the Companyaitd the right to receive a production paymeniwadent to a 7.0% gross smelter return
royalty (“GSR royalty”) from all metals and prodagiroduced and sold from the Troy mine. The GSRltgwill extend until either
cumulative production of approximately 9.9 millionnces of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppeithe Company receives $10.5 million
in cumulative payments, whichever occurs first. Ndee received cumulative payments associated h&tlGISR royalty totaling $2.4 million
through June 30, 2006.

As a second component of the transaction, the Coyngequired a perpetual GSR royalty (“perpetuabttyy) at the Troy mine for $250,000.
The rate for this perpetual royalty begins at 6d®@ny production in excess of 11.0 million ounctsilver and 94.1 million pounds of copg
and steps down to a perpetual 2% royalty after dative production has exceeded 12.7 million ourafesiiver and 108.2 million pounds of
copper. In the third component of the transactibe,Company purchased approximately 1.3 milliorehaf Revett common stock for

$1.0 million. These shares can be converted, uceltain circumstances and at the election of the@my, into a 1% net smelter return
(“NSR”) royalty on the Rock Creek mine, also lochbe northwestern Montana and owned by Revett.
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Under the terms of the share agreement, the Compasthe right, but not the obligation, to cure dafault by Revett or Genesis under their
obligations pursuant to an existing mortgage pa,a#cured by a Promissory Note, to Kennecott Men@ompany, a third party and prior
Joint Venture interest owner of the Troy mine. Phiacipal and accrued interest under the PromisBlatg as of June 30, 2006, was
approximately $6.2 million with a maturity datefeébruary 2008.

We have recorded the acquisition of the GSR royaity the perpetual royalty interests as compor@i®yalty Interests in Mineral
Propertieson the consolidated balance sheets. The acquisifitre 1.3 million shares of Revett is recorde@dmasnvestment ivailable for
sale securitie®n the consolidated balance sheets. See Note hilithse Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenfentsirther detail on our
investment in Revett.

3. STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATIO N
Preferred Stock
We have 10,000,000 authorized and unissued sha#e8lopar value Preferred Stock.

Treasury Stock

We have adopted a stock repurchase program, irvthe&Board of Directors authorized the repurcledag to $5 million of our common
stock, from time-to-time, in the open market opiivately negotiated transactions. In accordandk this program, we have repurchased
229,224 shares of common stock. Repurchased shi@é®ld in the treasury for general corporate gagp. We have no commitments to
purchase our common stock.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

Our board of directors adopted a Stockholders’ Rigtan in which preferred stock purchase righRights”) were distributed as a dividend at
the rate of one Right for each share of commorkstetd as of close of the business on SeptembetQ9l7. The terms of the Stockholders
Rights plan provide that if any person or groupeverannounce an intention to acquire or were tpiiae 15 percent or more of our
outstanding common stock, then the owners of edatesof common stock (other than the acquiringgreos group) would become entitled to
exercise a right to buy one one-hundredth of a pésglued share of Series A Junior ParticipatinddPred Stock of Royal Gold, at an exercise
price of $50 per Right.

2004 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan

In November 2004, our shareholders approved anddepted an Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2B@h”). The 2004 Plan replaced
our Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2004 Plan,,000 shares of common stock are available for éugmants to officers, directors, key
employees and other persons. The 2004 Plan profodéise grant of stock options, unrestricted staektricted stock, dividend equivalent
rights, stock appreciation rights, and cash awakdy.of these awards may, but need not, be
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made as performance incentives. Stock options gdamder the 2004 Plan may be non-qualified st@tions or incentive stock options.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 20®%ecorded total non-cash stock compensation egpetated to our equity compensation
plans of $2,777,686 and $205,301, respectively.-bash stock compensation is allocated among cagp@fations, general and administrative,
and exploration and business development in owsal@ated statements of operations and compreheirsdome. The total non-cash
compensation expense allocated to cost of opemtganeral and administrative, and explorationtarginess development for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006, was $380,565, $1,465,05538R8]366, respectively. The total non-cash comp@rsakpense allocated to cost of
operations, general and administrative, and exptorand business development for the fiscal yeded

June 30, 2005, was $16,839, $154,517 and $33,6dpectively. The Company had $0 of non-cash conapiemsexpense during its fiscal year
ended June 30, 2004.

The total income tax benefit associated with nashcatock compensation expense was approximated@@ 000, $74,000 and $0 for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004, resglgctn accordance with SFAS 123(R), the Compawersed $524,659 of deferr
compensation upon adoption of SFAS 123(R).

Stock Options

Stock option awards are granted with an exercige gqual to the closing market price of the Comyfmstock at the date of grant. Stock
option awards granted to officers, key employeasather persons vest based on one to three yeamntifiuous service. Stock option awards
granted to directors vest immediately with respe&@0% of the shares granted and after one yearradpect to the remaining 50% granted.
Stock option awards have 10 year contractual terms.

To determine norash stock compensation expense for stock opti@mdsythe fair value of each stock option awarmebktimated on the date
grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton (“Black-Sclkbjeption pricing model for all periods present&tie Black-Scholes model requires key
assumptions in order to determine fair value andatkey assumptions are noted in the followingetabl

2006 2005 2004
Weighted average expected volatil 61.2(% 69.71% 74.1%
Weighted average expected option term in 'y 54 4.t 4.8
Weighted average dividend yie 1.0(% 1.14% 0.8€%
Weighted average risk free interest 1 4.5% 3.€% 3.5%
Weighted average grant fair val $12.04 $ 9.2¢ $12.15

The Company’s expected volatility is based on tiseohical volatility of the Company’s stock overtlexpected option term. The Company’s
expected option term is determined by historica&reise patterns along with other known employeeoonpany information at the time of
grant. The risk free interest rate is based orzéne-coupon U.S. Treasury bond at the time of gnattit a term approximate to the expected
option term.

On November 8, 2005, 92,500 stock options undeR@® Plan were granted to certain employees diwbdf under the 2004 Plan. These
options have an exercise price of $22.22, which thaglosing market price for our common stocktmndate of grant. On November 9, 2005,
15,000 stock options, under the 2004 Plan, wenetgdato the Board of Directors (“Directors”) at exercise price of $23.61, which was the
closing market price of our common stock on thedditgrant. The options have vesting terms ranffimg one to three years. Directors’
options vest 50% upon grant and 50% vest afteryeae
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A summary of stock option activity under our equitympensation plans as of June 30, 2006, and chahgig the fiscal year then ended is
presented below:

Weighte«-
Average
Weighte«- Remaining
Average Contractue Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Shares Price (Years) Value
Outstanding at July 1, 20( 711,02 $ 13.5¢
Granted 107,50( $ 22.41
Exercisec (276,77) $ 14.1:
Forfeited and Expire (13,33) $ 19.2(
Outstanding at June 30, 20 528,41 $ 14.8¢ 6.4 $6,844,45:
Exercisable at June 30, 20 396,08( $ 12.8¢ 4.C $5,927,11!

The weighted-average grant date fair value of ogtigranted during the fiscal years ended June@iB,2005 and 2004, was $12.04, $9.23
and $12.17, respectively. The total intrinsic vabfi@ptions exercised during the fiscal years entiete 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, were
$5,561,205, $2,731,940 and $2,305,345, respectively

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-vestedk options as of June 30, 2006, and changésgdilne fiscal year ended June 30,
20086, is presented below:

Weighte«-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valt

Non-vested at July 1, 20C 133,85( $ 9.2¢
Grantec 107,50 $ 12.0¢
Vested (95,689 $ 9.5C
Forfeited (13,33) $ 10.3(
Non-vested at June 30, 20 132,33: $ 11.2¢

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2002864, we recorded non-cash stock compensation sgssociated with stock options of
$1,116,362, $0 and $0, respectively. As of JuneB06, there was $790,965 of total unrecognizedaash stock compensation expense
related to non-vested stock options granted undeequity compensation plans, which is expectduketoecognized over a weighted-average
period of 1.9 years. The total fair value of sharested during the fiscal years ended June 30,, 205 and 2004 was $450,342, $297,575
$986,846 respectively.

Prior to July 1, 2005, we measured compensationasoprescribed by APB 25. No compensation coatedlto the granting of stock options
has been recognized in the financial statements fmiJuly 1, 2005, as the exercise price of allaspgrants was equal to the market price of
our common stock at the date of grant. In Octol8®5]1the FASB issued SFAS 123. SFAS 123 defindaiavalue” based method of
accounting for employee options or similar equitstiuments. Had compensation cost been determimdgf the provisions of SFAS 123, the
following pro forma net income and per share amewuuld have been recorded:

66




Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Years Ended June :

2005 2004

Net income, as reporte $11,453,71 $8,871,67!
Add: Stocl-based compensation expense for restricted stockdavrzcluded in reported net income, ne

related tax effect 131,39¢ —
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation sgpégtermined under the fair value based method

all awards, net of related tax effe (653,22)) (851,97:
Pro forma net incom $10,931,88 $8,019,70:
Earnings per shar

Basic, as reporte $ 0.5¢ $ 0.42

Basic, pro form: $ 0.52 $ 0.3¢

Diluted, as reporte $ 0.54 $ 0.4z

Diluted, pro forme $ 0.52 $ 0.3¢

Stockbased Compensation

On November 8, 2005, certain employees and offisere granted 41,000 shares of restricted comnumk $hat can be earned only if either
one of two defined multi-year performance goalsét within five years of the date of grant (“Perfamce Shares”). If the performance goals
are not earned by the end of this five year petioel Performance Shares will be forfeited. Vesth§erformance Shares is subject to certain
performance measures being met and can be basedinterim earn out of 25%, 50%, 75% or 100%. Tékned performance goals are tie
two different performance measures: (1) growthregfcash flow per share on a trailing twelve mduatsis; and (2) growth of royalty ounces in
reserves on an annual basis.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veBtdormance Shares as of June 30, 2006, and chdngag the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, is presented below:

Weighte«-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu

Non-vested at July 1, 20C 58,25( % 17.3¢
Grantec 41,00( $ 22.2¢
Vested (49,62 $ 19.3¢
Forfeited (8,125 % 20.3¢
Non-vested at June 30, 20 41,50( $ 19.1¢

We measure the fair value of the Performance Sheesd upon the market price of our common stoaK #se date of grant. In accordance
with SFAS 123(R), the measurement date for theoRmdnce Shares will be determined at such timettigaperformance goals are attained or
that it is probable they will be attained. At sutche that it is probable that a performance cooditvill be achieved, compensation expense
be measured by the number of shares that will atéty be earned based on
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the grant date market price of our common stoderim recognition of compensation expense will lEdmat such time as management can
reasonably estimate the number of shares thabailarned. As of June 30, 2006, our estimatesadtetichat it is probable that 100% of our
non-vested Performance Shares will be earned hedidcal years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2@0#decorded non-cash stock
compensation expense associated with our Perforn@hares of $1,234,129, $0 and $0, respectivelypfAsne 30, 2006, total unrecognized
non-cash stock compensation expense related tBeximrmance Shares is $523,868, which is expeotbd tecognized over the next

1.75 years, the period over which it is probabbg the performance goals will be attained.

On November 8, 2005, certain employees and offisere granted 56,500 shares of restricted commamk stvhich vest by continued service
alone (“Restricted Stock”). For employees and effi; the vesting period for Restricted Stock begfter a three-year holding period from the
date of grant with one-third of the shares vestingears four, five and six, respectively. On Now@m9, 2005, our non-executive directors
were granted 7,500 shares of Restricted Stocknbheexecutive directors’ shares of Restricted Stakt as to 50% immediately and 50% one
year after the date of grant. Shares of RestriStedk represent issued and outstanding sharesywhoo stock, with dividend and voting rigt
We measure the fair value of the Restricted Staded upon the market price of our common stock #seaate of grant. Restricted Stock is
amortized over the applicable vesting period usiiregstraight-line method. Unvested shares of ResttiStock are subject to forfeiture upon
termination of employment with the Company.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veRtestricted Stock as of June 30, 2006, and chathgésg the fiscal year ended June 30,
20086, is presented below:

Weighte«-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu

Non-vested at July 1, 20C 37,628 % 17.3¢
Grantec 64,00( $ 22.3¢
Vested (7,500 % 20.5(C
Forfeited (16,87H) $ 20.2¢
Non-vested at June 30, 20 77,25( $ 20.6(

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2002864, we recorded narash stock compensation expense associated wiRetbteicted Stoc
of $427,195, $205,301 and $0, respectively. AuokJ30, 2006, total unrecognized non-cash stockpeosation expense related to Restricted
Stock was $1,258,606, which is expected to be mized over the remaining vesting period or 5.25yea

Stock Issuances

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, optiommirchase 276,777 shares were exercised, reguitproceeds of $3,911,875. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, options to puscBB8,993 shares were exercised, resulting in poscef $973,012.

In September 2005, we sold 2,227,912 shares of@amon stock in an underwritten public offeringaatirice of $26.00 per share, resulting in
proceeds of approximately $54.7 million, which & of the underwriters discount of $2.9 million axtimated transaction costs of
approximately $327,000. The net proceeds in thistggffering have been and will continue to bedise fund the acquisition and financing of
additional royalty interests and for general cogpempurposes.
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4. AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

Investments in securities that have readily deteafvlie market values are classified as availabledte investments. Unrealized gains and
losses on these investments are recorded in acateduther comprehensive income (net of tax) &parate component of stockholders’
equity. We recorded an unrealized gain (net of tdb§783,382 for the fiscal year ended June 3062@¢e recorded unrealized losses (net of
tax) of $208,328 and $36,866 during the fiscal gearded June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. \Mirestments are sold, the realized gains
and losses on the sale of these investments, asrdeed using the specific identification methoe mcluded in determining net income. We
had no sales of available for sale investmentsxduur fiscal year 2006. We recorded a gain onaderailable for sale securities of $0,
$163,577, and $22,778 during the fiscal years edded 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As explained in Note 2, we hold 1.3 million shapéfRevett. The market value for our investmentia shares of Revett was $1,483,137 as of
June 30, 2006. Our cost basis in the Revett shafdks0 million. We also hold 937,500 and 468,7B8res of common stock and warrants,
respectively, in Taranis as part of the allianchwiaranis as also explained in Note 2. Our cosishia the Taranis common stock and warrants
is $204,715. The market value for our investmerfananis common stock and warrants was $505,306 &me 30, 2006.
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5. ROYALTY INTERESTS IN MINERAL PROPERTIES

The following table summarizes the net book valfieach of our royalty interests in mineral propestas of June 30, 2006 and 2005.

As of June 30, 2006:

Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple:
GSR1
GSR2
GSR3
NVR1
Bald Mountain
SJ Claims
Robinson mine
Mulatos mine
Troy mine GSR royalt
Troy mine Perpetual royall
Leeville Soutt
Leeville North
Martha

Development stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR1
TB-GSR2
TB-GSR3

Exploration stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR3
TB-MR1
Leeville North
Buckhorn Soutt

Total royalty interests in mineral propert

70

Accumulatec

Depletion &

Gross Amortization Net
$ —  $ —  $ —
8,105,02 (5,976,53) 2,128,48!
2,135,10 (1,548,57) 586,53(
1,978,54 (1,817,580 160,96:
20,788,444 (5,122,20) 15,666,23
17,824,77 (301,46()  17,523,31
7,441,77 (128,799 7,312,98.
7,250,00! (1,140,87)) 6,109,131
250,00( — 250,00(
1,775,80! (1,753,58) 22,22:
14,240,41 (180,379 14,060,03
172,81 (172,810 —
81,962,71 (18,142,80) 63,819,90
13,859,87 — 13,859,87
4,053,92' — 4,053,92'
569,06: — 569,06:
18,482,86 —  18,482,86
110,17: — 110,17:
71,85: — 71,85:
2,305,84! (271,18 2,034,65!
70,117 — 70,117
2,557,98: (271,18) 2,286,80.
$103,003,56 $(18,413,99) $84,589,56
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As of June 30, 2005:

Accumulatec

Depletion &
Gross Amortization Net
Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple:
GSR1 $ — % — 3 —
GSR2 — — —
GSR3 8,105,02 (5,586,43) 2,518,58.
NVR1 2,135,10 (1,475,26) 659,84:
Bald Mountain 1,978,54 (1,785,94) 192,60:
SJ Claime 20,788,44. (2,936,63) 17,851,81
Troy mine GSR royalt 7,250,00! (388,599 6,861,40!
Leeville Soutr 1,775,80! (1,638,00) 137,80:
Martha 172,81( (172,810 —
42,205,73 (13,983,68) 28,222,04
Development stage royalty interes
Leeville North 14,240,41 — 14,240,41
Exploration stage royalty interes
Leeville North 2,305,84! (271,18) 2,034,65!
Troy mine Perpetual royall 250,00( — 250,00(
Buckhorn Soutt 70,117 — 70,117
2,625,96. (271,18) 2,354,77!
Total royalty interests in mineral propert $59,072,11 $(14,254,87) $44,817,24

Discussed below is a status of each of our royatgrests in mineral properties.

Pipeline Mining Complex

We own two sliding-scale gross smelter return rigal(GSR1 ranging from 0.40% to 5.0% and GSR2irgnfyjom 0.72% to 9.0%), a 0.71%
fixed gross smelter royalty (GSR3), and a 0.39%vakte royalty (NVR1) over the Pipeline Mining Coley that includes the Pipeline, South
Pipeline, GAP and Crossroads gold deposits in LaGdenty, Nevada.

The Pipeline Mining Complex is owned by the Cordeint Venture, a joint venture between Barrick GOlatporation (“Barrick”) (60%), and
Kennecott Explorations (Australia) Ltd. (40%), dsidiary of Rio Tinto plc.
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Bald Mountain

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale net smelterrne or NSR, royalty that burdens a portion of Badd Mountain mine, in White Pine
County, Nevada. Bald Mountain is an open pit, Heaph mine operated by Barrick. The sliding-scalglty increases or decreases with the
gold price, adjusted by the 1986 Producer Pricexn@ur royalty rate is calculated quarterly andildaurrently increase to 2% at a quarterly
average gold price of approximately $811 per oundeday’s dollars.

SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR on the SJ Claims that covergtiopmf the Betze-Post mine, in Eureka County, &bkaz Betze-Post is an open pit mine
operated by Barrick at its Goldstrike property.

Leeville Project

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of tteeville Project, in Eureka County,
Nevada. Current production from the Leeville Projeaerived from Leeville South and Leeville Notthderground mines, which are opere
by Newmont Mining Corporation (“Newmont”).

During our first fiscal quarter of 2006, Newmongbe mining operations at Leeville North. Accordingluring our first fiscal quarter of 2006,
we reclassified our cost basis in Leeville Nortraggroduction stage royalty interest. As such, egam depleting our cost basis using the units
of production method during our first fiscal quarterior to our first fiscal quarter of 2006, werrdad our interest in the proven and probable
reserves at Leeville North as a development stagaty interest.

We carry our interest in the non-reserve portiohedville North as an exploration stage royalterest, which is not subject to periodic
amortization. In the event that future proven arabpble reserves are developed at Leeville Nosb@ated with our royalty interest, the cost
basis of our exploration stage royalty interest bl reclassified as a development stage royalgrést or a production stage royalty interest in
future periods, as appropriate. In the event thtatré circumstances indicate that the non-reseovigop of Leeville North will not be converted
into proven and probable reserves, we will evaloatecarrying value in the exploration stage intefer impairment.

Martha Mine

We own a 2% NSR royalty on the Martha mine locétetthe Santa Cruz Province of Argentina, operate@€beur d’Alene Mining
Corporation.

Troy Mine

We own a production payment equivalent to a 7.09R &%alty from all metals and products produced swid from the Troy mine, located in
northeastern Montana and operated by Revett. THe 1@Ggalty will extend until either cumulative prottion of approximately 9.9 million
ounces of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppetthe Company receives $10.5 million in cumulagpayments, whichever occurs first. As
of June 30, 2006, we have received payments assdaidth the GSR royalty totaling $2.4 million. Varry our interest in the proven and
probable reserves for the GSR royalty as a produdiage royalty interest, which is depleted usiirggunits of production method estimatec
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using proven and probable reserves. Mining operattmmmenced at the Troy mine during December 204 the first shipment of
concentrate occurring during January 2005. Amatitimeof our production stage interest commencedi e first concentrate shipment from
the Troy mine during the third quarter of our fisgaar 2005.

We also own a perpetual royalty at the Troy mirtee Toyalty rate for the perpetual royalty begin6.486 on any production in excess of
11.0 million ounces of silver and 94.1 million paisnof copper, and steps down to a perpetual 2% @iftaulative production has exceeded
12.7 million ounces of silver and 108.2 million mai$ of copper. Effective January 1, 2006, we haveassified our interest in the perpetual
royalty from an exploration stage royalty interesa production stage interest due to an increaseserves at the Troy mine. We will deplete
our interest in the perpetual royalty using thesiof production method as production occurs inreiperiods.

Taparko Mine

We own a production payment equivalent to a 15.08RGTB-GSR1) royalty on all gold produced from fraparko Project, located in
Burkina Faso and operated by Somita. TB-GSR1 regriaforce until cumulative production of 804,42naes of gold is achieved or until
cumulative payments of $35 million have been madedyal Gold, whichever is earlier. We also owrredpiction payment equivalent to a
GSR sliding-scale royalty (TB-GSR2) on all gold guced from the Taparko Project. TB-GSR2 is effectiencurrently with TB-GSR1, and
remains in-force until the termination of TB-GSR¥e carry our interests in TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 asld@ment stage royalty interests,
which are not currently subject to periodic amatiian.

We also own a perpetual 2% GSR royalty (TB-GSR$alty on all gold produced from the Taparko Propea. TB-GSR3 will commence
upon termination of TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 royaltiegqortion of the TB-GSR3 royalty is associated wattisting proven and probable
reserves and has been classified as a developiagetreyalty interest, which is not subject to peitc amortization at this time. The remaining
portion of the TBGSR3 royalty, which is not currently associatechvpitoven and probable reserves, is classified &xploration stage royal
interest, which is also not subject to periodic dimation at this time.

In addition, we own a 0.75% milling fee royalty (MR1) on all gold processed through the Taparkgdetgprocessing facilities that is mined
from any area outside of the Taparko Project afBaMR1 is classified as an exploration stage royaiterest and is not subject to periodic
amortization at this time.

Robinson Mine

We own a 3% NSR royalty on the Robinson mine, ledah eastern Nevada. The Robinson mine is an pppeopper mine with significant
gold and molybdenum production. The mine has b&ered and operated by Quadra since 2004.

Mulatos Mine

We own a sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Mulatdsenlocated in Sonora, Mexico. The Mulatos mingned and operated by Alamos, is an
open pit, heap leach gold mine. The Mulatos miitrej-scale royalty, capped at two million ounces of gmidduction, ranges from 0.30%
gold prices below $300 up to 1.50% for gold priabsve $400.
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Buckhorn South

We hold a 16.5% net profits interest royalty on Baekhorn South property, located in Eureka CouNyada. The Buckhorn South interest is
classified as an exploration stage royalty interest

6. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”) COMPUTATION

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EP<
Income available to common stockhold $11,350,08 22,863,78 $ 0.5C
Effect of potentially dilutive option 258,07¢
Diluted EPS $11,350,08 23,121,86 $ 0.4¢

As of June 30, 2006, all outstanding options weobuided in the computation of diluted EPS becaliseskercise price of all the options was
less than the average market price of our commarestfor the period.

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EP<
Income available to common stockhold $11,453,71 20,875,95 $ 0.5¢
Effect of potentially dilutive option 194,84(
Diluted EPS $11,453,71 21,070,79 $ 0.54

Options to purchase 392,580 shares of common sabek) average purchase price of $19.40 per share,outstanding at June 30, 2005, but
were not included in the computation of diluted HieSause the exercise price of these options veagagrthan the average market price of the
common shares for the year.

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EP<
Income available to common stockhold $8,871,67! 20,760,45 $ 0.4:
Effect of potentially dilutive option 350,06
Diluted EPS $8,871,67! 21,110,52 $ 0.4:

Options to purchase 266,940 shares of common sael) average purchase price of $20.10 per siare,outstanding at June 30, 2004, but
were not included in the computation of diluted HeSause the exercise price of these options veadeagrthan the average market price of the
common shares for the year.
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7. INCOME TAXES

The tax effects of temporary differences and camyérds, which give rise to our deferred tax asarttliabilities at June 30, 2006 and 2005,
are as follows:

2006 2005

Deferred tax asset

AMT credit carryforward: $ — $ 120,74
Capital loss carryback — 277,21}
Non-cash stoc-based compensatic 495,01¢ 47,05:
Other 131,62: 168,13!
Total deferred tax asse 626,63¢ 613,14°
Valuation allowanct — —
Net deferred tax asse 626,63¢ 613,14
Deferred tax liabilities

Mineral property basi (6,860,011 (7,574,680
Other (318,89) (18,417
Total deferred tax liabilitie (7,178,90) (7,593,09)
Total net deferred taxe $(6,552,26)  $(6,979,94)

At June 30, 2004, we had approximately $4,300,d0@%boperating loss carryforwards which were fuitifized during our fiscal year 2005.

2006 2005 2004
Current federal tax expen $5,973,87: $3,047,55. $ 882,24
Deferred tax (benefit) expen (873,21) 1,375,35 2,890,69!
Decrease in deferred tax asset valuation allow — (320,44¢) (118,58()

$5,100,66° $4,102,46: $3,654,35!
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The provision for income taxes for the fiscal yeamgled June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, differs fremamount of income tax determined by
applying the applicable United States statutorgefatincome tax rate to ptax income from operations as a result of the fuithg differences

2006 2005 2004
Total expense computed by applying statutory $5,757,76. $5,444,66: $4,384,11.
State income taxes, net of federal ber 191,85t 156,60( 130,74:
Adjustments of valuation allowan: — (320,44¢) (118,58()
Excess depletio (922,43) (952,529 (836,539
Other 73,48 (225,82)) 94,61¢

$5,100,66' $4,102,46: $3,654,35!

As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, there was no valuatiowance recorded with respect to our deferagdassets. As of June 30, 2004, our
remaining valuation allowance was associated vightiook versus tax basis difference attributedutcawailable for sale securities. During
fiscal year 2005, the related available for satigges were sold, resulting in the realizatiorttod tax asset associated with those securities. A:
such, the valuation allowance of $320,446 was fidlyersed during fiscal 2005.

8. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In each of fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, weived $23,089,615, $21,600,739 and $18,968,38peatively, of our royalty revenues from
the same operator, but not from the same mine.

9. SIMPLIFIED EMPLOYEE PENSION (“SEP”) PLAN

We maintain a Simplified Employee Pension (“SEmBIl&n which all employees are eligible to participatée contribute a minimum of 3%
an employee’s compensation to an account set uphddoenefit of the employee. If an employee alsaoses to contribute to the SEP Plan
through salary reduction contributions, we will efasuch contributions to a maximum of 7% of the layge’s salary. We contributed
$150,683, $126,390 and $104,422, in fiscal yea®6 22005 and 2004, respectively.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Taparko Project

As discussed in Note 2, on March 1, 2006, Royabaitered into a Funding Agreement with Somitateeldo the Taparko Project in Burkina
Faso, West Africa. As part of the $35 million fundicommitment, we have funded approximately $18lifom as of June 30, 2006. During
July and August of 2006, we funded an addition@.8Inillion to the Taparko Project, resulting itiaicfunding by us of
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$29.5 million as of August 25, 2006. Subsequentliiug of the Taparko Project will be made in ingtadhts over the remaining construction
period. The Funding Agreement outlines the conitnanilestones that must be met prior to eachifipéanding installment. The project is
expected to meet all construction requirementsiédised in the Funding Agreement) no later tharosda@uarter of calendar 2007. We
estimate the $35 million will be funded by the setguarter of calendar 2007, subject to constroatidestones.

Under a separate Contribution Agreement, High Riweesponsible for contributing additional equityntributions for any cost overruns
incurred during the construction and constructi@mranty periods. If High River is unable to make thquired equity contributions, we have
the right to either (a) provide funding that Higiv& failed to fund, or (b) declare a default unttex Funding Agreement. In the event that we
elect to provide funding in the amount that HigldRifails to fund, we may elect to acquire eithereguity interest in High River, consisting of
units of common shares and warrants of High Rigedtefined, or to obtain additional royalty inteseist the Taparko Project in an amount in
proportion to the amount of the additional fundammpared with our original $35 million funding coritment. As of August 25, 2006, High
River has made all required equity commitmentscagduled, under its Contribution Agreement.

Taranis

As discussed in Note 2, on November 4, 2005, weredtinto an agreement for exploration of the Tiar&ettukuusikko project in Finland
with Taranis. We have funded exploration totalid@®,000 in return for a 2% NSR royalty. We alsoéhan option to fund up to an additional
$600,000. If we fund the entire additional amouwve,will earn a 51% joint venture interest in thettidkuusikko project, and we will release
2% NSR royalty. The Company has elected to exethiseoption. In the event that Royal Gold doesfatly fund the $600,000 to earn the
joint venture interest, we would retain our 2% Ni®kRalty.

Revett

Under the terms of the Revett purchase agreentenCompany has the right, but not the obligatiorgure any default by Revett under their
obligations pursuant to an existing mortgage paya#cured by a promissory note, to Kennecott M@n@ompany, a third party and prior
joint venture interest owner of the Troy mine.nétCompany elects to exercise its right, it wowdgienthe subsequent right to reimbursen
from Revett for any amounts disbursed in curinchsdefaults. The principal and accrued interest wtitepromissory note as of June 30, 2!
was approximately $6.2 million with a maturity datieFebruary 2008.

Casmalia

On March 24, 2000, the United States Environmdntatection Agency (“EPA”) notified Royal Gold an@ 8ther entities that they were
considered potentially responsible parties (“PRRster the Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€nsation, and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmali@li®ess Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “Site§adnta Barbara County, California.
EPA'’s allegation that Royal Gold was a PRP was basdhendisposal of allegedly hazardous petroleumaragibn wastes at the Site by Ro
Gold’s predecessor, Royal Resources, Inc., dur@@pland 1984.
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After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 28@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP griauigeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States o&Aca intending to settle their liability for thenitled States of America’ past and future
cleanup costs incurred at the Site. Based on the minwolaime of allegedly hazardous waste that RoyabRe®s, Inc. disposed of at the S
our share of the $25.3 million settlement amourd %207,858, which we deposited into the escrowwacihat the PRP group set up for that
purpose in January 2002. The funds were paid ttJtlieed States of America on May 9, 2003. The Whiates of America may only pursue
Royal Gold and the other PRPs for additional cleprcosts if the United States of America total sle@ costs at the Site significantly exceed
the expected cost of approximately $272 million. Wédeve our potential liability with the Uniteda®és of America to be a remote possibility.

The Partial Consent Decree does not resolve Roglal'§potential liability to the State of Califomn(“State”) for its response costs or for
natural resource damages arising from the Site Skat has not expressed any interest in pursw@ngal resource damages. However, on
October 1, 2002, the State notified Royal Gold #edrest of the PRP group that participated ins#tdement with the United States of Ame
that the State would be seeking response costmtptproximately $12.5 million from them. It i®thknown what portion of these costs the
State expects to recover from this PRP group iteseént. If the State agrees to a volumetric atiocawe will be liable for 0.438% of any
settlement amount. However, we expect that ouresbiliability will be completely covered by a $hfillion, zero-deductible insurance policy
that the PRP group purchased specifically to ptateelf from claims such as that brought by that&tNo notices or any other forms of acti
with respect to Royal Gold have been made by thteSince its October 1, 2002 notice.

Operating Lease

We lease office space under a lease agreementh whkpires December 31, 2009. Future minimum castakpayments are $119,067,
$122,421, $125,775 and $63,726 for fiscal yearsngniline 30, 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2010, respéctiRent expense charged to operations
for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2@@dym@ted to $115,206, $111,089 and $122,507, raspbct

Employment Agreements

We have one-year employment agreements with soraeragfficers which, under certain circumstanceguire total minimum future
compensation, at June 30, 2006, of $682,000. Thestef each of these agreements automatically exdanually, for one additional year,
unless terminated by Royal Gold or the officer,cading to the terms of the agreements.

Line of Credit Commitment Fees

We have a line of credit from HSBC that may be usealcquire producing royalties and for generapoaate purposes. During our second
quarter, we finalized a line of credit expansiothviH SBC to raise the availability under the linecodit from $10 million to $30 million. Cos
associated with the line of credit expansion wggreximately $78,000. These costs were capital&zed component of other assets on the
consolidated balance sheets and will be amortized the life of the credit facility. Any loan und#re line of credit will be secured by a
mortgage on our GSR1, GSR3 and NVR1 royaltieseaPipeline Mining Complex, and by a security ingtiia the cash proceeds from our
royalty interests. The maturity date of our linecoddit is December 31, 2009. As of June 30, 26806unds have been drawn under the line of
credit. During fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 paiel commitment fees of $157,500, $76,042 and3i15,respectively, to HSBC.

78




Table of Contents

11. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter Ende

September 3
December 3:
March 31
June 3(

Fiscal Year 2005 Quarter Ende

September 3
December 3:
March 31
June 3(

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Earnings
Per Share «
Royalty Operating Common
Revenue: Income Net Income Stock
$ 6,827,61! $ 4,045,67: $ 3,057,43 $ 0.14
7,575,30 3,252,81. 2,907,29! 0.1
5,760,75I 1,742,57 1,819,13! 0.0¢
8,216,46 4,370,77. 3,566,211 0.1
$28,380,14 $13,411,84 $11,350,08 $ 0.5
$ 5,924,09. $ 3,333,14. $ 2,498,42 $ 0.1z
6,031,83. 2,952,04. 2,618,331 0.15
5,868,53! 3,440,58! 2,726,08! 0.1<
7,477,87! 4,936,27. 3,610,88. 0.17
$25,302,33 $14,662,04 $11,453,71 $ 0.5t
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Earnings
Per Share «
Common
Stock
Assuming

Dilution

$ 0.14

0.1z
0.0¢
0.1

$ 0.4¢

$ 0.1z

0.1Z
0.1¢
0.17

$ 0.54
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUTANTS ON ACC OUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, thenewo changes in or disagreements with our IndbgerRegistered Public Accounting Fi
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, over accounting arahéial disclosure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Proderes

The Securities and Exchange Commission definetethe “disclosure controls and procedures” to meaarapany’s controls and other
procedures that are designed to ensure that infmmeequired to be disclosed in the reports thikeis or submits under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recordedepsed, summarized and reported, within the timegespecified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Our Presigieth Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Final&fficer, based on their evaluation
of our disclosure controls and procedures as o By 2006, concluded that our disclosure conantsprocedures were effective for this
purpose.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management’s report on internal control ovearficial reporting is set forth in Item 8 of thisrral Report on Form 10-K and is
incorporated by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control ovearicial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) emtthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended) during our fourth fiscal quarter thatnaserially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item appears urilercaptions “Directors and Officers” and “Sectidd(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” included in the Company’s Proxy Statetrer its 2006 Annual Stockholders Meeting to tedf with the Securities and
Exchange commission within 120 days after June€B06, and is incorporated by reference in this AhiReport on Form 10-K.

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethiasailable on the Company’s website at www.royialgom and in print to any
stockholder who requests a copy. Requests for s@hieuld be directed to Royal Gold, Inc., Attentiaren Gross, 1660 Wynkoop Street,
Suite 1000, Denver, Colorado, 80202. The Compatanits to disclose any amendments to the Code ah&sConduct and Ethics on the
Company’s website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item appears uridercaption “Compensation of Directors and Offi¢encluded in the Company’s Proxy
Statement for its 2006 Annual Stockholders Meetinbe filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiaiswithin 120 days after June 30,
2006, and is incorporated by reference in this Ahieport on Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item appears uridercaption “Security Ownership of Certain Benafi©Owners and Management” included
in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2006 Arir@tackholders Meeting to be filed with the Sedestand Exchange Commission within
120 days after June 30, 2006, and is incorporagaefierence in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item appears urilercaption “Certain Relationships and Relatech3aations” included in the Company’s
Proxy Statement for its 2006 Annual Stockholderstifigy to be filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission within 120 days after
June 30, 2006, and is incorporated by referentiéisnAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item appears uritlercaption “Ratification of Appointment of Indepkent Certified Public Accountants”
included in the Compang’Proxy Statement for its 2006 Annual Stockholdéegting to be filed with the Securities and Excre@pmmissiol
within 120 days after June 30, 2006, and is incataal by reference in this Annual Report on ForrK10
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following is a list of documents filed as pafthis report and are included herewith (*) or @deen filed previously

(1) Financial Statements included in Itenr

Consolidated Balance She

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compséhemcome
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash F

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(2) Financial Statement schedules: All Schedulesari¢ted because the information called for is rpyileable, is not required, or because

the required information is set forth in the finedstatements or notes there

(3) Exhibits:
Exhibit
Number Description
2.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of High Desddrger Sub Inc. into High Desert Mineral Resourdes, (filed as

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F&# (File No. 001-13357) on December 23, 2002 imdrporated herein
by reference

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as Bxh3.1 to the Compar’'s Current Report on Forn-K on September 21, 20(
and incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 39.the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) or
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by refs

Certificate of Designations (filed as Exhibit 2@.40 the Compar’s Registration Statement on Fori-3 on December 27, 19¢
and incorporated herein by referen

Shareholder Rights Agreement (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Comy’s Form A (File No. 00(-56647) on September 12, 18
and incorporated herein by referen
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Exhibit

Number

10.1**

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7**

10.8

10.9

10.10

Description
Equity Incentive Plan (filed as part of the Com(’s proxy statement for its 1996 Annual Meeting afcBholders on Novemb:
25, 1996 (File No. 0(-56647) and incorporated herein by referer

Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd., Silvet Baryte Ores Mining Co., S.A., and Royal Gold;.)Jmlated effectiv
March 30, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(s) to the Comyga Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-1335W September 28,
1998 and incorporated herein by referer

Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd. and R@®@d, Inc. dated effective March 28, 1998 (filedEaxhibit 10(t) to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 28, 1998 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

Exploration and Development Option Agreement betwkacer Dome United States, Inc. and Royal Gaid, dated effective
July 1, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(v) to the Compavnnual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-133%n) September 28, 1998
and incorporated herein by referen

Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. andGbetez Joint Venture dated April 1, 1999 (filedpast of Item 5 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on April 12, 1999 and incorporated hereirrdfgrence

Firm offer to purchase royalty interest“ldaho Grou” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group dated 28Jy1999 (filed a
Attachment A to the Company’s Current Report omi8rK (File No. 00113357) on September 2, 1999 and incorporated t
by reference

Amendment to Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appienalto the Company’s proxy statement (File No. QMB357) on
October 15, 1999 and incorporated herein by refesk

Loan agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSB&REBA dated December 18, 2000 (filed as Exhibi e Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-13357) on February 8, 2001 and incorporated hédrgireference

Share Exchange Agreement, dated November 9, 2@0hdbetween P. Lee Halavais and Royal Gold,(fited as Exhibit 10.:
to the Compar’s Form K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated heseirference

Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated Namepa) 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.a to the Comf's Current Repol
on Form K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hbseieference
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Exhibit
Number

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16**

10.17**

10.18**

10.19**

10.20**

Description
Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Nateeimber 29, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.b to @m@mpan’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hésereference

Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Decefi002 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Current Report o
Form &K (File No. 00--13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hesereference

Production Payment Agreement between Genesis ticRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004 (filsdEahibit 10.1(a) to tt
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hédreireference

Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢ithe Compar’'s
Current Report on Forr-K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdreieference

Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢cfhe Company’s Current
Report on Form -K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hédrereference

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (filedeaghibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report omnf8-K (File No. 001-
13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héneieference

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (filasl Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8-K (File No.
001-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héxeneference

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (filed as Exhii§i.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form @#e No. 001-13357)
on February 25, 2005 and incorporated herein tareete’

Agreement dated February 18, 2005, by and betwegalRSold, Inc. and Stefan Wenger (filed as Exhiiit05 to the
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héneieference

Royal Gold, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Long-Term IncentiVer(filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CurrBetport on Form 8-K
(File No. 00-13357) on September 21, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference
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Exhibit

Number

10.21**

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

Description
Form of Employment Contract (together with Scheafl€ertain Executive Officers Parties Theretdg(fias Exhibit 99.3 to tt
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

Royalty Assignment and Agreement, effective as eé@&@nber 26, 2002, between High Desert Mineral Ressulnc. and Hig
Desert Gold Corporation (filed as Exhibit 99.4he Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File N@1-13357) on
September 22, 2005 and incorporated herein byaede)

Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amendment, andt®&ement of Royalty, and Agreement, dated as ethhber 30, 1995,
among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., Barrick Goldstrike Mis Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filed as Exhibit 99.5hHe Company’s Current
Report on Form -K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

Amendment to Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Arderent, and Restatement of Royalty, and Agreeméettee as of
October 1, 2004, among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., BekriGoldstrike Mines Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filesl Bxhibit 99.6 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement Between Rayldl tic. and HSBC Bank USA, National Associatifited as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrr@&-K (File No. 001-13357) on December 20, 2005 iandrporated herein
by reference

Amended and Restated Promissory Note (filed astiixh®.2 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-
13357) on December 20, 2005 and incorporated hbseisference. Entered into pursuant to the AmershetiRestated Loan
Agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSBC Bank US$#tional Association, filed as Exhibit 10.Z

Proceeds Agreement with HSBC Bank USA (filed asikixi0.3 to the Company’s Current Report on For @-ile No. 001-
13357) on December 20, 2005 and incorporated hbseisference. Entered into pursuant to the AmershetiRestated Loan
Agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSBC Bank U$#tional Association, filed as Exhibit 10.Z

Purchase Agreement, dated December 22, 2005 &ddekhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current ReporEForm 8-K (File
No. 002-13357) on December 29, 2005 and incorporated heseirference

Funding Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2008nHdybetween Societe des Mines de Taparko, alserkas Somita SA

and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thempany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File N@1A3357) on
February 8, 2006 and incorporated herein by retes¥
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Exhibit

Number

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

Description

Form of Guarantee Agreement, dated as of DecemI280b, by High River Gold Mines, Ltd. in favor Bbyal Gold, Inc. (filec
as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on February 8,68280d incorporated
herein by reference

Form of Initial Pledge Agreement, dated as of Ddoeni, 2005, by High River Gold Mines, Ltd. in fawaf Royal Gold, Inc.
(filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s QuarterigpRrt on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on Febri&rg006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amended and Restated Funding Agreement datedesbotiary 22, 2006, between Société des Mines darKapalso known a
Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibix1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-ke(No. 001-13357) on
March 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by refere

Conveyance of Tail Royalty and Grant of Milling Feegted as of February 22, 2006, between Sociét®ldes de Taparko, also
known as Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filedeadibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report onnr&-K (File No. 001-
13357) on March 7, 2006 and incorporated hereirebgrence

Conveyance of Production Payment dated as of Fgb22a 2006, between Société des Mines de Tapatko,known as Somit
SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.3tb@ Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File R@1-13357) on March 7,
2006 and incorporated herein by referer

Guaranty and Agreement in Support of Somita Fundiggeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Hgter Gold Mine
Ltd. to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. €fil as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q (File
No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein byreace)

Pledge Agreement dated as of February 22, 200&gleet High River Gold Mines (International) Ltd. gHiRiver Gold Mines
(West Africa) Ltd. and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed agltbit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report omrd 0-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein bgreace)

Guarantee Agreement dated as of February 22, 2008igh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal Ghlinc. (filed as

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrf 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 arnzbiporated herein by
reference
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Number

10.38

10.39

10.40**

10.41*

141

21.1*
23.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

32.2*

Description

Pledge of Securities dated as of February 22, 2006ligh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal Glo Inc. (filed as Exhibi
10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10~i@ No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorpedaterein by
reference

Contribution Agreement in Support of Somita Fundikgreement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Hiyler Gold Mine
Ltd. to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. €fil as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q (File
No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein byreace)

Form of Performance Share Agreement. (filed asliixhD.6 to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein fgreace)

Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed of Trust, 8g@greement, Pledge and Financing Statement teEtviRoyal Gold, Inc
and HSBC USA, National Association, dated as ofdddwer 14, 2005, (entered into pursuant to the Arem@ehd Restated Lo
Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. and HSBC Bank USstional Association, filed as Exhibit 10.2

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (filed undéniliik99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F&H (File No. 001-
13357) on November 14, 2005 and incorporated héxeneference

Royal Gold and Its Subsidiari

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi required by Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Chief Financial Officer required I$ection 302 of the Sarbai-Oxley Act of 200z

Written Statement of the President and Chief Exeewfficer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officergwant to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 200z

* Filed herewith
**  |dentifies each management contract or compenspl&mor arrangemer
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1bf(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the itegit has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.
ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Date: September 6, 20C By: /s/ Tony Jense
Tony Jenser
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbeated.

Date: September 6, 2006 By: /s/ Tony Jense
Tony Jenser
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: September 6, 20C By: /s/ Stefan L. Weng:
Stefan L. Wengel
Chief Financial Officer

Date: September 6, 20C By: /s/ Stanley Dempst
Stanley Dempse)
Executive Chairmar

Date: September 6, 2006 By: /s/ S. Oden Howell, J
S. Oden Howell, Jr
Director

Date: September 6, 20C By: /s/ John W. Gotl
John W. Goth
Director

Date: September 6, 2006 By: /s/ Merritt E. Marcus
Merritt E. Marcus
Director

Date: September 6, 2006 By: /s/ Edwin W. Peiker, J
Edwin W. Peiker, Jr.
Director

Date: September 6, 20C By: /s/ James W. Stucke
James W. Stucker
Director

Date: September 6, 2006 By: /s/ Donald J. Wortl
Donald J. Worth




Director
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of High Desddrger Sub Inc. into High Desert Mineral Resourdes, (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F&did (File No. 001-13357) on December 23, 2002 isedrporated herein
by reference

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as bBih3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Foritd 8n September 21, 2005
and incorporated herein by referen

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit $8.the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) or
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by refs

3.3 Certificate of Designations (filed as Exhibit 2@.40 the Compar’'s Registration Statement on For-3 on December 27, 19¢
and incorporated herein by referen

4.1 Shareholder Rights Agreement (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Comy's Form A (File No. 00(-56647) on September 12, 19
and incorporated herein by referen

10.1** Equity Incentive Plan (filed as part of the Com(’s proxy statement for its 1996 Annual Meeting afcBholders on Novemb:
25, 1996 (File No. 0(-56647) and incorporated herein by referer

10.2 Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd., Silvet Baryte Ores Mining Co., S.A., and Royal Gold;.)Jmlated effectiv
March 30, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(s) to the Comyga Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-1335% September 28,
1998 and incorporated herein by referer

10.3 Private Agreement between Rakov Pty. Ltd. and R@®@d, Inc. dated effective March 28, 1998 (filedExhibit 10(t) to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 28, 1998 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

104 Exploration and Development Option Agreement betwkacer Dome United States, Inc. and Royal Gaid, dated effective
July 1, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(v) to the Compannual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-133%n) September 28, 1998
and incorporated herein by referen

10.5 Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. andGbetez Joint Venture dated April 1, 1999 (filedpast of Item 5 of the

Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on April 12, 1999 and incorporated hereirrdfgrence
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10.6 Firm offer to purchase royalty interest“ldaho Grou” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group dated 22)y1999 (filed a
Attachment A to the Company’s Current Report omfr8¢K (File No. 00113357) on September 2, 1999 and incorporated ¥
by reference

10.7** Amendment to Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appie&nilto the Company’s proxy statement (File No. QB357) on
October 15, 1999 and incorporated herein by refsk

10.8 Loan agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSB&KBEBA dated December 18, 2000 (filed as Exhibit e Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-13357) on February 8, 2001 and incorporated hdrgieference

10.9 Share Exchange Agreement, dated November 9, 29Ghdbetween P. Lee Halavais and Royal Gold,(fited as Exhibit 10.:
to the Compar’s Form &K (File No. 00-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hesereference

10.10 Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated NoseRi) 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.a to the Compsi@urrent Report
on Form K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hegsereference

10.11 Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Nateeimber 29, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.b to @@mpany’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hésersference

10.12 Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Decefi002 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Current Report o
Form &K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated heseieference

10.13 Production Payment Agreement between Genesis titcRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004 (filsdeahibit 10.1(a) to th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdreireference

10.14 Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢ithe Compar’'s
Current Report on Formr-K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdrgieference

10.15 Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Golddaied October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢cfhte Compar’s Current

Report on Form -K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hédreireference
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10.16** Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (filedeaghibit 10.01 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-
13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated hénemeference

10.17** Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (filegl Exhibit 10.02 to the Compé's Current Report on Forn-K (File No.
001-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héneireference

10.18** Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (filed as Exhii.03 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357)
on February 25, 2005 and incorporated herein tareete’

10.19** Agreement dated February 18, 2005, by and betwegalRsold, Inc. and Stefan Wenger (filed as ExhiifitO5 to the
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héneieference

10.20** Royal Gold, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Long-Term IncentiVerR(filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CurrBetport on Form 8-K
(File No. 00-13357) on September 21, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.21** Form of Employment Contract (together with Schedifl€ertain Executive Officers Parties Theretde(fias Exhibit 99.3 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.22 Royalty Assignment and Agreement, effective as e€&nber 26, 2002, between High Desert Mineral Ressulnc. and High
Desert Gold Corporation (filed as Exhibit 99.4he Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File N@1-13357) on
September 22, 2005 and incorporated herein byaede)

10.23 Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amendment, andt®&ement of Royalty, and Agreement, dated as eehibber 30, 199¢
among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., Barrick Goldstrike Més Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filed as Exhibit 99.5iHe Company’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.24 Amendment to Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amerent, and Restatement of Royalty, and Agreeméettave as of
October 1, 2004, among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., BekriGoldstrike Mines Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filesl Bxhibit 99.6 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.25 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement Between Rayldl thc. and HSBC Bank USA, National Associatifited as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrr@&-K (File No. 001-13357) on December 20, 2005 iandrporated herein
by reference
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10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Amended and Restated Promissory Note (filed astiixh®.2 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-
13357) on December 20, 2005 and incorporated hégeirference. Entered into pursuant to the AmersahelRestated Loan
Agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSBC Bank US$#tional Association, filed as Exhibit 10.Z

Proceeds Agreement with HSBC Bank USA (filed asikixi0.3 to the Company’s Current Report on For @-ile No. 001-
13357) on December 20, 2005 and incorporated hbseieference. Entered into pursuant to the AmershetiRestated Loan
Agreement between Royal Gold Inc. and HSBC Bank U$#tional Association, filed as Exhibit 10.Z

Purchase Agreement, dated December 22, 2005 &ddekhibit 10.1 to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K (File
No. 002-13357) on December 29, 2005 and incorporated heseirference

Funding Agreement, dated as of December 1, 200&nHybetween Societe des Mines de Taparko, alse Bs@Gomita SA, an
Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Caang’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 0@B47) on February 8,
2006 and incorporated herein by referer

Form of Guarantee Agreement, dated as of Deceml&80b, by High River Gold Mines, Ltd. in favor Rbyal Gold, Inc. (filed
as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on February 8,68280d incorporated
herein by reference

Form of Initial Pledge Agreement, dated as of Ddoeni, 2005, by High River Gold Mines, Ltd. in favaf Royal Gold, Inc
(filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s QuarterlgpRrt on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on Febri&rg006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amended and Restated Funding Agreement datedsbofiary 22, 2006, between Société des Mines darkapalso known as
Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibix 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-#e(No. 001-13357) on
March 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by refere

Conveyance of Tail Royalty and Grant of Milling Feeted as of February 22, 2006, between Sociét®ldes de Taparko, also
known as Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filedeaibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report onnr&-K (File No. 001-
13357) on March 7, 2006 and incorporated hereirefgrence

Conveyance of Production Payment dated as of Fgb22a 2006, between Société des Mines de Tapaftko,known as Somit
SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.3th@ Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File B@1-13357) on March 7,
2006 and incorporated herein by referer

Guaranty and Agreement in Support of Somita Fundiggeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Riler Gold Mine

Ltd. to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. €fil as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q (File
No. 00-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein Breace)
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10.36 Pledge Agreement dated as of February 22, 200égeet High River Gold Mines (International) Ltd.,gHiRiver Gold Mine:
(West Africa) Ltd. and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed asltbit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report omrd 0-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein greace)

10.37 Guarantee Agreement dated as of February 22, 2008igh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal Ghlinc. (filed as Exhibi
10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10~ No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorpedaterein by
reference

10.38 Pledge of Securities dated as of February 22, 2006ligh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal &g Inc. (filed as Exhibi
10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10~i@ No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorpedaterein by
reference

10.39 Contribution Agreement in Support of Somita Fundikgreement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Riyer Gold Mine
Ltd. to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. €fil as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q (File
No. 00-13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein Breace)

10.40** Form of Performance Share Agreement. (filed asliikhD.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FA0nQ (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein greace)

10.41* Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed of Trust, 8gAgreement, Pledge and Financing Statement teiviRoyal Gold, Inc
and HSBC USA, National Association, dated as ofddawer 14, 2005, (entered into pursuant to the Arerahd Restated Loan
Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. and HSBC BanR U$ational Association, filed as Exhibit 10.2

14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (filed undéniliix99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F&HK (File No. 001-
13357) on November 14, 2005 and incorporated héneirference

21.1* Royal Gold and Its Subsidiari

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1* Certification of President and Chief Executive ©dfi required by Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer required I$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Written Statement of the President and Chief Exeeudfficer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
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32.2* Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officergwant to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 200z

* Filed herewith

**

Identifies each management contract or compenspléomor arrangemer
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY AGREEMENT,
PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT

FROM
ROYAL GOLD, INC., as Trustor
TO
STEWART TITLE OF NORTHEASTERN NEVADA, as Trustee
AND
HSBC BANK USA, National Association, as Beneficiary
DATED AS OF DECEMBER 14, 2005

THIS INSTRUMENT CONTAINS AFTER-ACQUIRED PROPERTY RR/ISIONS.
THIS INSTRUMENT SECURES FUTURE ADVANCES.

THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED AND/OR FILED
SHOULD BE RETURNED TO:

Joel O. Benson, Esq.

Davis Graham & Stubbs LLP

1550 Seventeenth Street, Suite 500
Denver, Colorado 80202

EXHIBIT 10.41




AMENDED AND RESTATED
MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY AGREEMENT,
PLEDGE AND FINANCING STATEMENT

This Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed ustTSecurity Agreement, Pledge and Financing Site (the “Mortgage”) is entered into
by and among Royal Gold, Inc., a Delaware corponativhose address is 1660 Wynkoop Street, Suit8,IDénver, Colorado 80202-1132
(herein called “Trustor”), Stewart Title of Nortretarn Nevada, (herein called “Trustee”), and HSB@QBUSA, National Association (herein
called “Beneficiary”), a bank organized under tae$ of the State of New York, whose address isHfR Avenue, New York, New York
10018.

RECITALS

A. The Trustor, Trustee and Beneficiary erdergo that certain Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Segukgreement, Pledge and Financing
Statement, effective as of December 18, 2000 wivizh recorded with the Office of the County Clerki &ecorder, Lander County, Nevada
January 10, 2001, number 218220 in Book 485, Pagedo 154 (as amended and modified prior to the Hareof, the “Existing Mortgage”).
As a result of and as contemplated in that ceAamended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as eniler 14, 2005, between Trustor, as
borrower, and Beneficiary, as lender (the “Loanégnent”)the Trustor, Trustee and Beneficiary desire to amesstate, modify and contin
the Existing Mortgage as provided herein.

B. This Mortgage secures the Trustor’s proamat complete payment and performance of all Obtigatunder, and as defined in, the Loan
Agreement. It is a condition precedent to the Bierg/ making “Loans” to the Trustor under, anddagined in, the Loan Agreement that the
Trustor shall have granted and perfected the Bewksecurity interests contemplated by this Morgag

C. The Existing Mortgage is hereby amendedtioaed and restated in its entirety as set foetreim.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree kms:

ARTICLE 1 — DEFINITIONS
Section 1.1 _ Defined Term§&or the purposes of this instrument:

“Collateral” includes Personalty CollaterabldRealty Collateral as hereinafter defined.
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“Debt Service Reserve Account” means a denagpabsit account of Trustor at the offices of the&eiary in New York, New York,
Account Number 66C-003556, and all other accoutiisfivmay be maintained from time to time by Trustoaccordance with the Loan
Agreement.

“Dollars” mean lawful money of the United Stsitof America.
“Effective Date” means December 14, 2005.
“Obligations” means the aggregate of:

(i) all amounts payable pursuant to an amerahedrestated promissory note, dated December0D5, payable in full on or before
December 31, 2008, executed by Trustor, payalleetorder of the Beneficiary, in the principal fagaount of Thirty Million Dollars
($30,000,000) (referred to herein as the “NoteXpauted and delivered pursuant to the Loan Agreémen

(if) any and all other or additional indebteds or liabilities for which Trustor is now or mgcome liable to Beneficiary in any manner,
whether under this instrument, the Loan Agreemeiaing other Loan Document (as defined in the Lognedment), either primarily or
secondarily, absolutely or contingently, directhirdirectly, jointly, severally, or jointly and gerally, and whether matured or unmatured, and
whether or not created after payment in full of @tgigations if this instrument shall not have beeleased of record by Beneficiary;

(i) all sums advanced and costs and expeinsesred by the Trustee or the Beneficiary, inahgdwithout limitation all legal, accounting,
engineering, management, consulting or like feesjerand incurred in connection with the Obligatidascribed in paragraphs (i) and (ii)
above or any part thereof, any renewal, extensionadification of, or substitution for, the foreggi Obligations or any part thereof, or the
acquisition, perfection or maintenance and presienvaf the security therefor, whether such advancests or expenses shall have been made
and incurred at the request of Trustee, Benefigarjrustor; and

(iv) any and all extensions and renewals wbssitutions for, or modifications or amendmentsy of the foregoing Obligations or any part
thereof.

“Personalty Collateral” means all of Trustdrigerest now owned or hereafter acquired in an@iall Products attributable to the Royalty
Interests, (ii) all Production Sales Contracts) &éll Royalty Agreements, (iv) all Refinery Accasn(v) the Debt Service Reserve Account, and
(vi) all accounts, contract rights and generalrgibles now existing or hereafter arising in conimgcwith the exploration for, production,
processing, treatment, storage, transportationufaature or sale of Products attributable to thgdRy Interests.

“Proceeds” includes whatever is received upensale, exchange, collection or other dispositioiine Collateral and insurance payable or
damages or other payments by reason of loss orgiatoahe Collateral, and all additions therettssitutions and replacements thereof or
accessions thereto.
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“Production Sales Contract” means each contraw in effect or hereafter entered into by TrustoTrustor’'s predecessors in title for the
sale, purchase, exchange or processing of Prodtidtsutable to the Royalty Interests.

“Products” means without limitation all orejmarals, concentrate, doré, bar, and refined galder or other metals.

“Realty Collateral” means all of Trustor’'sémést in and to the Royalty Interests, including, fot limited to, the interests of Trustor
described or specified in PartslIl and Il of Exhibit A hereto.

“Refinery Accounts” means accounts, and tleelictbalances in Dollars or Products therein, afStor at any refinery or processing facility
to which Products attributable to the Royalty Ietds are delivered, expressly including all accoohiTrustor presently in effect at Johnson
Matthey in Salt Lake City, Utah.

“Royalty Agreements” means the agreementstifiketh in Part IV of Exhibit A which create, define or otherwise pertain to thgdRy
Interests, as of the Effective Date, and all olgmeements to which Trustor is a party which peraithe Royalty Interests.

“Royalty Interests” means the royalty intesesihd estates and other interests of Trustor fikhin Part lof Exhibit A attached hereto and
made a part hereof, in the lands described in Raatsd 11l of Exhibit A , whether now owned or hereafter acquired, or dhgraRoyalty
Interest acquired with the proceeds of the Loamysration of law or otherwise, together with dllToustor’s interests of any nature
whatsoever now or hereafter incident or appurtetiareto, including, but not limited to, fee minemad surface interests in said lands, all
unsevered and unextracted Products in, underridsatible to Trustor’s interests in the royaltyergst and estates and other interests of Trusto
identified in_Part lof Exhibit A hereto, in the lands described in Partarid 11l of Exhibit A and in any other royalty interests, estates aneroth
interests in lands acquired with the proceeds afrispand all rights of way, surface leases, aneneasts affecting the foregoing interests of
Trustor or useful or appropriate in exploring amg@/mducing, processing, treating, handling, smrinansporting or marketing Products
therefrom.

ARTICLE 2 — CREATION OF SECURITY

Section 2.1 _ Grantin consideration of the Beneficiary’s advancimgegtending the funds or credit constituting thdigdtions, and in
consideration of the mutual covenants containedihgand for the purpose of securing payment ofdhkgations, Trustor hereby grants,
bargains, sells, warrants, mortgages, assignsfearmnand conveys the Realty Collateral to the t€ayswith power of sale subject to the terms
thereof, for the benefit of Beneficiary; to havelda hold the Realty Collateral, together withaild singular the rights, privileges, contracts,
and appurtenances now or hereafter at any timedéie foreclosure or release hereof, in any wagdpining or belonging thereto, unto the
Trustee and to its substitutes or successors, dor@vtrust, upon the terms and conditions heseirforth; and Trustor hereby binds and
obligates itself and its successors and assigngatmant and to defend, all and singular, titi¢hie Collateral unto the Trustee, its substitutes or
successors, forever, against the claims of anyalinmbrsons whomsoever claiming any part thereof.
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Section 2.2 _ Creation of Security Interdst addition to the grant contained_in Section,2ahd for the same consideration and purpose,
Trustor hereby grants to the Beneficiary, a fired @rior security interest in all Personalty Cadlat, now owned or hereafter acquired by
Trustor, and in all Proceeds. Trustor, without ting the foregoing provisions of this Section 22ipulates that the grant made by this
Section 2.dncludes a grant of a security interest in Prodestsacted from or attributable to the Royalty tetds and in the Proceeds resulting
from sale of such Products, such security intdreattach to such Products as extracted and tadbeunts resulting from such sales.

Section 2.3 _ Pledgédrustor hereby makes a common law pledge to #reeBiciary of the Debt Service Reserve AccountthiedRefinery
Accounts, and the credit balances therein from tiotéme.

Section 2.4 _ Proceed$he security interest of Beneficiary hereundethi;n Proceeds shall not be construed to mean gvafigiary
consents to the sale or other disposition of amygfahe Collateral other than Products extradteth or attributable to the Royalty Interests
and sold in the ordinary course of business.

Section 2.5 _ Substitution of Beneficiary Taustor. This instrument shall be effective, at the Betiafy’s option and as allowed by
applicable law, as a mortgage as well as a detuistf and every grant herein to the Trustee @frasts, powers, rights and remedies shall
likewise be a grant of the same interests, powsgists and remedies to the Beneficiary, as mortga§ebject to applicable law, Beneficiary
shall in all instances, and in its sole discretiglect whether this instrument shall be effectigs@anortgage or as a deed of trust.

Section 2.6 _ Continuing Status of Lien, S#gunterest and Pledge

(a) The Loan Agreement and the Note provideafeevolving loan or loans from the Beneficianthe Trustor pursuant to which, for the
period specified in the Loan Agreement and in tlséelNand subject to the terms and conditions of-then Agreement, the Trustor may
borrow, repay and reborrow funds from the Beneffici&o long as the commitment of the Beneficiargemthe Loan Agreement to advance
funds to the Trustor remains in effect, the lierttom Realty Collateral and the security interestrid pledge relating to the Personalty Colla
created hereby shall remain in effect with the gitiadate established by the recording or filingew, notwithstanding the fact that from time
to time the outstanding balance of the loans tdTtlustor under the Loan Agreement may be zero.

(b) This Mortgage amends, restates and cossitlue Existing Mortgage and nothing containedihesigall be deemed or construed to be a
repayment, satisfaction or novation of the Obligiasi or to release, terminate, novate or in any sy or impair any lien, security interest or
encumbrance granted or given under the Existingtdége or otherwise to secure the Obligations.
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ARTICLE 3 — ASSIGNMENT OF PRODUCTION PROCEEDS

Section 3.1 _ Assignmen#s further security for the payment of the Obligas, the Trustor hereby assigns to the Beneficigffective
upon an Event of Default, all Products (and thecBeds therefrom) which are extracted from or aitable to the Royalty Interests and,
effective automatically upon an Event of Defauie Trustor hereby transfers, assigns, warrant€andeys to Beneficiary all Products (and
Proceeds therefrom) which are extracted from oibatiable to the Royalty Interests. Upon the ocenice of an Event of Default, all persons
producing, purchasing and receiving such ProductseoProceeds therefrom are authorized and dddot&eat Beneficiary as the person
entitled in Trustor’s place and stead to receieesime; and further, those persons will be fulbtguted in so treating Beneficiary and will be
under no obligation to see to the application bypdéiary of any Proceeds received by it. Trustgneas that, if, after the occurrence of an
Event of Default, any Proceeds from such Produgtaid to Trustor, such proceeds shall constttute funds in the hands of Trustor, shal
segregated from all other funds of Trustor and isply held by Trustor, and shall be forthwith paiger by Trustor to Beneficiary in
accordance with the Loan Agreement. Upon the oeoes of an Event of Default, Trustor shall, if avten requested by Beneficiary, execute
and file with any production purchaser a transfeleo or other instrument declaring Beneficiary ¢éoemtitled to the Proceeds of severed
Products and instructing such purchaser to pay Buoteeds to Beneficiary. After the occurrenceroEaent of Default, should any purchaser
fail to make payment promptly to Beneficiary of fm@ceeds derived from the sale thereof, Beneficgaall have the right, subject only to any
contractual rights of such purchaser or any opertdalesignate another purchaser to purchasea&edstich Products, without liability of any
kind on Beneficiary in making such selection sogl@s ordinary care is used in respect thereof.

Section 3.2 _ Trust@ Payment DutiesNothing contained herein will limit Trustor’'s duto make payment on the Obligations when the
Proceeds received by Beneficiary pursuant to thigl& 3are insufficient to pay the costs, interest, ppatiand any other portion of the
Obligations then owing, and the receipt of Procd®dBeneficiary will be in addition to all otheraeity now or hereafter existing to secure
payment of the Obligations.

Section 3.3 _ Liability of BeneficiaryBeneficiary has no obligation to enforce colleotdf any Proceeds and is hereby released from all
responsibility in connection therewith, except tagponsibility to account to Trustor for Proceedially received.

Section 3.4 _ IndemnificatiorTrustor agrees to indemnify Beneficiary agaimst hold Beneficiary harmless from all claims, agtip
liabilities, losses, judgments, attorneys’ feests@nd expenses and other charges of any desnriphiatsoever (all of which are hereafter
referred to in this Section 3.4 as “Claims”) madaiast or sustained or incurred by Beneficiary asrssequence of the assertion, either before
or after the payment in full of the ObligationsatiBeneficiary received Products or Proceeds puatdoahis instrument. Beneficiary will have
the right to employ attorneys and to defend againgtClaims and unless furnished with satisfactedgmnity, after notice to Trustor,
Beneficiary will have the right to pay or compromand adjust all Claims in its sole reasonablereigm. Trustor shall indemnify and pay to
Beneficiary all amounts paid by Beneficiary in cawpise or adjustment of any of the Claims or amg@aafjudged against Beneficiary in
respect of any of the Claims. The liabilities ofitor as set forth in this Section 3.4 will cong#tObligations and will survive the termination
of this instrument.
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ARTICLE 4 — TRUSTOR’'S WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Section 4.1 _ Payment of Obligationkrustor covenants that it will pay all Obligatiowhen due and otherwise faithfully and strictly
perform all obligations of Trustor under the Ndtee Loan Agreement and any other instrument or ehecu executed and delivered in
connection with the Obligations. If any part of fBbligations is not evidenced by a writing specitya due date, Trustor agrees to pay the
same upon demand. All Obligations are payable toeBeiary as provided in the Loan Agreement.

Section 4.2 Warranties and Covenants

(a) Trustor warrants and covenants that:

(i) no approval or consent of any regufator administrative commission or authority oranfy other governmental body or any other
party is necessary to authorize the execution afidesty of this instrument or of any other writtgrstrument constituting or evidencing the
Obligations, or to authorize the observance orgerénce by Trustor of the covenants containederirtetruments constituting or
evidencing the Obligations, or to authorize theevbance or performance by Trustor of the covenemrsained in this instrument or in the
other written instruments constituting or evideigcihe Obligations or to enable the Beneficiaryxereise its rights hereunder;

(i) Trustor is not obligated, by virteé a prepayment arrangement under any Productidgs £ ontract containing a “take or pay”
clause or any other prepayment arrangement, teeddfiroducts produced from the Royalty Interestoate future time without then or
thereafter receiving full payment therefor; andskau, without Beneficiary’s prior written conseashall not hereafter make any such
prepayment arrangements, other than by a custotiadsy or pay” clause contained in a Production $&lentract; and

(iii) it has not (since 1987) used anyporate name or done business under a name btreRioyal Gold, Inc., and that it will not do
S0, or relocate its chief executive office outsifi¢he State of Colorado without at least thirtyslgrior notice to the Beneficiary.

(b) Trustor warrants and shall forevefiedd the Collateral against every person whomsoewéully claiming the same or any part
thereof, and Trustor shall maintain and preseredigm and security interest herein created uhitl instrument has been terminated as prov
herein.

Section 4.3 _ Operation of Property Burdewét Royalty Interests As long as this instrument has not been terméhateustor shall, at
Trustor's own expense, use commercially reasongffibets, consistent with its status as a non-ex@gutoyalty interest holder and
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consistent with Trustor’s rights and obligationslenthe Royalty Agreements, to cause the operatof(se properties subject to the Royalty
Interests to:

(a) comply fully with all of the terms éuconditions of all leases and other instrumentitlefand all rights-of-way, easements and
privileges necessary for the proper operation ohdeases and instruments, and otherwise do aljshiecessary to keep Trustor’s rights and
Beneficiary’s interest in the Collateral unimpaired

(b) not abandon any property which isdoiing or capable of commercial production or fibyfeurrender or release any lease, sublease,
operating agreement or other agreement or instruozenprising or affecting the Royalty Interestsheitit Beneficiary’s prior written consent,
which consent shall not be withheld unreasonably;

(c) cause the properties subject to thgalRy Interests to be maintained, developed araipd in a good and workmanlike manner as a
prudent operator would in accordance with geneiadlyepted practices, applicable operating agreenagwt all applicable federal, state and
local laws, rules, regulations and orders; and

(d) promptly pay or cause to be paid wHeea and owing all rentals and royalties payablegpect of the properties subject to the
Royalty Interests; all expenses incurred in orirgisrom the operation or development of such pridgg; and all taxes, assessments and
governmental charges imposed upon such properties.

Section 4.4 _Recording and Filingrustor shall pay all costs of filing, registegiand recording this and every other instrumeraiddition
or supplemental hereto and all financing statemBateeficiary may require, in such offices and ptaaed at such times and as often as ma
in the judgment of Beneficiary, necessary to presgprotect and renew the lien and security intdresein created as a first lien and prior
security interest on and in the Collateral and wtise do and perform all matters or things necgssaexpedient to be done or observed by
reason of any law or regulation of any State ahefUnited States or of any other competent authfoi the purpose of effectively creating,
maintaining and preserving the lien and securitgrist created herein and on the Collateral angribety thereof. Trustor shall also pay the
costs of obtaining reports from appropriate filoffjcers concerning financing statement filingg@spect of any of the Collateral in which a
security interest is granted herein.

Section 4.5 _ Trusteeor Beneficiarys Right to Perform Trustts Obligations Trustor agrees that, if Trustor fails to perfaany act which
Trustor is required to perform under this instrumm@&eneficiary or the Trustee or any receiver apiea hereunder may, but shall not be
obligated to, perform or cause to be performed swthand any expense incurred by Beneficiary erTtustee in so doing shall be a demand
obligation owing by Trustor to Beneficiary, shadldy interest at an annual rate equal to the maximterest rate provided in the Note until
paid and shall be a part of the Obligations, anddfeiary, the Trustee or any receiver shall berasghated to all of the rights of the party
receiving the benefit of such performance. The wa#teng of such performance by Beneficiary, thestee or any receiver as aforesaid shall
not obligate such person to continue such perfooman to engage in such performance or performahaay other act in the future, shall not
relieve Trustor from the observance or performasfany covenant, warranty or agreement containgligninstrument
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or constitute a waiver of default hereunder andl siza affect the right of Beneficiary to accelerdhe payment of all indebtedness and other
sums secured hereby or to resort to any othes oights or remedies hereunder or under applidableln the event the Beneficiary, the

Trustee or any receiver appointed hereunder uridestany such action, no such party shall haveiabifity to the Trustor in the absence of a
showing of gross negligence or willful miscondutsoch party, and in all events no party other tthenacting party shall be liable to Trustor.

ARTICLE 5 — DEFAULT

Section 5.1 _ Events of Defaulthe term “Event of Default” shall have the meangiven thereto in the Loan Agreement, but shalbal
include the occurrence or the existence of anpheffollowing conditions:

(a) failure by Trustor to keep, punctuyglerform or observe any of the covenants, obligtior prohibitions contained herein, in any
other written instrument evidencing any of the @alions or in any other agreement with Benefic{argether now existing or entered into
hereafter) following notice, if required, and theiation of applicable cure periods, if any; or

(b) the assertion (except by the owneaarobncumbrance expressly excepted from Trustatsanmty of title herein) of any claim of
priority over this instrument, by title, lien orhmrwise, unless Trustor within 30 days after sigdedion either causes the assertion to be
withdrawn or provides Beneficiary with such segudts Beneficiary may require to protect Beneficiagginst all loss, damage, or expense,
including attorneys’ fees, which Beneficiary magunin the event such assertion is upheld.

Section 5.2 _ Acceleration Upon Defaultpon the occurrence of any Event of Default,taargy time thereafter, Beneficiary may, at its
option, by notice to Trustor, declare the entirpaid principal of and the interest accrued on thédations to be due and payable forthwith
without any further notice, presentment or demaahg kind, all of which are hereby expressly walve

Section 5.3 __Possession and Operation gfd?typ. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, targy time thereafter, and in addition
to all other rights therein conferred on the Trastethe Beneficiary, the Trustee, the Benefic@rany person, firm or corporation designated
by Beneficiary, will have the right and power, lill not be obligated, to have an audit performadT rustor’'s expense, of the books and
records of Trustor, and to enter upon and takegssésn of all or any part of the Collateral, tolede Trustor therefrom, and to hold, use,
administer and manage the same to the extent thatdf could do so. The Trustee, the Beneficiargror person, firm or corporation
designated by the Beneficiary, may manage the t@otlh or any portion thereof, without any liahjltb Trustor in connection with such
management except with respect to gross negligened!ful misconduct; and the Trustee, the Beniefig or any person, firm or corporation
designated by Beneficiary will have the right tdlect, receive and receipt for all Products prodlaad sold from the Royalty Interests, and to
exercise every power, right and privilege of Trastith respect to the Collateral. Providing thees bbeen no foreclosure sale, when and if the
expenses of the management of the Collateral hese paid and the Obligations paid in full, the revimg Collateral shall be returned to the
Trustor.
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Section 5.4 _ Ancillary RightdJpon the occurrence of an Event of Default, carat time thereafter, and in addition to all othights of
Beneficiary hereunder, Beneficiary may, withoutioetdemand or declaration of default, all of whigkh hereby expressly waived by Trustor,
proceed by a suit or suits in equity or at lawfd¢i)the seizure and sale of the Collateral or aay thereof, (ii) for the specific performance of
any covenant or agreement herein contained odinfaihe execution of any power herein granted, for the foreclosure or sale of the
Collateral or any part thereof under the judgmerdexree of any court of competent jurisdiction) (iithout regard to the solvency or
insolvency of any person, and without regard tovillee of the Collateral, and without notice to Star (notice being hereby expressly waiv
for the ex parte appointment of a receiver to saritleout bond pending any foreclosure or sale hadeu, or (v) for the enforcement of any
other appropriate legal or equitable remedy.

ARTICLE 6 — BENEFICIARY’S RIGHTS AS TO REALTY COLL ATERAL UPON DEFAULT

Section 6.1 _ Judicial ForeclosurEhis instrument shall be effective as a mortgag®ell as a deed of trust and upon the occurrehae
Event of Default, or at any time thereafter, inul@f the exercise of the non-judicial power of dadeeafter given, Beneficiary may, subject to
any mandatory requirement of applicable law, prddaesuit to foreclose its lien hereunder and tbasehave sold the Realty Collateral or any
part thereof at one or more sales, as an entirgty marcels, at such place or places and otheniissich manner and upon such notice as may
be required by law, or, in the absence of any saghirement, as Beneficiary may deem appropriaig Beneficiary shall thereafter make or
cause to be made a conveyance to the purchasardrgsers thereof. Beneficiary may postpone theafahe real property included in the
Collateral or any part thereof by public announceta the time and place of such sale, and frore tiortime thereafter may further postpone
such sale by public announcement made at the tirgal® fixed by the preceding postponement. SakepArt of the real property included in
the Collateral will not exhaust the power of saled sales may be made from time to time untilathsproperty is sold or the Obligations are
paid in full.

Section 6.2 _ Nedudicial Foreclosurelf the Note or other Obligations are not paid whieie, whether by acceleration or otherwise, the
Trustee is hereby authorized and empowered, asthit be its duty, upon request of Beneficiary, emthe extent permitted by applicable law,
to sell any part of the Realty Collateral at onenmre sales, as an entirety or in parcels, at plade or places and otherwise in such manne
upon such notice as may be required by applicale dr in the absence of any such requirementrastde and/or Beneficiary may deem
appropriate, and to make conveyance to the purclagrirchasers thereof. Any sale shall be madeedighest bidder for cash at the door of
the county courthouse of, or in such other placeag be required or permitted by applicable lavtlie, county in the state where the Realty
Collateral or any part thereof is situated; proditieat and if the Realty Collateral lies in more tloene county, such part of the Realty Collat
may be sold
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at the courthouse door of any one of such courdias the notice so posted shall designate in weneimty such property shall be sold. Any
such sale shall be made at public outcry, on tlyeoflany month, during the hours of such day anerafuch written notices thereof have been
publicly posted in such places and for such tinops and after all persons entitled to noticegb&have been sent such notice, all as requirec
by applicable law in effect at the time of suctesdlhe affidavit of any person having knowledgé¢hef facts to the effect that such a service
completed shall be prinfacieevidence of the fact of service. The Trustor agthasno notice of any sale, other than as requisedpplicable
law, need be given by the Trustor, the Benefic@rany other person. The Trustor hereby desigrastéts address for the purposes of such
notice the address set out on page two hereofagreks that such address shall be changed onlggmsifing notice of such change enclose

a postpaid wrapper in a post office or official dspory under the care and custody of the UnitedeStPostal Service, certified mail, postage
prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed Beheficiary or other holder of the Obligationdte address for the Beneficiary set out herein
(or to such other address as the Beneficiary ardiblder of the Obligations may have designateddiice given as above provided to the
Trustor and such other debtors). Any such noticehange of address of the Trustor or other delatioos the Beneficiary or of other holder of
the Obligations shall be effective upon receipte Thustor authorizes and empowers the TrustedlttheeRealty Collateral in lots or parcels

in its entirety as the Trustee shall deem expepé&nd to execute and deliver to the purchaser mhasers thereof good and sufficient deeds of
conveyance thereto by fee simple title, with eviceof general warranty by the Trustee, and the éitisuch purchaser or purchasers when so
made by the Trustee, the Trustor binds itself torara and forever defend. Where portions of theltRe&2ollateral lie in different counties, sa

in such counties may be conducted in any orderttieaTrustee may deem expedient; and one or matesales may be conducted in the same
month, or in successive or different months asTtustor may deem expedient.

ARTICLE 7 — BENEFICIARY’S RIGHTS AS TO PERSONALTY AND FIXTURE COLLATERAL UPON DEFAULT

Section 7.1 _ Personalty Collaterélpon the occurrence of an Event of Default, arat time thereafter, Beneficiary may, without netto
Trustor, exercise its rights to declare all of @iaigations to be immediately due and payable, iictv case Beneficiary will have all rights and
remedies granted by law, and particularly by thé&dsm Commercial Code, including, but not limitea the right to take possession of the
Personalty Collateral, and for this purpose Beleficmay enter upon any premises on which anylafahe Personalty Collateral is situated
and take possession of and operate the Persordlbte®al or remove it therefrom. Beneficiary maguire Trustor to assemble the Personalty
Collateral and make it available to Beneficianttoe Trustee at a place to be designated by Beagfiwihich is reasonably convenient to all
parties. Unless the Personalty Collateral is pali#hor threatens to decline speedily in values afia type customarily sold on a recognized
market, Beneficiary will give Trustor reasonabldio® of the time and place of any public sale otheftime after which any private sale or
other disposition of the Personalty Collaterabi®é made. This requirement of sending reasonaieenwill be met if the notice is mailed,
postage prepaid, to Trustor at the address desigeédove at least five days before the time ok#ie or disposition.
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Section 7.2 _ Sale with Realty Collaterhl the event of foreclosure, whether judiciahon-judicial, at Beneficiary’s option it may procke
under the Uniform Commercial Code as to the PetpGallateral or it may proceed as to both Re@ltllateral and Personalty Collateral in
accordance with its rights and remedies in respiitte Realty Collateral.

Section 7.3 _ Private Sal# Beneficiary in good faith believes that thecBgties Act of 1933 or any other State or Fedkral prohibits or
restricts the customary manner of sale or distigmubf any of the Personalty Collateral, or if Béaciary determines that there is any other
restraint or restriction limiting the timely sale distribution of any such property in accordandthwhe customary manner of sale or
distribution, Beneficiary may sell or may cause Tmastee to sell such property privately or in atlyer manner it deems advisable at such
or prices as it determines in its sole discretiod without any liability whatsoever to Trustor iormection therewith. Trustor recognizes and
agrees that such prohibition or restriction mayseasuch property to have less value than it otlserwiould have and that, consequently, such
sale or disposition by Beneficiary may result ilowaer sales price than if the sale were otherwedd.h

ARTICLE 8 — OTHER PROVISIONS CONCERNING FORECLOSUR E

Section 8.1 _ Possession and Delivery ofa@etbl. It shall not be necessary for Beneficiary or Thestee to have physically present or
constructively in its possession any of the Cotkltat any foreclosure sale, and Trustor shalivéelio the purchasers at such sale on the d:
sale the Collateral purchased by such purchasertschtsale, and if it should be impossible or imficable for any of such purchasers to take
actual delivery of the Collateral, then the titfedaight of possession to the Collateral shall pagke purchaser at such sale as completely as if
the same had been actually present and delivered.

Section 8.2 _ Beneficiary as Purchadgeneficiary will have the right to become theghaser at any foreclosure sale, and it will haee th
right to credit upon the amount of the bid the amqayable to it out of the net proceeds of sale.

Section 8.3 _Recitals Conclusive; Warranee®, Ratification Recitals contained in any conveyance to any @sehat any sale made
hereunder will conclusively establish the truth aeduracy of the matters therein stated, includivithout limiting the generality of the
foregoing, nonpayment of the unpaid principal sdjrand the interest accrued on, the written insemts constituting part or all of the
Obligations after the same have become due andjggysnpayment of any other of the Obligationadwertisement and conduct of the sale
in the manner provided herein, and appointmenngfsaiccessor Trustee hereunder. Trustor ratifidscanfirms all legal acts that Beneficiary
and/or Trustee may do in carrying out the provisiofithis instrument.

Section 8.4 _ Effect of Salé\ny sale or sales of the Collateral or any paeteof will operate to divest all right, title, @rest, claim and
demand whatsoever, either at law or in equity, fsTor in and to the premises and the property, swid will be a perpetual bar, both at law
and in equity, against Trustor, Trustor’'s successorassigns and against any and all persons dlgioriwho shall thereafter claim all or any of
the property sold from, through or under
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Trustor, or Trustor’s successors or assigns. Sutgespplicable rights of redemption under appliedaw, the purchaser or purchasers at the
foreclosure sale will receive immediate possesefahe property purchased; and if Trustor retaiossgssion of the Realty Collateral, or any
part thereof, subsequent to sale, Trustor will mes@ered a tenant at sufferance of the purchagmsrohasers, and if Trustor remains in such
possession after demand of the purchaser or puechtisremove, Trustor will be guilty of forcibletainer and will be subject to eviction and
removal, forcible or otherwise, with or without pass of law, and without any right to damagesragisiut of such removal.

Section 8.5 _ Application of Proceedthe proceeds of any sale of the Collateral orgary thereof will be applied as follows:

(a) first, to the payment of all expensesirred by the Trustee and Beneficiary in conioectherewith, including, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, court costs, legakfaad expenses, fees of accountants, engineess)ltants, agents or managers and expenses 0
any entry or taking of possession, holding, valuprgparing for sale, advertising, selling and &ying;

(b) second, to the payment of the Obidges; and

(c) third, any surplus thereafter remainio Trustor or Trustor’'s successors or assighfhair interests may be established to
Beneficiary’s reasonable satisfaction.

Section 8.6 _ DeficiencyTrustor will remain liable for any deficiency avg to Beneficiary after application of the net preds of any
foreclosure sale.

Section 8.7 _ Trustar Waiver of Appraisement, Marshaling, Ef€rustor agrees that Trustor will not at any tims&ist upon or plead or in
any manner whatsoever claim the benefit of anyappment, valuation, stay, extension or redemgéiannow or hereafter in force, in order to
prevent or hinder the enforcement or foreclosurthisfinstrument, the absolute sale of the Coliter the possession thereof by any purchaser
at any sale made pursuant to this instrument agyaunt to the decree of any court of competentdiati®on. Trustor, for Trustor and all who
may claim through or under Trustor, hereby waiveshienefit of all such laws and to the extent Trastor may lawfully do so under
applicable state law, waives any and all rightaeehthe Realty Collateral marshaled upon any foseck of the lien hereof or sold in inverse
order of alienation and, Trustor agrees that thesfbr may sell the Realty Collateral as an entirety

ARTICLE 9 — MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.1 _ Discharge of Purchaddpon any sale made under the powers of salerhgranted and conferred, the receipt of Beneficiary
will be sufficient discharge to the purchaser orchasers at any sale for the purchase money, aidpsuwchaser or purchasers and the heirs,
devisees, personal representatives, successoesaighs thereof will not, after paying such pureha®ney and receiving such receipt of
Beneficiary, be obliged to see to the applicatlweréof or be in anywise answerable for any lossapplication or nonapplication thereof.
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Section 9.2 _ Indebtedness of Obligationsolie . Nothing herein contained shall be construedmagifig Beneficiary to the collection of
any indebtedness of Trustor to Beneficiary only @futhe income, revenue, rents, issues and pifodits the Collateral or as obligating
Beneficiary to delay or withhold action upon anyaddt which may be occasioned by failure of suatbime or revenue to be sufficient to retire
the principal or interest when due on the indebgsdrsecured hereby. It is expressly understoodeleetBeneficiary and Trustor that any
indebtedness of Trustor to Beneficiary securedbyesall constitute an absolute, unconditionalgdtion of Trustor to pay as provided herein
or therein in accordance with the terms of therimaent evidencing such indebtedness in the ambentin specified at the maturity date or at
the respective maturity dates of the installmemésdof, whether by acceleration or otherwise.

Section 9.3 _ Defense of Claimsrustee will promptly notify the Trustor and Béic@ry in writing of the commencement of any legal
proceedings affecting Beneficiary’s interest in @alateral, or any part thereof, and shall takehsaction, employing attorneys acceptable to
Beneficiary, as may be necessary to preserve Tisistoe Trustee’'s and Beneficiary’s rights affecteereby; and should Trustor fail or refuse
to take any such action, the Trustee or Benefigiaay take the action on behalf of and in the naffierastor and at Trustor’'s expense.
Moreover, Beneficiary or the Trustee on behalf ehBficiary may take independent action in connedti@rewith as they may in their
discretion deem proper, and Trustor hereby agreesake reimbursement for all sums advanced arekpénses incurred in such actions plus
interest at a rate equal to the maximum interd@stpeovided in the Loan Agreement.

Section 9.4 _ Terminationf all the Obligations are paid in full and thevenants herein contained are well and truly peréat, and if
Trustor and Beneficiary intend at such time thé thstrument not secure any obligation of Trush@reafter arising, then the Beneficiary st
upon the request of Trustor and at Trustor’s codtexpense, deliver to Trustor proper instrumereseted by the Beneficiary evidencing the
release of this instrument. Until such deliverys thstrument shall remain and continue in fullcerand effect.

Section 9.5 _Renewals, Amendments and (Bheurity. Renewals and extensions of the Obligations mayiven at any time,
amendments may be made to the agreements withgitiges relating to any part of the Obligationsha Collateral, and Beneficiary may take
or hold other security for the Obligations withaattice to or consent of Trustor. The Trustor or &@riary may resort first to other security or
any part thereof, or first to the security heredieg or any part thereof, or from time to time tther or both, even to the partial or complete
abandonment of either security, and such actiohnetlbe a waiver of any rights conferred by thistiument.

Section 9.6 _ Successor Truste€he Trustee may resign in writing addressed toefieiary or be removed at any time with or without
cause by an instrument in writing duly executedleyeficiary. In case of the resignation or remafahe Trustee, a successor Trustee may be
appointed by Beneficiary by instrument of subsidtcomplying with any applicable requirementsa#] and in the absence of any such
requirement, without other formality than an appwient and designation in writing. Any appointmend aesignation will be full evidence of
the right and authority to make the same and dhatk therein recited. Upon
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the making of any appointment and designatiorthallestate and title of the Trustee in all of tlealR/ Collateral will vest in the named
successor Trustee, and the successor will theresyareed to all the rights, powers, privileges, imities and duties hereby conferred upon
the Trustee. All references herein to the Trustidldoe deemed to refer to the Trustee from timénwe acting hereunder.

Section 9.7 _ Limitations on Intereddo provision of the Note, Loan Agreement or otimstrument constituting or evidencing any of the
Obligations or any other agreement between théegashall require the payment or permit the calbecof interest in excess of the maximum
non-usurious rate which Trustor may agree to paleuapplicable laws. The intention of the partiesf to conform strictly to applicable
usury laws now in force, the interest on the ppatamount of the Note and the interest on othewuants due under and/or secured by this
instrument shall be held to be subject to redudiiotine amount allowed under said applicable ukawg as now or hereafter construed by the
courts having jurisdiction, and any excess intepasd shall be credited to Trustor.

Section 9.8 _ Effect of Instrumerithis instrument shall be deemed and construée tand may be enforced as, an assignment, chattel
mortgage or security agreement, common law pleciygyact, deed of trust, financing statement, estédte mortgage, and as any one or more
of them if appropriate under applicable state [@his instrument shall be effective as a financitagesnent covering minerals or the like and
accounts subject to Section 9-103(5) (or corresipanplrovision) of the Uniform Commercial Code asieted in the appropriate jurisdiction
and is to be filed for record in the Office of t@eunty Clerk or other appropriate office of eachirtty where any part of the collateral is
situated. A carbon, photographic, or other reprtidncof this Mortgage or of any financing statemesiating to this Mortgage shall be
sufficient as a financing statement.

Section 9.9 _ Unenforceable or InapplicabieviBions. If any provision hereof or of any of the writterstruments constituting part or all of
the Obligations is invalid or unenforceable in @nysdiction, whether with respect to all partiexéto or with respect to less than all of such
parties, the other provisions hereof and of thetamiinstruments will remain in full force and effén that jurisdiction with respect to the
parties as to which such provision is valid andetgable, and the remaining provisions hereoflvglliberally construed in favor of
Beneficiary in order to carry out the provisionsdwd. The invalidity of any provision of this inatnent in any jurisdiction will not affect the
validity or enforceability of any provision in amyher jurisdiction.

Section 9.10 _ Rights CumulativEach and every right, power and remedy givendndiiciary herein or in any other written instrurhen
relating to the Obligations will be cumulative amat exclusive; and each and every right, powerrantedy whether specifically given herein
or otherwise existing may be exercised from timén@ and as often and in such order as may be el@expedient by Beneficiary, and the
exercise, or the beginning of the exercise, ofaugh right, power or remedy will not be deemed & &reof the right to exercise, at the same
time or thereafter, any other right, power or regnédwaiver by Beneficiary of any right or remedgreunder or under applicable law on any
occasion will not be a bar to the exercise of aglytror remedy on any subsequent occasion.
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Section 9.11 _ Nemvaiver. No act, delay, omission or course of dealing leetwBeneficiary and Trustor will be a waiver of afy
Beneficiary’s rights or remedies hereunder or uraggalicable law. No waiver, change or modificatiorwhole or in part of this instrument or
any other written instrument will be effective usden a writing signed by Beneficiary.

Section 9.12 _ BeneficidyyExpensesTrustor agrees to pay in full all expenses amdaaable attorneys’ fees of Beneficiary which may
have been or may be incurred by Beneficiary in eation with the collection of the Obligations aheé nforcement of any of Trustor’s
obligations hereunder and under any documents &g au connection with the Obligations.

Section 9.13 __IndemnificatiorTrustor shall indemnify Beneficiary and the Taestand hold each of them harmless against, aneneit
Beneficiary nor the Trustee shall be liable fory &8s, cost or damage, including without limitatiattorneys’, consultants’ or management
fees, resulting from exercise by Beneficiary or Timestee of any right, power or remedy conferredruip by this instrument or any other
instrument pertaining hereto, or from the attempfadure of Beneficiary or the Trustee to exercésy such right, power or remedy; and
notwithstanding any provision hereof to the conptréine foregoing indemnity shall in all respectsitimue and remain in full force and effect
even though all indebtedness and other sums sebaretdy may be fully paid and the lien of this instent released.

Section 9.14 _ Partial Releasés the event Trustor sells for monetary consitiensor otherwise any portion of the Royalty Inttee as
permitted by the Loan Agreement, Beneficiary andstee shall release the lien of this instrument waspect to the portion sold, at the request
of Trustor. No release from the lien of this instient of any part of the Collateral by Beneficiamakin anywise alter, vary or diminish the
force, effect or lien of this instrument on thedvade or remainder of the Collateral.

Section 9.15 _ Subrogatioithis instrument is made with full substitutiordesubrogation of Beneficiary and Trustee in andlt@ovenant:
and warranties by others heretofore given or madespect of the Collateral or any part thereof.

Section 9.16 _ NoticeAll notices and deliveries of information hereenghall be deemed to have been duly given if #igtdalivered or
mailed by registered or certified mail, postageppid, addressed to the parties hereto at the astrast forth above on page 1; if by mail, then
as of the date of such mailing. Each party maywhtten notice so delivered to the others, chamgeatddress to which delivery shall thereafter
be made.

Section 9.17 __Successoikhis instrument shall bind and inure to the birwdfthe respective successors and assigns gfartes.
Section 9.18 __Interpretation
(a) Article and section headings usethis instrument are intended for convenience onlty shall be given no significance whatever in
interpreting and construing the provisions of thigtrument.

A-15




(b) As used in this instrument, “Benedigi’ and “Trustee” include their respective sucoessnd assigns. Unless context otherwise
requires, words in the singular number includeplueal and in the plural number include the singwdords of the masculine gender include
the feminine and neuter gender and words of théengender may refer to any gender.

Section 9.19 __Inconsistencies with Relatedunents To the extent, if any, the provisions hereofiaomnsistent with the provisions of
the Loan Agreement, such inconsistencies shalkébelved by giving controlling effect to the LoanrAgment.

Section 9.20 _ CounterparfShis instrument may be executed in any numbeoahterparts, each of which will for all purposesdeemed
to be an original, and all of which are identicatept that to facilitate recordation, in particutaunterparts hereof, portions of Exhibit A het
which describe properties situated in countiesratten the county in which the counterpart is tadmrded have been omitted.

Section 9.21 _ Governing Law his Mortgage, insofar as it pertains to Royéttierests and Personalty Collateral located inStage of
Nevada shall be governed by the laws of Nevada Wlurtgage, insofar as it constitutes a commongkealge with respect to the Debt Serv
Reserve Account, shall be governed by the lawsest Nork. With respect to all other Collateral, tMertgage shall be governed by the laws
of the state in which the collateral is located.

Executed as of the Effective Date.
TRUSTOR:
ROYAL GOLD, INC.
By: /s/ Tony Jensen

Name: Tony Jenser
Title: President & CEO
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ATTEST:
[Corporate Seal

/s/ Karen Gros

Karen Gross, Vice President & Corporate Secretary
(Name and Title)

STATE OF COLORADC )
CITY AND ) ss.
COUNTY OF DENVER )

On August 30, 200gersonally appeared before me, a notary publicy Demsen the President & CE©f Royal Gold, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, who acknowledged that he executedliowe instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires 04/24/2008.

Randy Parcel
Notary Public

[Seal]
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HSBC BANK USA,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ P.E. Kavanag
Name P.E. Kavanag!
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

STATE OF NEW YORK )
CITY AND ) ss.
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

On_September 62006 personally appeared before me, a notaryq@UE. Kavanagh a Senior Vice Presidenft HSBC Bank USA,
National Association, who acknowledged that he etextthe abov

Witness my hand and official seal.
My commission expires 9/19/2010

/s/ Lourdes R. Smart
Notary Public

[Seal]

A-18






EXHIBIT 21.1

Royal Gold, Inc. and Its Subsidiaries
Denver Mining Finance Compafty
Royal Trading Compan§p

Calgom Mining, IncH &

Mono County Mining Compan{®
Royal Camp Bird, Inc®

Royal Crescent Valley, In€)
Royal Kanaka Creek Corporatith
Environmental Strategies, In@
Greek American Exploration Lté®
Sofia Minerals Ltd®)

Royal Gold Pty, Ltd.

RG Russia, Indb

High Desert Mineral Resources, I1t8.

@®  Owned 100% by Royal Gold, In

@ Owned 100% by Denver Mining Finance Comp.
3  Owned 50% by Royal Gold, In

@ Owns a 100% interest in the Goldstripe Proj

®  Owned 25% by Royal Gold, In






EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtke Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-BB1490), Form S-4 (No. 333-111590)
and on Form S-8 (No. 333-122877) of Royal Gold, bfour report dated August 25, 2006, relatinghi consolidated financial statements,
management’s assessment of the effectivenessephaltcontrol over financial reporting and the efifleeness of internal control over financial
reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
Denver, Colorads

August 31, 200t







EXHIBIT 31.1

I, Tony Jensen, certify that:

1)
2)

3)

(4)

()

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesaomiiain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to the
period covered by this annual repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementso#imel financial information included in this anhtgport fairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe period presented in this annual
report;

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanild procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15-a5(f), for the registrant and ha\

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedares tdesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg period in which this annual report is being jpreg;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finahe#porting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by tiial report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any change in éggstran’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gan’s internal control over financial reporting; e

The registrant’s other certifying officer andhgve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

() All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which al
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significée in the registrarg’interna
controls over financial reportin

September 6, 2006

/s/ Tony Jense

Tony Jense!
President and Chief Executive Offic






EXHIBIT 31.2
I, Stefan Wenger, certify that:
(1) 1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesamtain any untrue statement of a material factomaits to state a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimet financial information included in this anheeport fairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe period presented in this annual
report;

(4) The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15-a5(f), for the registrant and ha\

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedares tdesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg period in which this annual report is being jpreg;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finahe#porting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentecbnclusions about the effectiven
of the disclosure controls and procedures, aseétid of the period covered by this annual repaset on such evaluation; a

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any change irr¢lggstrant’s internal controls over financial refopay that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the tgan’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrar's other certifying officer and |, have disclosedséd on our most recent evaluation of internalrotsibver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contosisr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significée in the registrarg’interna
controls over financial reportin

September 6, 2006

/sl Stefan Wenge

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Office!







EXHIBIT 32.1

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fiRayal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardémg June 30, 2006, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), I, Tony Jensen, President anie€CExecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ap#etbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxteyf 2002 that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly mrets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operations of t
Company.

September 6, 2006

/s/ Tony Jense

Tony Jense!
President and Chief Executive Offic







EXHIBIT 32.2

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fiRayal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardémg June 30, 2006, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), I, Stefan Wenger, Chief Finarcficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedigntso Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 622bat, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly mrets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operations of t
Company.

September 6, 2006

/sl Stefan Wenge

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Office!




